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Mission Statement
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Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and
franchisees to appreciate our education, products and services, which are the
mission and belief of the brand and to make modern ladies beautiful, confident
and wealthy.
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

1 Queen'’s Road Central
Hong Kong

King’s Town Bank Co., Ltd.
8F., No. 167, Dunhua N. Rd.
Taipei

Taiwan

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.

8F, No. 168, Jingmao 2nd Road
Taipei

Taiwan

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Jingansi Sub-branch
1465 Beijing Road (W)

Shanghai

The PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Branch, Zhijiang Sub-branch
377 West Zhijiang Road

Shanghai

The PRC

CTBC BANK Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Branch

27F Shanghai World Financial Center
100 Central Avenue

Shanghai

The PRC

WEBSITE

www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite
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Financial Highlights
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Selected Financial Data MEHERE ZE-)\F ZE-NF ZEZTF ZT—F ZEIZF
HK$'000 FET BIEE  BMHRFE  HHRFE  HERFE  WREE
(except per share data) (FRREIERIN FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022
Revenue WA 369,525 438413 410673 487,810 335,880
Cost of sales HERA 146,665 172,843 170,248 181,812 146,750
Gross profit EH 222,860 265,570 240425 305,998 189,130
Operating profit/(loss) EER/ (B518) 39,157 38,331 10,641 50480 (19,205)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (FB) 26,259 21,908 7,758 35,264 (30,472)
Dividends & A 29,031 0 6,006 6,006 (]
Earning/(loss) Per Share (EPS) ~basic ~ SFRX&F|,/(E518) - £ §0.0130 $0.0110 $0.0039 500176 ($0.0152)
Dividend Per Share (DPS) AR $0.0150 $0 $0.0030 $0.0030 $0
Total assets BEE 678,966 757,400 831,972 930,444 872,309
Net asset value BESE 551,855 567,793 611,230 657918 597,462
Return on Equity (ROF) [ieNEE: 4.8% 3.9% 13% 54% (5.1%)
Return on Assets (ROA) EEDR 39% 29% 0.9% 3.8% (3.5%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

Revenue of the Group in 2022 decreased by 31.1% to HK$335.9 million
compared to HK$487.8 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to a
decrease of HK$144.5 million in product sales, such segment contributed to
97.4% of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue in the PRC market decreased by 20.4% from HK$279.0 million in 2021
to HK$222.0 million in 2022. Revenue in the Taiwan market decreased by 49.3%
to HK$103.1 million as compared to HK$203.2 million in 2021.

Revenue from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau,
increased by 92.8% from HK$5.6 million in 2021 to HK$10.8 million in 2022.
Contribution from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 3.2%
of the Group's revenue.

The Group's overall gross profit margin decreased from 62.7% in 2021 to 56.3%
in 2022 mainly due to: (1) the changes in revenue mix of products bundling in

Bt 75 2] 8

B

NEE 2 EEEH - T~ —FH487,800,000/8
TERA31.1% % = F = — F #9335,900,00058 7T, ©
BB EEHNEMBEERL 144,500,000
JC v A MG AR BB SERERY07.4% ©

FREREMSCEEFBR _ZSZ—F8
279,000,000 TR 2 204%E —F = —FH
222,000,000/ 7T : BEMGEC EXEFAR-T
Z—45#9203,200,0008 TR 493%E T =
£EH9103,100,00078 7T ©

Hipth@ (BIEEE - BREE KRB ZE:
FEIL HN92.8% * Fy —F — —4F 7 5,600,000 7T 12
MEZF = =4 210,800,000/8 7T ° 2@
HASEZS R EREFEN - B4 5E
EHERA32% ©

AEBZEBEBENER_T-_—F8
627% NEE T - —FH563% TEHR :

the PRC market; and (2) COVID-19 related policy implemented both in the PRC (1)K BE it [& $5 & B & T W A B & B £ B L
and Taiwan markets. In particular, the 2-month lockdown in Shanghai in the first 2 &) B KFE K& & ECOVID-19B7 R B /)
half of 2022 has led to the accumulation of fixed costs which further imposes 2 - HRI2AR T - —F ¥ F HiFHH
pressure on the gross profit margin. MER 2 A - SEWA TR - BRI KA
HYEEE - £EMHEEEE T - Bi(EE
FIE o
Revenue by activities REBE D 2EER 2022 2021 Changes
—E-=F T —F 2
HK$’000 % HKS$'000 % HK$'000 %
FHET % TAT % TAET %
Products Em 327,291 97.4% 471,838 96.7% (144,547) (30.6%)
Services AR5 8,589 2.6% 15,972 3.3% (7,383) (46.2%)
Total Bt 335,880 100.0% 487,810 100.0% (151,930) (31.1%)

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and
beauty apparatus. Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and
primarily generated from franchised spas, online and other sales platforms, self-
owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product sales
in 2022 amounted to HK$327.3 million, or 97.4% of the Group's total revenue,
representing a decrease of HK$144.5 million or by 30.6% when compared to
product sales of HK$471.8 million in 2021. The decrease in product sales was
mainly driven by the decrease in revenue in such segment in the PRC market by
18.7% to HK$214.2 million in 2022 as compared to HK$263.7 million in 2021 and
by the decrease in revenue in such segment in the Taiwan market by 49.3% to
HK$103.1 million in 2022 as compared to HK$203.2 million in 2021.

Services
Service income is derived from our self-owned spas’ services, medical
cosmetology services, training and other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. The Group's strategy is to establish self-owned spas as model
outlets in strategic locations to stimulate franchisees to join in. As at 31
December 2022, the Group has two self-owned spas in the PRC and one self-
owned spa in Malaysia.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Services (Continued)

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2022, service income
decreased by 46.2% to HK$8.6 million as compared to HK$16.0 million in 2021.

Bt % [51 B ()

PR 7% (&)

ZIRITIN R ZIKEITQEMEJJHHEF‘T
EIRBER LTS 2 A RERE - RZT =
ZF o RERER T = —F 216,000,000
TCIR D 46.2% % 8,600,00078 TT

BA 4K

WL

Service income R U = 2022 2021 %
—E=-Z —E-—F B E)
HK$’000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FET % TET %  FAET %
Training income = 5 2= 4 0.1% 24 0.2% (20) (83.3%)
Spa/Medical cosmetology KBRS, BEER
service income BR 7 W = 8,585 99.9% 14,565 91.2% (5,980) (41.1%)
Others EA = = 1,383 8.6% (1,383) (100%)
Total st 8,589  100.0% 15,972 100.0% (7,383) (46.2%)
The PRC Market R KPETH 5

The Group's revenue in the PRC market decreased by 20.4% in 2022 to
HK$222.0 million as compared with HK$279.0 million in 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to a decrease in the sales of products. Gross margin on product
sales decreased from 61.6% in 2021 to 55.9% in 2022. The key reasons to the
aforementioned changes are: (1) the changes in revenue mix of products
bundling in the PRC market; and (2) COVID-19 related policy implemented
both in the PRC and Taiwan markets. In particular, the 2-month lockdown in
Shanghai in the first half of 2022 has led to the accumulation of fixed costs
which further imposes pressure on the gross profit margin.

Taiwan Market

The Group's revenue in the Taiwan market decreased by 49.3% from HK$203.2
million in 2021 to HK$103.1 million in 2022. The significant decrease in sales in
the Taiwan market was mainly attributable to the “coexistence with virus and
effective epidemic control” policy implemented in Taiwan which prompted a
drastic increase in Taiwan’'s COVID-19 cases within two months in the first half
of 2022.The drastic increase of COVID-19 cases in Taiwan had adversely affected
. the Group's operation in the Taiwan market. Gross profit margin on product
P, sales decreased from 68.1% in 2021 to 63.6% in 2022. The key reason of the
“ decrease in gross margin is the changes in business channels, which in turn
changed the revenue mix.

AEEBRFPREKETSZ & %%ﬁf

£ ;2.279,000,00078 L A 204%E —F = =
2.222,000,00087C © B Ea/ﬁ9ixm§ﬁﬁﬁ
BRI - EMEEENER T -—F
2616% NEEZT - —F7559% - FERA

=

=
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B 75 [0 JEE ()
Taiwan Market (Continued) =% ik 16)

Benefited from the operation strategy of Eastern Media International BHREHEBEBRMNER AR (RHEER]) 2
Corporation ("EMIC") Group, the Group’s products were sold through the  43E%REE > BAXEMBBRHAETHDHEE
distribution channels of EMIC. In 2022, sales revenue from TV shopping, B#HE R-_T-—F  AEMHNEGRE
E-commerce and telemarketing channels in the Taiwan market contributed ¥ « BF 15 « BiETTIHBEE RIS WAL
HK$36.0 million to the Group, accounting for 34.9% of the product sales in 7N 52 B & [} 3% 36,000,00078 7T © 16 & i@ &

Taiwan. mnEHE RE 2 34.9% ©
Revenue by
geographical region Rt B o 2 E R 2022 2021 Changes
—E-CF —E-—4 B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 %
FET FET FET %

PRC B K BE
Products Em 214,244 263,679 (49,435) (18.7%)
Services AR 7% 7,801 15,367 (7,566) (49.2%)
PRC Total PN 222,045 279,046 (57,001) (20.4%)
Taiwan =9 |
Products Em 103,053 203,165 (100,112) (49.3%)
Services AR 7% = 7 @) (100.0%)
Taiwan Total EY-t:5 103,053 203,172 (100,119) (49.3%)
Others Hith
Products Em 9,994 4,994 5,000 100.1%
Services AR 7% 788 598 190 31.8%
Others Total Hith#a st 10,782 5,592 5,190 92.8%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains increased by 57.8% from HK$8.8 million in
2021 to HK$13.9 million in 2022. Other income and other gains in 2022 mainly
comprised rental income from properties and equipment, interest income,
government grants, compensation income and exchange gains of HK$2.6
million, HK$1.7 million, HK$1.5 million, HK$1.9 million and HK$2.4 million
respectively.

Selling and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue
increased to 41.5% in 2022 compared with 37.2% in 2021. The distribution
and selling expenses decreased by HKS$42.3 million from HK$181.6 million in
2021 to HK$139.3 million in 2022. Staff costs in relation to distribution work
decreased by HK$7.0 million to HK$73.3 million in 2022 from HK$80.3 million
in 2021. Other key expenses included advertising expenses of HK$13.2 million,
depreciation and amortisation charges of HK$15.3 million, transportation
charges of HK$9.3 million, consulting and service fees of HK$12.0 million,
travelling and entertainment charges of HK$5.5 million and rental expenses of
HK$2.8 million in 2022.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$15.0 million, to HK$68.6 million
in 2022 as compared to HKS$83.6 million in 2021. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including directors’
emoluments) of HK$31.3 million, legal and professional fees of HK$10.2
million, depreciation and amortisation charges of HK$8.5 million, research and
development expenses of HK$4.4 million and office and utility expense HK$5.7
million in 2022.

Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses decreased by HK$0.6 million, from HK$3.1
million in 2021 to HK$2.5 million in 2022. Other expenses and other losses
mainly included related expenses of rental of other properties of HK$1.4 million,
and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of HK$0.4 million in 2022.

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Taking into account of the fact that pre-tax profit margin decreased to -7.0% in
% 2022 from 9.9% in 2021 in the Group, the profit before tax was approximately
HK$48.5 million in 2021 as compared to the loss before tax of HK$23.5 million in
2022.
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Htz HAEBE K
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased to HK$6.9 million in 2022 as compared to HK$13.2
million in 2021. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2021 and 2022 were
27.2% and 29.4% respectively.

(Loss)/Profit for the year
The Group's net loss was approximately HK$30.5 million in 2022 as compared
to the net profit of approximately HK$35.3 million in 2021.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2022 was approximately HK$11.6
million (HK$44.6 million in 2021). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$160.6 million (HK$184.5 million as
at 31 December 2021) with approximately HK$119.9 million of external bank
borrowings (HK$97.3 million as at 31 December 2021).

In terms of gearing, the Group's gearing ratios (defined as total bank borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) in 2021 and 2022 were 14.8% and 20.1%
respectively. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 were 1.89
times and 1.46 times respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed in its consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in
hand, the Group's liquidity position remains strong to meet its working capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's secured bank borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second to fifth years without repayment on
demand clause and in the second to fifth years with repayment on demand
clause were HK$30.5 million (2021: HK$34.5 million), HK$6.0 million (2021:
HKS$9.5 million) and HK$83.4 million (2021: HK$53.3 million) respectively, and
therefore the Group’s net cash (exclude time deposits with maturities of over
three months but less than one year) amounted to HK$40.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$87.2 million). These bank borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") at floating
rates during the year. The Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk
via interest rate swap.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W& D

Bt % [51 B ()

BiE

MBS N B =T = —F,213,200,0007 JTiH
6,300,000 7L E =T = = 7 6,900,000/8 JT ©
AEBR T —FR-_ZF__FZEEMRE
DRI E527.2%K.29.4% ©

ER(ER),ER

FRER),/ B BEBEE_S - —F 2%
35,300,00078 T A 1864%E —ZF — —F 7 E5iE
30,500,000/ 7T °

RBESRUBER
RZTEZ_F2REXEBABRENA
11,600,000 7L (Z & = — 4 /44,600,000

L) cRZTEZZF+ZA=+—H ~&KH
2B e RIR e EEYH 516060000078 7T (A=
T - —F+=-A=+—HA184500000%T) °
W A AN FRERT B SR BE4Y A 119,900,0007% 7T

(RZEBE=—F+=A=+—H%A97,300,000%
JT) °

EEEBE A RZE-_—FR-ZT=_=
BEEARBLLER(RTHEIRITENGAREE

=) DRI R148%K%201% c RZE-—F+=A
=t—ARZBZF+-A=+—RH F&§
.Z//ILEDHZ};‘(ﬂ%ﬁEEI//\LEjJéFE%Q(//ILEEfE)
DRlRI8IERI46fE - RZTBE-__F+=A
=t—H  BRESMBHRRLEBNTRE
EO AEBIWBERNABE - BEMFH
2R RRITHET  AEEZRBESHR RS
FRE RAmeHEEESHS

Eﬁ‘_:__i'i' A=+—8 XxEER—
FRN F_EZEFRAF(EREREEEROR
FIEFAF(FEREREEKRIVIAZ
BIRPIRITERD B 530,500,000 T (==
—4F : 34,500,000/ 7T) 6000000,%75(_7_
—4F 1 9,500,0007% 7T) % 83,400,000/ L (—ZE —
—%F 1 53,300,000/7T) - A AEE 2 FRE
(FEEZEANE—FUATHSHZ EHER
740,700,000 7T (ZF = —4F : 87,200,000/
T0) c ZERITEZINFRZEZHFHEAAR
B T B MEETE « RSB R B A F & HA ¥
SREEER 2 FIER R

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's secured short-term and long-term bank
borrowings were secured by certain freehold land, buildings and right-of-
use assets related to leasehold land, with carrying amounts of HK$92.4 million
(HK$102.4 million as at 31 December 2021).

Share Award Schemes

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25 May 2022.
The board of directors (the “Board”) has adopted two share award schemes,
namely Scheme | and Scheme Il (together, the “Share Award Schemes”) on 25
May 2022 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose and objective of Scheme | are:
(i) to recognise the contributions by certain Eligible Participants and to closely
align executive interests with the growth and financial achievements of the
Group; and (i) to provide a performance-driven long-term incentive award to
motivate and retain key senior management. The purpose and objective of
Scheme Il are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain Eligible Participants
and to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

The Share Award Schemes shall be valid and effective for a term of ten years
commencing from the Adoption Date. Since the Adoption Date and up to 31
December 2022, no share award was granted under the Share Award Schemes.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in RMB and NTD as its
operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31 December 2022,
approximately 58.1% (68.0% as at 31 December 2021) of the Group's bank
balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while approximately 37.9% (27.6%
as at 31 December 2021) was denominated in NTD. The remaining 4.0% (4.4%
as at 31 December 2021) was denominated in United States Dollars, Hong Kong
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments
to hedge against such risks when necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Distribution channels

For revenue by sales channel, the Group achieved HK$290.4 million sales from
franchised/self-owned spas, medical cosmetology centers and counters in
2022 which decreased by HK$51.0 million as compared to the figure in 2021
(2021: HK$341.4 million), representing 86.5% of the Group's total revenue (2021:

70.0%).

For sales from E-commerce, TV shopping and telemarketing channels, the
Group achieved HK$45.4 million sales which decreased by HK$101.0 million
compared to 2021 (2021: HK$146.4 million), representing 13.5% of the Group’s

total revenue (2021: 30.0%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2022, there were 1,408 spas and 9 concessionary counters. Of
these, 1,405 were franchised spas, while 3 spas and 9 concessionary counters
were directly operated and owned by the Group. No concessionary counters
were entrusted to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the
franchisees who are responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They
are obliged to use only Natural Beauty or "NB” products in their spas. A wide
array of services including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin
care analysis, are provided in all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available
at the concessionary counters in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 140 (2021: 255) new stores were opened and 76 (2021:
119) stores were closed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Research and Development

Natural Beauty places a strong emphasis on research and development and
strives to maintain its competitive advantage. Our primary objective is to
develop new products along with optimizing their quality and efficacy. The
philosophy of Natural Beauty is “Human Testimonies, Material Evidences
and Scientific Witnesses”. Therefore, the core value of our R&D team is the
combination of basic research and industry-university collaboration. The R&D
team consists of over ten experienced researchers in the fields of cosmetics,
medicine, pharmacy, and biochemistry, as well as a number of top beauty
and biochemistry consultants from both domestic and overseas. To develop
new technologies, the R&D team collaborates with professional laboratories in
Europe, Japan, Australia and other countries. In terms of hardware equipment,
our Group has established two research and development centers: the Natural
Beauty Biotechnology R&D Center and the Dongsen-NTU Industry-University
Cooperation Center. Our collaboration with NTU effectively leverages Natural
Beauty's research strengths and resources, facilitating product development
and technology transfer and creating a win-win situation by cultivating talent,
enhancing our R&D vitality and boosting profits.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development (Continued)

In terms of patent portfolio, Natural Beauty has devoted significant effort to
developing its own intellectual property rights, and has obtained three stem cell
patents (US 7,405,195B2), (TW 1331042), (US 8,076,296B2), and a plant extraction
patent (TW 1640505). In order to further develop its plant patents, our Group
has collaborated with National Taiwan University and National Yang Ming
Chiao Tung University. Research data shows that it possesses a unique ability
to activate hair follicles. Currently, we have a pending patent application and
are developing scalp care products. In addition, the upgrade of the classic NB-1
series is the annual highlight in 2022. Our R&D team has introduced MicroRNA
Gene activation technology to activate the circadian rhythm of skin cells with
MicroRNA and promote cell rejuvenation and repair. Each year, we invite
scholars from industry, government, and academia to co-hold an industry-
university summit where we discuss the development direction, projects, and
product quality with our R&D, distribution, and marketing teams. Our Group
has continuously worked closely with academia to enhance our innovative
development capabilities.

Products

In July 2022, Natural Beauty launched an affordable moisturizing mask to attract
new consumers. By the end of 2022, the sales volume approached 52,959
pcs. In November, we upgraded the classic NB-1 series to enhance its core
competitiveness. In the second half of 2022, sales of the NB-1 series reached
HK$32.4 million (RMB28.6 million). Taking advantage of the booming healthcare
market, the Spain INDIBA deep diathermy sold 108 sets and generated HK$37.9
million (RMB33.5 million) by the end of the year. Throughout the year of 2022,
we launched a total of 43 new products and brought in HK$16.4 million
(RMB14.5 million) in revenue.

In October, we launched a new brand called B.U.T. ESSE and organized co-brand
show activities, which generated HKS$1.2 million (RMB1.0 million), opening a
new chapter for the Natural Beauty Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 497 employees, of whom
339 were based in the PRC, 137 in Taiwan and 21 in other countries and
regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2022 was
approximately HK$124.7 million (HK$146.1 million in 2021), including retirement
benefit related costs of HK$10.8 million (HK$10.9 million in 2021). Competitive
remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable
staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$44.3 million in 2022 was mainly related
to the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$29.3 million,
opening of new stores, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$13.1
million.

Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 — Lease (HKFRS 16) came
into effect on 1 January 2019. At the commencement date, the Group should
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The related right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2022, the Group's right-of-use assets were HK$41.1 million (HK$81.7
million as at 31 December 2021) and its lease liabilities were HK$23.6 million
(HK$31.8 million as at 31 December 2021). In 2022, depreciation charges of
right-of-use assets amounted to HK$10.4 million and interest charges of lease
liabilities amounted to HK$ 1.3 million.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

Save as otherwise disclosed this annual report, there were no material
investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the Board at the date of
this annual report.
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OUTLOOK

The business growth affected by the epidemic has entered a new era by

the end of 2022. In particular, the new epidemic policy has brought positive

development in Mainland China. Looking forward to 2023, significant business

growth can be expected. Eastern International Co., Ltd. ("Eastern International”)

continues to invest in innovative services, product development, chain

franchising, e-commerce, telemarketing and TV shopping to accelerate the

development of multi-brand strategies. We have entered into the live-streaming

channel era where new businesses spring up every day to engage with young

consumers.

Key Market Development Strategies

= Taiwan:

— Mainland China:

- Southeast Asia
market:

Natural Beauty continues the multi-channel strategy and
develops the live-streaming channel cooperating with
global influencers. As the result, we have seen positive
achievements in promoting affordable products via live-
streaming platforms. Multi-brand strategy can meet the
product needs of different live-streaming platforms, make
full use of product development and mass production,
and promote business growth. Plus, immunity concern
has become the focus of consumption in the post-
epidemic era, we have deployed a large number of
essential health supplements to chain stores and other
channels to boost sales opportunities.

The new epidemic policy has positively affected the brick
and mortar store business and driven sales performance
back to normal. In 2023, in addition to increasing
investment, we continue to rapidly expand chain stores
by leveraging our brand power. Meanwhile, we introduce
health supplements to seize the business opportunity
of immunity-boosting products after the epidemic.
Moreover, our new e-commerce brand is also ready to
launch, with affordable products to approach online
young people along with increasingly investing in huge
traffic TikTok platform to drive e-commerce growth.

Following the first own shop opening in 2019, the second
store was opened at the beginning of 2023, and we
continue to expand our franchise business in Malaysia.
Furthermore, we plan to enter Vietnam in 2023 to expand
overseas market.

Looking ahead to 2023, we will continue to enhance brand recognition,

effectively promote core business, drive innovation, develop the global market,
and pursue leap-forward growth.
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Report on Corporate Governance
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The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the
foundation to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to
its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure is
an effective and qualified Board which is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance, sound internal control and effective risk
management to enhance transparency, accountability, integrity and honesty, in
order to earn the confidence from our shareholders and other stakeholders and
to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are
applied to the Company.

Compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2022, the Company
applied the principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarizes the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to
continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for its leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting
the Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
Directors take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly
reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform his responsibilities
to the Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them that are commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities.
The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of two Executive
Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by category of
Directors, including names of the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors are disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
"Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles” of this Annual Report. The
relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective Director’s
biography under the section "Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles” of
this Annual Report. Save as disclosed above, there are no relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) between
the Board members and in particular, between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

Board Meetings
The Board meets four times during a year as a minimum and, during 2022, it

met seven times. It involves active participation, either in person or through
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) Exgm
Directors’ attendance and training records BEEHERIEIIREE
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the Directors HE-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HIFER &
attendance records at the meetings of the Board and each of the Board EAZEEZE8€ 7K BEKFE  BUEERE
Committees and the general meetings as well as the Directors’ training records B &8 &%  SAEELZE@LHMREAST 2
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: HFasE - URESEIIZSHAT -
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee Board General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Course
§MZEE ENZEE REZEE Egg RREE 4
] EE ] &3 xe EYS
Executive Directors HTES
Dr.LEI Chien EBEL 5/5 n/a 2”2 717 /1 Notesaandb
TER fizrakb
Nir. PAN Yi-Fan® BRAEED 5/5 a n 17 o1 Notesaandb
TER Miztakb
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei® MREFED n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
T T TR T TR T
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Ms. LU Yu-Min BERRit n/a n/a n/a 77 0/1 Note a
T T T Mizta
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WRER T n/a 6/6 n/a 77 01 Notesaandb
T TEf Mizrakb
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BTREE n/a n/a n/a 77 01 Notesaandb
TR T T Miztakb
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long ik fE 5/5 6/6 0 17 " Notea
MizEa
Mr. LU Chi-Chant” EEBREY 45 5/6 0 6/7 11" Notesaandb
fizrako
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien DILE ik 5/5 6/6 n " o Note a
MizEa
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang® EREEY n/a n/a /a n/a n/a n/a
T T TR TR T T
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and Committee
meetings in person could appoint another Director as their respective proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf. For indication purpose, attendance by proxy
was not counted as attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above
summary.

Notes:

(1 No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December
2022.

®)] Mr. PAN Yi-Fan resigned as an Executive Director, a member of the Executive
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
on 1 January 2023. Seven Board meetings, two Nomination Committee meetings
and five Remuneration Committee meetings were held before 1 January 2023.

(3) Mr. LIN Chia-Wei was appointed as an Executive Director, a member of the
Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 1 January 2023.

(4) Mr. LU Chi-Chant resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, the
Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee on 1 January 2023. Seven Board meetings, five
Remuneration Committee meetings, six Audit Committee meetings and two
Nomination Committee meetings were held before 1 January 2023.

(5) Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director,
the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee on 1 January 2023.

(a) Attended training course that was organised by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b)  Attended other continuous professional development training course(s) that was/
were not organised by the Company and/or studied relevant reading materials.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular Board
meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted to include
any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For other Board and
Committee meetings, notice is generally given pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) and the respective Charters of the
Committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and the accompanying
Board papers are sent to all Directors at least three days before each Board
meeting or Committee meeting for their review and to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company so
as to enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the Company Secretary
who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and
advising the Board on corporate governance and compliance matters.

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees members
within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days) after each meeting and
are available for review and inspection by Directors and Board Committee
members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held for any material
transaction with connected persons. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction should
be present at such meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum requirements
conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

Securities transactions made by Directors and relevant
employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standard of the Model Code has been complied with throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s Guidelines”),
which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in respect of securities
'@ transactions by relevant employees of the Company who are likely to be in
Y. " possession of unpublished inside information of the Company pursuant to
code provision C.1.3. No incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or
the Company’s Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been
noted after making reasonable enquiry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company, and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the

Company are delegated to management team.

There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board decision,
including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;
- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;

- material connected transactions; and

- annual internal controls assessment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. LEI Chien serves as the Chairperson while Ms. LIN Yen-Ling is the Chief
Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are
separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group strategic and Board issues while
the Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for operations and
development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole Board with all
information relevant to the discharge of the Board's responsibilities.

Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least annually hold
meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of other directors. The Chairperson met the independent non-executive
Directors once without the presence of other Directors during the year ended
31 December 2022.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board, at all times, met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors, representing at least one-third of
the Board with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of our independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
during the year which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safequard Shareholders’ interests.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2022 w
\\, / v N\ %

BEEgwm

ERRITHEAR
EEBLHIERE  AEB LT ATRER
IRRABREBEY AEETRAATEY - /%
EINAEEERRETSEYR - MITRER
HREaELERBREN -

TFEAERARAEIANERBETEXEBREAHRE
TEEERAEZMBEER -

SRR EC27IRRTE - TREELBFRB
VIFATESRIT - RRBEMESTHFENE
FBoRZE_FFT_A=+T—HLEFE *
FELEEMESHENBR T B LIENIT
EEgm—Re

BYkHITES

BE-_Z-_—_H+-A=+—HItFER &
EFEg—EfELELTRAIBBZEEL =28
FNITES  REFSAS =Sz UEmME
FEL—EBUFRTESAFEETES
o KSR SRAE M B E RS EMERNR

TE °

ARBDEESFIIFNTESRE LTRA
RREZBIMEMBEL 2 FERRE - NQ7]
RAERBELIIFRTESRE LHRAE313
[RFAE 2 B4R - ABBIAL -

EEER VT AEE
ARRRFRRLTEFTSB TGS
FIRERES G AR BB EHRE RIE
Fr EEFESREBARITERE LA - AELT
Ho i AR A & o

HE-_ZE-—_F+-A=+—BIFERN &
RN ESEB T EEEITIE R K
o RS ARE -




BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment, including Executive
and Non-executive Directors, usually serve one-year term, and are subject to re-
election pursuant to the Articles and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director appointed shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. LIN Chia-Wei and Mr.
LIN Tsalm-Hsiang will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") according to the Articles.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
at each AGM. Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang will retire by rotation
according to the Articles and all of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director who has served on the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. We
will state in the related circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we
consider the Independent Non-executive Director is still independent and our
recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-election of such
Independent Non-executive Director. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an existing Independent Non-executive Director,
has served on the Board for more than nine years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Position(s) held with the other members of the Group

On

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

1 January 2023:

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan resigned as an Executive Director, a member of the
Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company;

Mr. LU Chi-Chant Fan resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company;

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei was appointed as an Executive Director, a member
of the Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company; and

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Other major appointments

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
ceased to act as the chairman of the board of BES Engineering Corporation
(TWSE: 2515), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect from
16 September 2022.

Approval of Director’s service contract

On 30 December 2022, the Board approved all the service contracts and
letter of appointment entered into between the Company and each of the
Directors (except Mr. PAN Yi-Fan and Mr. LU Chi-Chant) for a term of one year
commencing on 1 January 2023.

()

Pursuant to the service contracts, the annual Director’s fee of Mr. CHEN
Shou-Huang, the Non-executive Director, has been revised to HK$370,000
with effect from 1 January 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing professional development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company organised one
Directors’ training on the regulations in relation to the internal control and risk
management of Hong Kong listed companies.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors and
members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal continuing
obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result of the listing of
the securities of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
and (b) the systems and procedures that the Company, its Directors and
senior management should follow in order to ensure compliance with such
obligations.

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive formal and
tailored orientation training to explain the responsibilities and duties, and other
regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors updated on the
Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2022, all Independent Non-executive Directors are members of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Some Non-executive Directors are members of the Executive Committee and
the Audit Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and Board
Committee meetings in 2022 are set out under “Directors’ Attendance and
Training Records” on page 26 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with specific terms of reference
setting out their roles and functions available at the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board after each
meeting, which address their work and findings.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long,
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. LIN Chia-Wei respectively.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not limited
to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and
making recommendations to the Board on selection of candidates for
directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy. It also assesses the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors. Full terms of reference
(Nomination Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination Committee to
perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination Committee could seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses, to perform its
duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022. During the year 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board Diversity Policy and the Director Nomination Policy and conducted
an annual review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee also assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and no material
matter was identified during the year.

%, Save as the above, the Nomination Committee has performed corporate
governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board and having an
appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience in our key
markets, with different ethnic background, of both genders, reflecting our
business strategy. All appointment will be based on merit.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains
a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels
and will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, experience, expertise,
qualifications, skills and knowledge as well as independence of the Board. The
Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates
are considered.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five male Directors and three
female Directors. The Nomination Committee considered that the Board had
achieved gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the composition
and diversity of the Board on a regular basis to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s workforce (including senior management)
is approximately 74.3% female, among which, approximately 47.0% of the
Group's senior management roles are held by women. The Board is satisfied
that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce. The Company

intends that it shall continue to maintain at least one-third of the Groups
management roles be held by women.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZER®
Nomination Committee (Continued) REZEE®H)
Director Nomination Policy EERABE

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy aiming at setting AR RIS IRMAE FIRE R © 5EMHRE
out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors N EEAARIEEZ EBILEF  BREES
of the Company and ensuring the Board has a balance of skills, experiences ~ EETIA RN AR EBFNRTT - KB NMZ T
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company as well as the Board ~ EiZh » WHER A AR E S SNEEELEFHE

continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level. EEAE -
A summary of the director nomination policy is set out below: ERRABEHANT
Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship BB RIEEEFANERP < IEE

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following criteria &P R PR (TR 5 AR ZEE B LA 2R -
should be considered:

i

<

Character and integrity. . oo A% B B

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and - Bt BEEEER BT AEER

experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are NEIEBRRBAENGER  URES

relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy. LI BCRTIRIM Z UL A XK -

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the Board. - REBESS LT LMEMEEA A5
E20F -

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in accordance BIELTHRAANCHRTE EFLEEEE

with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would be considered VEE - RBEHFR EWRANETIE

independent with reference to the independence guidelines set out in SIZ BIREARBLIE -

the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms RIEANEZEER Ko - £8% - B

of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender diversity. HERERZT LT A AEESERE

EBEEER
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE®m

Nomination Committee (Continued) REBZEG W)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued) EERBBEREE)

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship (Continued) — ERiZ R R EEE EAEATERMNZ 1ZE(B)
Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties asa EEEEREEENRMEHEERET
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company. BABEEER NEELEERENH

E °

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s business - EFeRk /UREZZESUNERRH

and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted and/or RAESZRETHRITERMNE, HE

amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to ATEMBERR ARG ER RETF SN

time for nomination of directors and succession planning. g

Nomination process BEEF

@  Appointment of new director @ ZAFES
()  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon () REBEZEER HEFSEAEKE

receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the ZEHEENEZRIEREANERE
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, BER(SAEMEFIE) & - KB Ll
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to L HZIREAN  UEBEZIEEA
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. EEHEEEFES -

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the (i) WBREFR—BREBEENIRE
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by AN REZBER HEFSE
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and BEBEARNGNZERZREANE
reference check of each candidate (where applicable). SHEWER) I EEELR

ﬁ o

(i The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the (il RELZECEBERTIABRE
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as ARBEENESSREEBER
applicable. (an@EA) o

(iv)  Forany person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a (iv) BEARARARREAREG AR
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination RREBRREFZIMNAT  REZ
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate ek / REESENKE LMAER
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such STEZIEREAN UBEZEREAR
candidate is qualified for directorship. EREESFER -

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board REZEER REESELNK
should make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the RAE FBEBREENREMBRRLR
proposed election of director at the general meeting. HHBEER(EA) -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

Nomination process (Continued)

(b)  Re-election of Director at general meeting

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the

overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re- elect a candidate as
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate
will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman), Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua, respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee
members are Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within 14 days
of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is a partner of the
external auditors of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference; to seek any information it requires from any
employee and all employees are directed to cooperate with any request
made by the Audit Committee; to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice; and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining the Audit
Committee’s role and authority are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange's
website.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 December
2022. During the year 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual results
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible improprieties. During the year 2022, the Audit Committee
also met with the external auditors twice to discuss audit issues, before
recommending to the Board for approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to take
independent professional advice at the Company's expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the Board regarding
the selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the employee’s
handbook.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Shih-
Chien, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. LIN Chia-Wei respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining the
policy and structure for the remuneration of Executive Directors, assessing
performance of Executive Directors and approving the terms of Executive
Directors’ service contracts, and determining or making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive
and Non-executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Remuneration Committee ensures that no director or any of
his/her associates was involved in determining his or her own remuneration. It
also ensures that remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company's website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022. During the year 2022, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and recommended the approval of the proposed bonus awards
for all employees and senior management; reviewed and recommended
the adjustments of the Directors’ fee of Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang, reviewed
and recommended the renewal of Director’s service contracts and letters of
appointment of all Directors (except Mr. PAN Yi-Fan and Mr. LU Chi-Chant)
and reviewed and recommended the adoption of the Share Award Schemes.
With reference to the Remuneration Committee Charter, the Remuneration
Committee members had carefully reviewed and considered the contribution
of each of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty
and spa business and the market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement internal
resources where appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

When determining the remuneration basis and structure of the Directors and
Executives, the following factors will be taken into account: (1) contributions
to the Group, (2) experience in related businesses of the Group, (3) respective
responsibilities and performance, (4) market average level, and (5) the overall
financial status of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Executive Committee

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee described above, details of the Executive Committee are set out
below.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee comprises two
Executive Directors and three Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. LEI Chien
(Chairperson), Mr. LIN Chia-Wei, Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN
Shou-Huang respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating business policies,
making decisions on key business issues and policies, facilitating the approval
of certain corporate actions and exercising the powers and authority delegated
by the Board in respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and other
business performance, as well as to review and approve annual budget and key
performance indicators ("KPIs") and track performance.

No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by
key business processes and office functions, including project management,
manufacturing and procurement, financial reporting, human resources and
information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

The Company's risk management and internal control systems are designed
with the principles to enhance the operation effectiveness, reduce loss in assets,
ensure the reliability of financial reports and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others, environment control,
risk assessment, activity control, information and communication, and internal
surveillance.

The Company organises personnel and seeks assistance from external
professional advisory institutions to establish the risk management and
internal control systems which are subject to the review by the Company’s
management team and approval by the Audit Committee and the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify
risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects
including key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and
information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and compliance with best practices. In
coordination with department heads, the management assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, and monitors the risk
management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and
the effectiveness of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also reports to the
Audit Committee on the implementation of internal control.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016 to enhance risk
management and internal control systems in a timely manner. The Internal
Audit Department is responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provides the effectiveness
of its implementation and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate its employees
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to strictly prohibits any
form of fraud or bribery and to observe and uphold high standards of business
integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its business
dealings at all times.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board conducted a review of
the risk management and internal control systems covering the year 2022 and
considered that such systems of the Group had been implemented effectively
and adequately. The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general
guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management and Relevant
Employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

The Board confirms that it has received confirmation from the management
that the Company’s risk management and internal control systems are effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic plans,
updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and actions. The
Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records and preparing
accounts for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is included in
the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 101 to 109.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the accounts, and
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other announcements in relation to inside
information and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
report to regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group’s auditors,
in respect of audit services amounted to HK$2,111,000 and non-audit services
of review of interim results amounted to HK$200,000 which were reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year 2022, Ms. MOK Ming Wai of Tricor Services Limited, is an
external service provider and was engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary. Her main contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Chief
Legal Counsel).

Ms. Mok has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of the Company, which is available at
the Company's website (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and
the Stock Exchange’s website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of Directors by Shareholders
and the Shareholder Communication Policy are available for download from the
Company’s website (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the Company's website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite to provide comprehensive
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China
Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year 2022, the Company has not made any amendment to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Board proposed to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association to
reflect the changes brought about by the amendments to the applicable laws
and regulations including the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to the introduction of 14 core standards
of shareholder protection. In addition, other housekeeping amendments have
also been incorporated to clarify and revise existing practices and to reflect
consequential update changes in conjunction with the proposed amendments.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 March 2023
and circular to be published in April 2023.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for good investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or their
respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming AGM.

% The Company has held one AGM on 25 May 2022 since the issuance of the last
annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Code provision F.2.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board of a listed issuer
should attend the AGM. The chairman of the board should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
to attend. In their absence, the chairman of the board should invite another
member of the committee or failing this, his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

On the AGM held on 25 May 2022, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee, was unable to attend the Company’s AGM. The Board
arranged for Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an Independent Non-executive Director and
a member of the Nomination Committee, who is well versed in all business
activities and operations of the Group, to attend the 2022 AGM to respond to
shareholders’ questions.

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of general meetings
by, for example, giving adequate time to all Directors to accommodate their
work arrangements and providing all necessary support for their presence and
participation at general meetings, such that the Chairperson of the Board and
all Directors will be able to attend future general meetings of the Company.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2022 AGM at least

20 clear business days before the meeting.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations section
of the Company' s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of the AGM held on
25 May 2022. These procedures were also explained at the commencement of
AGM held on 25 May 2022.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the AGM held on 25 May 2022,

Poll results were published on the same day following the AGM held on 25
May 2022 and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the
Company at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders' Communication Policy. The policy
aims to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and
to allow shareholders and the investment community to engage actively in the
Company. The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders' Communication Policy and the results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-
going dialogue with its shareholders as follows:

(@)  Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s share registrar.

(b)  Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be
issued by the Company for the information or action of holders of any of
its securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report, interim report,
notice of meeting, circular and proxy form. Corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese versions to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding.

(c)  Corporate Website
A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the Company’s
website at www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite. Information
on the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.

(d)  Shareholders’ Meetings
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf
if they are unable to attend the meetings. Board members, in particular,
either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors
will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy setting out the principle and
guidelines to be applied by the Company in respect of declaration, payment or
% distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders.
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CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. LEI CHIEN (ALIAS JOANNA LEI)

Aged 64, is the Chairperson of the Company. She was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director on 26 October 2018. She is also the chairperson
of Executive Committee and a member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. She is currently a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Malaysia and Hong Kong. Dr. Lei is currently an executive director
of Pacific Construction Co,, Limited* (K F 2 &1 E R A 7)), a company
listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE: 2506). Dr. Lei is also serving on the
board of a number of non-profit organisations such as the Chinese
Childrenhome and Shelter Association* (12 & 2h #1857 ZB1ZHE) and
the National Women’s League* (2 R Bl fi7 22565 &). She has over 30 years
of experience in the media and broadcasting sector and corporate
management. Dr. Lei began her career as a media and development scholar at
the University of Pennsylvania from 1984 to 1987. From 1987 to 1996, she
worked in the media conglomerate Capital Cities/ABC, Inc. in New York. She
was eventually promoted to vice president and was one of the highest ranking
Asians in mainstream American media. From 1997 to 2002, Dr. Lei was an
investment partner of Baring Communication Equity Asia in Singapore. Her
investment activities included equity investment, debt restructuring, and
merger and acquisitions in telecom, media, and information technology
industries across the Asia Pacific region excluding Japan. In 2000, Dr. Lei
returned to Taiwan and from 2003 to 2004, she was an executive director of
Eastern Broadcasting Company Co., Ltd ("EBC"). She has been elected as senator
at the Legislative Yuan of the Republic of China in 2005 and until 2008. Dr. Lei
was appointed as the chairman of a government-owned enterprise, Kinmen
Kaoliang Liquor Co,, Limited* (& FTBEME Z M 1D B R A 7)) in 2008. From
2009 to 2017, Dr. Lei has worked again in EBC as a board director. Dr. Lei served
three consecutive terms as an independent director in the IBF Financial

Holdings Co,, Ltd., previously known as Waterland Financial Holding Co., Ltd*
(Bl ZE 2 RIER%Y A R]), a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE:
2889). Dr. Lei obtained a bachelor of arts degree in foreign languages and
literature from the National Taiwan University in June 1980. She has received a
master of arts degree in June 1983 and a doctor of philosophy in June 1996
from the University of Pennsylvania (Philadelphia).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LIN CHIA-WEI

Aged 51, was appointed as the Company's Executive Director on 1 January
2023. He is also a member of Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is currently the vice
general manager of the Investment Department of Eastern Media International
Corporation. Mr. Lin has over 20 years’ experience in investment bank and
private fund. He is a Certified Securities and Investment Analyst of the Republic
of China. He also holds a master degree in Business Administration from
Tunghai University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LU YU-MIN (ALIAS VICKY LU)

Aged 58, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of Executive Committee of the
Company. Ms. Lu is the consultant for cosmetic business of Far Eastern Silo &
Shipping (Panama) S.A. since October 2018. Ms. Lu has over 25 years of
experience in the luxury retail and cosmetics industry with a solid
understanding of Chinese consumers and the Chinese markets. Ms. Lu
previously worked for The Estee Launder Companies for over 14 years,
managing brands including Estee Lauder, Clinique, MAC Cosmetics, Bobbi
Brown, Origins, La Mer, Darphin and Aramis as managing director of the beauty
product group's Taiwan Affiliate from 1999 to 2011. Ms. Lu then became the
vice president and general manager of Bobbi Brown International, overseeing
five global regions based out of its New York headquarter. Ms. Lu also has
experience in management of buying, operations, logistics, sales and marketing
for global brands such as Celine, Salvatore Ferragamo and COACH when she
worked for DFS from 1989 to 1990, and Bally Hong Kong from 1991 to 1992.
From 2014 to 2016, Ms. Lu has also provided end-to-end e-commerce business
services to Shanghai Baozun E-Commerce Limited* (/B EEE T EE AR
A E]). Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree in journalism from National
Chengchi University in June 1986.

*  For identification purpose only.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LIN SHU-HUA

Aged 60, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of both Executive Committee and Audit
Committee of the Company. She is currently also a director of some of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Lin is currently an independent director of Cashbox
Partyworld Co., Ltd. (TWSE: 8359), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Ms. Lin was the vice president of the finance department of Eastern
Home Shopping & Leisure Co., Ltd* GR#R15 5 HER 15 AR 2 7)) between
January 2005 and September 2008. In April 2016, Ms. Lin re-joined the same
company, holding the same position since then. After obtaining her
qualification as a Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China in August
1996, Ms. Lin has since then worked at the finance department of various
companies, including Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd* (RZR BB ERHD BR
A H]), Eastern Multimedia Co., Ltd.* GRAREEERHE R %5 AR A F]) and
Sensen Home Shopping Co., Ltd.* G&#x B B D B R A 7)), accumulating
over 20 years of experience in total. Ms. Lin graduated from the Department of
Accounting at National Chung Hsing University in 1987 and obtained an
executive master degree of business administration from the National Taiwan
University in 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN SHOU-HUANG

Aged 70, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 25
January 2019. He is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
He obtained a master degree in law from the Chinese Culture University and
subsequently obtained a doctoral degree in law from the National Taiwan
Ocean University. He is currently a part-time professor in the Institute of
Marine Law of the National Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Chen used to serve as
parliamentary vice minister of Taiwan Ministry of Justice, the prosecutor of the
Supreme Court Prosecutor’s Office, the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court of
Taiwan and the Head Prosecutor of various districts in Taiwan. During the period
when he served as the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court, he was appointed as
the president of Taiwan After-Care Association and the Association for Victims

Support.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG (ALIAS STEVE CHEN)

Aged 74, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from
National Chung Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry
of Economic Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various
positions and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various
countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from
1974 t0 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information
Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Chen is currently the Board Chairman
of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan and the vice president
of Cross-Strait CEO Summit. He is also a director of HannStar Board Corporation
(TWSE: 5469), Asia Cement Corporation (TWSE: 1102) and Tatung Company
(TWSE: 2371); a managing director and independent director of Formosa
Chemicals and Fibre Corporation (TWSE: 1326); an independent director of
INVENTEC CORPORATION (TWSE: 2356), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Starting from 31 January 2020 and 27 March 2020 respectively, he
is the Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (TWSE: 1314), listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and ceased to be an independent director on 31 January 2020. From
June 2011 until 10 June 2014, he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar
Tech. Co., Ltd. (GTSM: 3452), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He
was a director of GINTECH ENERGY CORPORATION (TWSE: 3514), listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 30 October 2017. He was an independent director
of Walsin Lihwa Corporation (TWSE: 1605), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange,
until 29 May 2020. He was the Board Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of
Powerchip Technology Corporation (GTSM: 5346), listed on the Taiwan GreTai
Securities Market, until 12 August 2020. He was the chairman of the board
of BES Engineering Corporation (TWSE: 2515), until 16 September 2022. He
was also a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan, Teknowledge Development
Corporation and Powerchip Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. LIN TSALM-HSIANG (ALIAS WILLIAM LIN)

Aged 67, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 January 2023. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is currently an independent director of CAPITAL Securities
Corporation, a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE: 6005).
Mr. Lin is also a professor in the Department of Banking & Finance of Tamkang
University and the Honorary Chairman of the Financial Engineering Association
of Taiwan. Mr. Lin used to serve as a director of TWSE and a member of
Securities Listing Review Committee. He also served as an independent director
of Global Lighting Technologies Inc. (TWSE: 4935) and a director of various listed
companies in Taiwan. Mr. Lin has been working at various universities as an
adjunct professor in Asia. He obtained a doctor degree of Finance from Boston
University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG SHIH-CHIEN

Aged 78, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive
Director on 16 November 2018. He is also the Chairman of Nomination
Committee and a member of both Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of Global
Strategic Investment Management Inc, a board director of Tecom Co.,, Ltd.
(TWSE: 2321), Yageo Corporation (TWSE: 2327) and Mitac Inc. (formerly listed
TWSE: 8122), an independent director of TOPKEY Corporation (TWSE: 4536)
and WUS Printed Circuit Co,, Ltd (TWSE: 2316). He was a board director of TECO
Electric and Machinery Co., Ltd (TWSE: 1504) from June 2018 to July 2021 and
an independent director of Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. (TWSE: 6217)
from June 2019 to June 2022. Mr. Yang was a national policy advisor to the
President of the Republic of China between January 2009 and May 2016. Prior
to that, Mr. Yang already worked in the government of the Republic of China for
more than 28 years, such as the director of the Planning and Evaluation Division
of the National Science Council, Senior Vice Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs and Minister of State. Mr. Yang also worked as a research engineer at the
Chung Shan Institute of Science & Technology between November 1973 and
January 1978. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering

from the National Taiwan University in June 1967. Mr. Yang subsequently
obtained a master and a doctor degree in electrical engineering from
Northwestern University in June 1971 and August 1973 respectively.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 59, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 26
October 2018. She is currently also a director of some of the Company's
subsidiaries. She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National
Chengchi University in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since
May 2018 as Chief Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International
Corp., Chief Marketing Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co, Ltd., and
Chief Sales Officer of ETtoday Co., Ltd. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Lin was the
general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to 2017. From 1997 to 2016,
Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. as Chief Operation and
Sales Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice President of Greater China
and Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

Ms. MOK Ming Wai

Ms. Mok has been appointed as a company secretary of the Company since
August 2022. Ms. Mok is currently the Head of Listed Corporate Services of
Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”). Ms. Mok has over 25 years of experience in
professional and internal company secretarial work. Ms. Mok was admitted
as a fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom in December 2011.
(Note: The Company has engaged Tricor as external service provider and
appointed Ms. Mok as the Company’s company secretary since 15 August
2022)
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-
up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and beauty apparatus and (b)
provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical cosmetology
services, skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion and analysis” for
the discussion of business review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Management of Major Risks

Since the Group operates in a highly dynamic and competitive landscape,
continuous and effective risk management is vital for survival in hard periods
affected by the current COVID-19 pandemic. Some major risks currently being
managed are:

Product Competitiveness

Facing increasingly fierce competition in the industry, it is particularly important
to maintain brand and product competitiveness. The Group will continue to
invest, actively develop new product lines and promote the diversification of
the customer base in order to pursue greater development.

Inventory management
Inventory management and control plays a significant role in the Company’s
liquidity since bloated inventories will tie up unnecessary funds.

Online Threats
Online business is the current hot spot in the market. Since 2019, the Group

introduced Korean brands to open its self-owned online business in the
mainland. In the future, in the face of fierce competition in the online business,
the Group will continue to interact with customers through a diversified
channel strategy and provide services to customers of different consumption
and age levels.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Donations for charity

The Group made donations for charity to a total amount of HK$530,000 in year
2022.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material breach of, or non-
compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient
usage of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives
include the recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not been subject to
any fines or other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or

environmental regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year 2022, which will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
~ (www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) under the section of
“Announcements” in due course.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 110.

No interim dividend (2021: Nil) was paid to the shareholders during the year. At
the Board meeting held on 10 March 2023, the Directors did not recommend
the payment of any final dividend (2021: HK$0.003 per share). Details of the
dividends are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, about 9.0% and 17.2% of the Group’s revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services were attributable to the Group's largest
customer and the 5 largest customers combined.

During the year, about 24.2% of the Group’s total purchases (instrument) was
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier, and about 47.0% of the Group's
total purchases was attributable to the Group's 5 largest suppliers combined. To
the best knowledge of the Directors after making all reasonable enquiries, no
Director, close associate of each Director, or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) has any interest in the suppliers and/or
customers mentioned above.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2022 were fair valued
by an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value gain on
investment properties amounting to HK$1,346,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and gain on revaluation amounting to
HK$38,876,000 has been recognised in other comprehensive income.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LEI Chien (alias Joanna LEI)
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
(appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias Ivan PAN)
(resigned on 1 January 2023)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (alias Steve CHEN)
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (alias William LIN)
(appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant
(resigned on 1 January 2023)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to this article, Mr. LIN Chia-
Wei and Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang, the Directors appointed by the Board after the
holding of the last AGM on 25 May 2022, will hold office until the forthcoming
AGM.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN Shou-
Huang shall retire by rotation pursuant this article.

All the above-mentioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
3/ proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
p_ withdraw if appropriate.
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES FEREEERS

The Chairperson of the Board and the members of each of the committees of FAREBEARESZTIHEH  EESTER
the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were: RARIETELZEGZKENT ¢
Chairperson *E

Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board)) EEELEFSEE)

Members of Audit Committee: BEREEEHE

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman) R ME o A (F /)

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua MOREE 2+

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien itk

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (resigned on 1 January 2023)

Members of Remuneration Committee:
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (Chairman)

(appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
Dr. LEI Chien
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei (appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (resigned on 1 January 2023)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (resigned on 1 January 2023)

Members of Executive Committee:

Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson)

Ms. LU Yu-Min

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei (appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (resigned on 1 January 2023)

Members of Nomination Committee:

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Dr. LEI Chien

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei (appointed on 1 January 2023)

Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang (appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (resigned on 1 January 2023)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (resigned on 1 January 2023)
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) FEREEZEE®

The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the ~ FEREINEHEAREZ T B - AR BIEX
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well ZE&€ - HMEZE S - RITEEGNIIREREE
as the Chairperson of the Company as of date of this report are set out below: GIHEMABARKRREERE

Board Committees

EEZEE
Audit Remuneration Executive Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors EZgHE ERZEE FMzeSe BITEES REZES
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) EEELEFZEE) - M C M
Mr. LIN Chia-Wei MREEE - M M M
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRIZT = = M =
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T M = M =
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFIE L% - - M -
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTEE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRimfE 4 C M S M
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien HERELE M M S C
Mr. LIN Tsalm-Hsiang MEFLE M C = M
Notes: Btz -
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C EFREZZEENEF

M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEFEZEENKE




DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$23,704,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors has entered into a
Director's service contract with the Company for an initial term of one year from
1 January 2023, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other
party at least one month’s notice in writing. The Director’s service contract of
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan was not renewed.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of one year from 1 January
2023, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other party at least
one month notice’s in writing. The letter of appointment of Mr. LU Chi-Chant
was not renewed.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors, chief executives and

senior management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief executives on a named
basis and the senior management by band, are set out in notes 15 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Permitted indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as known to any Directors, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their close associates had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company'’s
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants’ contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons. The
share option scheme of the Company expired on 12 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option was granted,
cancelled or lapsed under the share option scheme.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New Scheme
was nil.

SHARE AWARDS

The Company
Particulars of the Company’s share awards schemes are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 25 May 2022, the Company adopted two share award schemes, namely
Scheme | and Scheme Il (together, the “Share Award Schemes”). The purpose
and objective of Scheme | are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
Eligible Participants and to closely align executive interests with the growth and
financial achievements of the Group; and (i) to provide a performance-driven
long-term incentive award to motivate and retain key senior management.

The purpose and objective of Scheme Il are: (i) to recognise the contributions
by certain Eligible Participants and to provide them with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group; and (i)
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share award was granted under
the Share Award Schemes.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and share award schemes disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FERR®
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEXTRGREBERD ZFR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

AATEREEIEBITZEBR

Approximate

percentage of
Number of theissued
ordinary shares  share capital of
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest beneficially held the Company
BERERFA MGERRRERT
TERRHE BB Mzt RERME ZERHEE REABLBEIL
Eastern Media International Corporation 1 Interest of controlled companies 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
("EMIC")
RARBERBRD AR A A RSN R R
(RFARE D)
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. 1 Beneficial owner 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
EREHMMEEEE)ROHBER AR EREAA
CHAO Shih-Heng 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
= S INGIE 0
Good Titanic Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
RIEHIA AR
Insbro Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
REZEBRAR AR EnEBA
TSAl Yen-Yu 3 Interest of controlled companies 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
2EE RIS AR
LEE Ming-Ta 4 Interest of spouse 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
FRRE Ao B s
Next Focus Holdings Limited 5  Beneficial owner/Interest of 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
controlled companies
¥t 2PNt VNG £
Starsign International Limited 5 Interest of controlled companies 292,958,524(L) 14.63%
RYEHIA AR
Standard Cosmos Limited 5 Beneficial Owner/Interest of 292,958,524(L) 14.63%

L :Long position

controlled companies
¥t PN $ VNG £
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

m

Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EMIC. As
such, the shares of the Company in which Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A.
is interested were attributable to EMIC.

Insbro Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Good Titanic Limited, which is in
turn owned as to 100% by Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng. Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng is the sole
director of each of Insbro Holdings Limited and Good Titanic Limited. As such,
the shares of the Company in which Insbro Holdings Limited is interested were
attributable to Good Titanic Limited and Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited. Next Focus
Holdings Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and
interest of 445,315,083 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings
Limited was attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 445,315,083 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to the SFO.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly holds 152,356,559 shares of the Company
and directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. Starsign International
Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited, which, in turn, is
the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group
Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 290,618,524 shares of
the Company collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa
Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the
Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 292,958,524 shares
of the Company) were attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign
International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors are not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
p, the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE s
The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons: AEEDEHEBEATEITIIIERRS ¢
1. On 16 April 2019, Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited 1. RZ-ZZ—HAFMA+/ H  BRELEY
(BEAZEYMRERMBR AR (‘Taiwan NB"), an indirect wholly- RERNDERAT(EEB8RED (KA
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a goods procurement R EZE2EMB AR ERAREE AR
agreement (the "New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement”) with BRAB([RAREE])ET K
Eastern Health Biomedical Co, Ltd. CRAREEREE BR A F)) (‘Eastern w(FRREREBEHZ]D - FIRRRE
Health”). Major terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement FEHEZ s EE G T

are summarised below:

Nature of transactions

REME

Purpose

=R

Pricing

EE

Annual caps

FELR

During the term of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, Taiwan NB may from time
to time make wholesale purchase of products from Eastern Health such as health supplements
for on-sale to end customers.

RETRARERRBIHRBRA - 8& 8 AREA] IR RARGE R I 2 5REE m (FI R
M) - LRRIGEEFEE o

The Directors consider that the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement provides a
framework to allow the Group to purchase products which the Group currently has no in-house
capability to manufacture but does sell to end customers as one of its ordinary and usual course
of business, e.g. health supplements at a discount, thereby reducing the procurement costs of
the Group and would help improve the financial performance of the Group.

BEERR - FRREERRBHERE—IER  USAEERTHERBAEERR
WEAMBENEEBRAKGEFHEZER  EREP—EARER—REKBRE
(R ) - R EAEENRKBR AL BPRAERNEE 2 HBRE -

Depending on the nature of the products, at 60%~70% discount to the relevant market retailing
price.
REBEREE - HEATSTEE 2600E 70047

Pursuant to the terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased under the New Eastern Health
Procurement Agreement shall be as follows:

RBFTRREFERBRZE GR - BETRRERRERZE TREZARASED
FELRMT :

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()
1. (Continued) . (&
NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,644,675) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;
RZZE—NFEAA—RBEZT-NAF+=A=+—AE A& %300000007T (H
B R #77,644,675787T)
NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
R-ZE_TF-A—-—HBE_ZT-TF+-A=1+—HERH 5800000007 (1§
& 7 4920,385,8017 7T) ¢
NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,223,377) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and
RE_—F—-A—HE_ZT_—F+-A=+—HERNHSH¥150,0000007T
(FBE 149382233778 7T) + &
NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
RZBZ—F—A—HBE-T=_FFA=1+—HEAEHH & %¥300000007T(HE
7 #4920,385,80178 7T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(3% - BIERAAR  FELRDIERARAIBHA-S-NFRA+LAZBRAMBERE
2 (BN1.0078 7T K T & #53.92437T) E B
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
R BT NEFRA-—HEZE__FRA=+—H-
As at 31 December 2022, Far Rich International Corporation (32 & & RZEZ—_F+ZRA=+—H &=
BR% D B R A a)) ("Far Rich”) could, directly or indirectly, control the BROBRAFR(ES)EELBEE
composition of a majority of the board of directors of EMIC. As such, Far FIRRBEAREETS RLH X ENHERK -
Rich was considered the holding company of EMIC for the purposes of At - RIBELETHRA - BREHEBER
the Listing Rules. As Eastern Health was an indirect non-wholly owned B ZIERAF - BERRRERRES
subsidiary of Far Rich owned indirectly as to 90% of its shareholding by ZEEIEEEMBLAR  AE=HEEE
Far Rich, Eastern Health was a connected person of the Company for the BH0RME - BIFLETRA - RARRE
purposes of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under RAEXRRNG ZBEAL - MERKEEER
the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement constituted continuing BHREBETRET R ZAERARQT
connected transactions of the Company. LIBRAER S ©




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

2.

On 16 April 2019, Natural Beauty China Holding Company Limited (B %A
EP BN AR A R]) ('NB China”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a service agreement (“New Strawberry
Service Agreement”) in relation to the provision of Strawberry Services
(as defined below) with Strawberry Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
("Strawberry"), pursuant to which NB China will, within the validity period
of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the Strawberry
Services to Strawberry for a service fee (“Service Fees”).

Strawberry Services refer to services relating to the marketing and sales
of a variety of goods sold by Strawberry through the Strawberry Website
(being a website with domain name http://www.strawberrynet.com

owned and operated by Strawberry), including without limitation
skincare, make-up and haircare products, perfume, men'’s cologne and
health foods (“Strawberry Goods”) through the NB Website (being a
website with domain name http:/strawberrynet.nblife.com owned and
operated by NB China), including (a) goods display and merchandising,
goods search, purchase order creation, transaction management,
payment and customer services enhancement; and (b) increasing goods
exposure, integrated brand marketing, training for operations and sales,
to be provided by NB China to Strawberry.

Major terms of the New Strawberry Service Agreement are summarised
below:

Subject matter

FTEEBH
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REXZREENRERGHNZ

=
2.

i (48)

RZZE—NRFWMA+A BAEF
HERBERARTBAZFRRD (KA
RlzEEZENB AR EStrawberry
Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
([strawberry]) gt 12 it Strawberry iR 7 (E &
BN RT3 AR 7 sk ([ % Strawberry AR 75 153
&) o Bk B AREAH B AR Strawberry
R ek < B AR Al Strawberry 32
Strawberry R7% - AURER IR 7% & ([ AR 7%
&) o

Strawberry RIGIEE AER BB EBRH
ARERM(ANBEAEFREEREE
18, B http://strawberrynet.nblife.com 2
MWub) A Strawberry 24t A 7 & 84
K g8 StrawberryfEStrawberry 43 4
(BPAStrawberrylEAE R LB Z A
http://www.strawberrynet.com 2 48y
EgEmn(BEETRRNESER ¥
MEEEER - K- BrhiEkEE
R m([Strawbernryfan])) 2 k7% - B1E
QEMEBRIEE  BMoER - KEF
BAEK  RHIEE - FTREEPRBKRE
FoROENEREBLE  BELEE
5 - BERHERE -

FhStrawberry R 7% 9 5 2 £ 2 16 sR 8kt a0
T~

NB China will, within the validity period of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the
Strawberry Services to Strawberry for the Service Fees.

B A E P B 1E T Strawberry R 75 1 78 2 A8 2R A [A) Strawberry 2 f Strawberry AR 75+ BA
WER R & -

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGHNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) =)
2. (Continued) 2. (B
Nature of transactions During the provision of the Strawberry Services by NB China:
REME B SR E P B Strawberry IR TS A HARS

(a)

the parties will actively cooperate with a view to determine (and NB China shall have the
discretion to make the final decision on) the specific items and price of the Strawberry
Goods to be displayed, and the manner of such display, on the NB Website;

AR BERERAEGE  EHEEE(REAEZTESEARNSEAR TIEE
VR SR TE) L B AEMUER R Z Strawbery B MM B EY M » BREBTA
7 s

NB China will provide the Strawberry Services with a view to promote and/or facilitate
the placing of purchase orders (“Purchase Orders”) and payment of purchase price by
customers for the Strawberry Goods through the NB Website;

B AREP B Rt Strawbeny RS - EEMB R RRERFFEEAEB/ITE
StrawberryB m AV ERAERT B ((FRBBRT B ) R IRBER

NB China will, promptly upon receipt of Purchase Orders, pass the Purchase Orders to
Strawberry. Upon receipt of the Purchase Orders from NB China, Strawberry will promptly
pack and deliver the ordered Strawberry Goods in accordance with the Purchase Orders
to the customers in a manner mutually agreed by the parties;

BAZH BRI BIREER] BRI S IRB T B8 X Strawberry < R B AE
FEIRERIEET 1% - Strawberry G BIRFIR B IR BB R] B8 B 2 5T BE MY Strawberry B S P
AN EEREZ A ARNES

NB China will, through payment services available to customers on the NB Website,
collect the purchase price for the Strawberry Goods purchased through the NB Website
from the customers for and on behalf of Strawberry; and

BAEFEKE BT FE B AEBILEBENFRIRBR K Strawberry@ & 5 Y ER
B R B UL FTER B Strawberry B AV EREB(E © I

NB China will, after deducting the Service Fees and other relevant charges, return the
collected purchase price to Strawberry in accordance with the terms and conditions
under the New Strawberry Service Agreement.

BAEF BB R NRIRESE R HEMAEEERE - RIBEF Strawberry BRI 13 2 15
R NG | Strawberry 3R 38 FTUCER A BR BB (B -



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ (4)
2. (Continued) 2. (&
Service Fees NB China is entitled to the Service Fees. For each Purchase Order accepted by Strawberry, NB

China will charge Service Fees at 25% of the gross item price of the Strawberry Goods ordered
therein as indicated on the Strawberry Website as at the date of such Purchase Order.

BR % & BAZEPEEEKERBEE o FStrawberyZEMH BEHBEIIEMS - BRAEFEF
LA EREEET B B HAStrawberry A8 U BT 7R BT ER B Strawberry 7 an 89 97 i 2818 89 25% 4 BR AR

BE -
Annual caps Pursuant to the terms of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, the annual cap of the Services
Fees payable by Strawberry to NB China thereunder shall be as follows:
FELR R IEF Strawberry BR 75 173 3% 2 {6638 StrawberrylR L FEM B AR EP B S 2 IRIE B F
ELERAT
HK$5,250,000 from 1 June 2019 to 31 December 2019;
RIB-NFARA-—RAE_ZT-NF+ZA=+—HER5250000/ET
HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
R-ZB_ZEF-RA—-RAE_T_TF+_-A=-+—HER9000000/ T
HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021; and
R-B-_—F—A—HAE-_T-—F+-A=+—HER000000ETT : &
HK$3,750,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 May 2022.
N-_E-——F—A—HE-_ZT-_FAA=+—HEAE37500005T °
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
R B_ZE-hEFRA—BEZ__FAA=+—H-

As disclosed in item 5 below, the Directors voluntarily treat Eastern Home
as a connected person of the Company. As at 31 December 2022, since (a)
Strawberry is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Eastern Home
Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd. ("Eastern Home") owned indirectly as to 76%
of its shareholding by Eastern Home and (b) the New Strawberry Service
Agreement was entered into on the same date as the other connected
transactions disclosed in items 1 and 3 of this section, the Directors
consider that it is also appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry as a
connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the Strawberry Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.
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WIATXESEHAER  EFHRARSG
SBEBBEARATZHEEAL - R
ZTEZZF+ZA=+—8 AR
Strawberry BEBRB HBERMHBR A F)
([RREIE) 2 BB EMB AT
BRRREZEREEE L 76%R%E K (b)
#rstrawberry R 1k T BRANET 51 K 3
BREENEMEAERSRRABE -
ot - EER A Strawberry B FEIR &
ARAFRlzBEATTIBEE - BEME
FEBSF ETRAE T UAE - Ft - 5
Strawberry RIS BB B T HET 2 X 518
RARNT Z HFERERS °

ST FER AREEYRBERAR 71



Directors’ Report

EEEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()

3. On 16 April 2019, NB China as licensor entered into a licence agreement 3.  R-ZZ—AFEM A+ H > BARER
with Eastern Home as licensee (the “Eastern Home Trademark Licence (WEBHA A7) BRHRESE(EAKFR]
Agreement”). Major terms of the Eastern Home Trademark Licence J7) T AR ek ([ RAR 1S BB B IR AT Al
Agreement are summarised below: W&l  c RASHBERESFIBENE

TRFB AT
Nature of transactions NB China agreed to grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use the certain trademarks

REME

Purpose

B

Royalty

ERE

owned by the Company (the “Trademarks”) in respect of products mutually agreed between
the parties.

In respect of such mutually agreed products, Eastern Home will be able to (i) reproduce and/
or print the Trademarks on the packaging and marketing materials of such products and (ii)
broadcast, transmit, distribute and/or publish such marketing materials during the process of
marketing and sales of such products.

BAETBEREMNRREZIBEX THEBTA - UEHBEHENEREAARF
EEmETER(EERD -

an BB R AR £

BNREETHEBENER  RABIBRENNELTE
s THER - i DBR %

BRR/RYDEE | ROEXSERNSHRLERE
BHS LRI o

The Directors consider that the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement will increase the
exposure of the Group's brand name while simultaneously generate a new revenue stream for
the Group without substantial additional costs.

BEERR RRGIBRESAHESRACEERRENELE  AKAREETS
HHTEVBATIR - MAGEERSEINLA o

Eastern Home shall pay NB China a royalty for the licence to use the Trademarks (the “Royalty”)
at 3% of the net proceeds from the sale of mutually agreed products through various channels
operated by Eastern Home (including but not limited to television, internet and catalogues etc.)
to the end customers.
RRGSBEAEFIERIREMAREZTREINERE(ERE])  2ERBEBR
REHBRENZREE(BRHEETRNER AR RERFHZI) MRREFPHESE
77 ¥8 5 195 5E B EE fn P 1S SRRV F R 3% o
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EEEWMESE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ (4)
3. (Continued) 3. (&
Annual caps Pursuant to the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the
aggregate Royalty payable by Eastern Home to NB China thereunder shall be as follows:
FE LR RERRGHBERRAHE  RAGIBRUERAEAEZTREIN 2 BERENF
EERMAT

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;

RZB-NFARAA-—BEZ-AF+ZA=1+—HBHERH 5150000007 (1§
B #%93,822,338787T)

NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,096,450) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;

R-ZE_TF-A—HE_ZT_TF+_-A=1+—HERH 5200000007 (1§
B #95,096,4507 7T)

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,644,675) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and

RZEZ—F—A—HE_T=—F+=A=+—HEA 4300000007 (1§
ERAI76446758TT) K&

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
RZEZ—F—A—HEZZE-_—FRA=+—HEAIFE15000000T(HE
P #93,822,33887T) °

If the annual cap is reached for a particular year, there will not be any further Royalty payable
by Eastern Home to NB China for that year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Eastern Home will
continue to be able to use the Trademarks.

IR —FEEINFELR  ARREIBRZFESTERBEAXTTEINESE
RE -BEALERTE RAGHBNIEEERAER -

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

(W3E : BEsBAR S LRNVERAATDASA-S—AFRA+LE 2 BRFRENE
K (B11.00/8 7T 3L ¥ & #53.924370) 3 BO

Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
HARR —E-NAERA-BEZZE-_—_FHRA=+—AH-
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REXZREENRERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()

3. (Continued) RN C-))
As disclosed in item 5 below, the Directors consider that it is appropriate AT XESEMEE EERABFRER
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company BH5EEEEAERRR ZEEALTBHE
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As E - BAREEST LTRAEHAE -
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Trademark Eit - KRB HEEZT A BRE T #
Licence Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the EIRGERARRIZBFEBRERS -
Company.

4. On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the RZZBE-ZTF+LA=-+=H:  8E&8A4

Company, entered into the ET New Media Supplemental Agreement with
ET New Media Holding Limited Company (3R #x #8245 A B 17 B IR
2 A)('ET New Media”) to amend the Existing ET New Media Cooperation
Agreement.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Media
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with ET New Media to further amend the
Existing ET New Media Cooperation Agreement. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Existing ET New Media Cooperation Agreement as amended
by the ET New Media Supplemental Agreement and the ET New Media
Supplemental Agreement (Il) ("Amended ET New Media Agreement”) is
one single contract.

The major terms of the Amended ET New Media Agreement are
summarised as follows:

TERFFRBIERRODBERAA(RER
FRETIL B 1) AT S SR AR IK AR A 7T 15 DA
[ERTIRE RARNIRRE S (E W -

RZZEZZEF+A=Z+=H ' aEBERA
FHBERNEEIIVRRTEEHTR
FB(OIE—FETRERRTEERS
Bt - BRER  CRHRFEEEHT
ERRRTEEE R HE (D) IETY
BBERRNEBEERE(EBITRA
FEEmE)A—HEBEY -

WIS R B S B R
T

Advertising Service Taiwan NB agrees to engage ET New Media to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements
and to organise media events, with a view to enhancing the image of the “Natural Beauty”
brand and to raise public awareness on the brand (“Advertising Service”). Taiwan NB may from
time to time instruct ET New Media to carry out advertising projects. The parties shall separately
agree on the timing, manner and fees of each specific advertising project at the appropriate
time.
&&= R REBAXRAEZERFNERIUE BHREREESEBEREY  BERTT
[BAEImBERRENERENRARALE(BERBE] - 888 AEAITERETR
RARFHEBRARESER - sINNRER DB ERERFERESEE 2KE - TR
EF -

Pricing of Advertising For each advertising project, ET New Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list price

Service of such project (being prices ET New Media offer to its clients which are Independent Third
Parties).
& & RS EE REEESHEAMS  RRNEBERUEZERNRERRRATERAEBYE =7

BERREH
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EEEWMESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continved)  TE2% (48)
4,

(Continued)

4. (B

Annual Cap The fees payable by Taiwan NB to ET New Media under the Amended ET New Media
Agreement shall be subject to the following annual caps:
FE LR BRIBLETTRANEB R IER - S EEAXBREERARRNEBI N ERANF
ELERIT :
NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
R-ZE-EF-A—RE_T-_TF+_-A=1+—HREARHE%21,0000007T(#8
B H#I5472455%87T)
NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021;
R-B-—F—A—BE-T=-—F+=ZA=+—HEAH&¥350000007T (18
2 #499,120,759% 7T)
NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022; and
AT - —F—A—HE-E-__F+=-A=+—HBE A E%560000007T (18
EHK14593214%87T) ¢+ &
NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.
KRB =F—-R—-HEZZ-_=FN\A=+—HERHE%700000007T(HHE
R #718,241,518%7T) ©
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
(FF3E - RIEHRBARSE  FELRDERAARBRAT-_TF+A=+THZARMEENE
R (BN1.007 T3 ¥ & #3.83747T) EE)
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.
HAR BTG A RAEZE-_ZE-_=FNA=+—8-
As of 31 December 2022, FESS is a controlling shareholder of the RZEBZZF+ZA=+—H &XE
Company, and EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS. As ET New Media EMER/ARR AIERARER - MR AR
is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of EMIC owned directly as to BIREEREMEZ100%EZERE - AR
approximately 93.90% of its shareholding by EMIC, ET New Media is a RARNERARRER 2 EEIEZEM
connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules. BAR - RABBREEES E£93.90%
As such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended ET New AR H#E - IRIE ETARA - RARMKEER
Media Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the RRRZEEAT - Bt - LIEFTRHR

MRRHRATRHETZIRIBUAR
BZFBHERS -

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()

5. On22July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Supplemental 5. R-ZE-ZF+HF-+-H AEAR
Agreement with Eastern Home, a company incorporated in Taiwan FHERGSHBE(—HE/ETMX I
with limited liability, to amend the Existing Eastern Home Consignment BRRBD I RRE S BT RS
Agreement. FIRBRARESHERERE -

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home RZE-ZZTF+A=+=R0" ' aZERA
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with Eastern Home to further amend the FHARBIBILRREIERRB
Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement. For the avoidance of F(ONERERRGEIERERHRIE
doubt, the Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement as amended HE—FHER] - RRER  BRRES
by the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Home BRAHEEIEREIERTHE(S)
Supplemental Agreement (Il) (the “Amended Eastern Home Agreement”) BEINRERREIERBERE (B

is one single contract.

ARRGHEHE) S —NEBRL -

Major terms of the Amended Eastern Home Agreement, are summarised KETRRESBHEN T ZERREM
below: mr

Products Procurement

EmRE

Pricing of Products
Procurement

EmXBES

Taiwan NB will engage Eastern Home to sell certain products manufactured, distributed or sold
by Taiwan NB (the “Target Products”) which are selected by Eastern Home as target products (the
“Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise Eastern Home to sell the Target Products to
end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. Eastern Home shall
be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers through its own
distribution channels or third party distribution channels.

BEBRESKZERREHBHEEEASMEE  DHIHEEZETER(ERE
Eml) MEKRSHBEEZFERELESER(ERRKE] - ZEAXKER

REZBAKKEPHERRERIIZENEREBREENE - RREHBAEE
BEASAHREAF =T HHERENKRHEPHHIHERRER -

The price of the Target Products sold by Taiwan NB to Eastern Home shall be at 50% to 70%
discount to their retail price, or 80% to 90% discount to their retail price if they are test products,
sales-only products or near expiry products.
REBERXARKSIBLEZEREMEBERARETEES0%E70%ZHTH » Hfd
RADER BHEEERNBOINNZER  AEBRAREZTEE0%EI% L I
Eil
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) 12 (4)

5.

(Continued)

Sale Commission

HERE

Costs

RS

Trademark licence

[z 5]

5. (8

Taiwan NB shall pay an annual sale commission to Eastern Home as follows: (a) if the product
sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a year amounts to
NT$300,000,000 to NT$500,000,000, 5% of the product sales amount; (b) if the product
sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a year amounts to
NT$500,000,000 to NT$800,000,000, 7% of the product sales amount exceeding NT$500,000,000;
and () if the product sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a
year amounts to more than NT$800,000,000, 10% of the product sales amount exceeding
NT$800,000,000.

REBAXAMNRRGIBXNFEHERSNOT : @REFEREZEAERERR
BURRTZE 2 EmEEFEDF 4 %300,000,0007T £ #1 & #500,000,0007T + A&
EmHEEN% ONEFEREEAETRERRKBHRRGIBLERHERE
|37 & %500,000,0007T % & #800,000,0007T + Bl &8 i@ ¥ & #500,000,0007T 2 fh #4 &
BH7%: ROMEFEREAAEHERRKBHRRGIB ERHERBRTA
#800,000,0007T - Bl /7R 3 %7 & #800,000,0007T 2 an $H E BE Y 10% ©

Taiwan NB shall be responsible for the costs in relation to the sale of Product Procurements
to end customers, including the costs associated with the marketing, transportation and
programme production (the “Costs”).
REBRERAAEMKGEPHEERKBAMNKE - RIFEEH  ERKRREE
ERBERATRKAD -

Eastern Home shall pay Taiwan NB a royalty for licence to use the Trademarks (the “Royalty”).

RABHBANEFAIERABERAGEEREINERE(ERE]D -

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF

77




Directors’ Report

EEERES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

5. (Continued) 5. (#8)

Pricing of Trademark licence The Royalty is calculated at 3%—10% of the selling price (before tax; and after deduction of any
discount) from the sale of mutually agreed products.

BT EE EREBREHERRBEEMEBGRTA - REHBREMITH) Z3%E10%:TH ©
Annual Cap The annual caps under the Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement were determined

based on net proceeds of sale of Target Products to end customers from Eastern Home (i.e.
sale proceeds from end customers after deduction of commission and costs of sales) (“Net
Proceeds”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Home
Supplemental Agreement (Il), the annual caps in respect of Products Procurement (covering the
Sale Commission) will be determined based on the sales amount that Eastern Home would pay
to Taiwan NB when Eastern Home made the purchase.

Such annual caps in relation to Products Procurement, and annual caps relating to the
aggregate Costs payable by Taiwan NB and the aggregate Royalty payable by Eastern Home
under the Amended Eastern Home Agreement are set out as follows:

FELR BERRGIBREBZE T ZFE LRDIBREBERREIBOLGESHEBRER
ZAEFIEFRE NG HEERE MR ALK B KinE P 2 HEMSIE) ([PrS5IE
FRRDEE -

RERREIBAAHELRREIBA AR (D) 26 EmRBEBEFE LR
(REHERD)BRERRCSIBRERREIBIFLRBEREN S EEREINZH
EHET -

BELEIRRASZBWE  FHERRBNFE LRIAREREAXENEKRE
LERBHBERMNEERERBNFE EREINWOT

NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$42,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,944,911) for the Costs and
NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Royalty from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZEZEF-—A—BEZZT-TF+A=1+—0 " FIBFEFENFE
PR FE 7 %7 & % 280,000,0007T (1H E 70 4972,966,071787T) * RAFEE FIRER
¥ 6 #42,000,0007C (FHE R 491094491178 7T) - FREBMFE LIREAT A
70,000,0007T (1B & 7 4718,241,518787T)
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REXZREENRERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ RE# (1)

5.

(Continued)

Term

AR

(Note:

5. (8

NT$560,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$145,932,142) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$67,200,000 (equivalent approximately HK$17,511,857) for the Costs and
NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the Royalty from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021;

RB - —F—A—RBE_ZE-_—H+-A=+—HERBIFENFEL
PR JiE /5 %7 & % 560,000,0007T (FH & 7 49145,932,14287T) * BRANFEE LRER
1A #67,200,0007C (FHE R 417,511,85787) - FREBMFE LREAF A
140,000,0007T (F6& 7 4936,483,035/87T)

NT$840,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$218,898,212) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,362,277) for the Costs and
NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Royalty from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
RIEB-_—_F—-—A—HBE_ZT__F+_A=+—"HFRBFEFENFEL
PR & /5 3T & 15840,000,0007T (AB & 74 49218,898,2127870) + BN AMFE LIREA
16 %105,000,0007C (FAE R 27,362,277 7L) » FRENFE LREATAK
280,000,0007T (FHE 7L 4972,966 07178 TT) © &

NT$1,050,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$273,622,765) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the Costs and
NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Royalty from 1
January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
RZZEZ=F—A—BE-ZT_=F)\A=+—"HABRBIFENFE LR
Ji& 7% & #61,050,000,0007T (M & PR 49273,622,7658 7T) » AR FE LIRER
1 & %140,000,0007T (FEE PR 4936,483,035%8 7T) * FREBENFE LREANAK
280,000,0007T (FRE 70 4972,966,071787T) °

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(M5t : RIESIAARE  FELRDERARTNBRAR T -_ZF T A=TRZBRHAARENE

From

1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.
BEZT-NFRA-HEZZ-_=F\A=+—H-

3 (BM1.0078 7T K37 & #63.83747T) B0

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

5.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Eastern Home was accounted
for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of EMIC as a
subsidiary thereof since EMIC could during the relevant time, directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home. Since 1 January 2019, EMIC can no longer directly or
indirectly control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home, and since then Eastern Home has not been and will not
be accounted for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts
of EMIC as a subsidiary thereof.

However, given that (a) EMIC is holding, directly or indirectly, altogether
approximately 25.87% of the shareholding in Eastern Home, (b) one
member of the board of directors of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Liao
Shang-Wen, is also the chairperson of EMIC, (c) FESS is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS,
(d) the vice president of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is
the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of
the issued Shares, (€) one member of the board of directors of Eastern
Home, namely Dr. Lei Chien, is also the chairperson and an executive
Director of the Company, (f) the finance vice president of Eastern Home,
namely Ms. Lin Shu-Hua, is also a non-executive Director of the Company;
and (g) the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern
Home Supplemental Agreement (Il) were entered into within a short
period of time as the other transactions disclosed in item 4 and items
6 to 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended Eastern
Home Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

AEXZREERERGHNZ

R om)
5.

(&)

BHE-_Z-N\FE+_A=+—HILF
B RRASIBELARREBEZHMEBR
ARRABR 2 EEZEEAKRERAG
ABR - TR RZER N AESREAR
BERIHERENRRGIBESTEARS
BRENER - EZT—NF—A—H
- RRERENBERREREHIRZR
SEBEFEARZHKENER - MA
- RASZIEUELBTBIELSRRZR
B 2 M B A BNRRER 2 EEZE
BEREANGHARK-

R AREQEREBREEZXEERSAE
HABHEA L 2587%HE  (b)HEHK
BBz —RESSKE BB
E)MABRBRBEEZERF  OREEFHEM
BARQRZIERERE  REZRERA
BEERREEFEMEI00%EZRE : (d)
BERESEZEAESR(AIBEET RE)
BEREZH—SKREZBEEA  HBEH
2276% 2 BETRG  @RHKSIEZ
—REEeXEEEEEDINEAR
RIZERFATES  VRHRBHEZ
BB (BAIMRERZ L) MB AR R
ZHERTEF  ROREREIBHRH
EERREIBHERA DR (D) WRAE
FAERFECEEMPRECHEHMRFHR
RN  EERABEREIE
BREGAARRIZHEEALTEBRE 8
EAIEB ST R AIE14AE - FHIlE © 45
BIRZEIBHEBETTRETZRS
BN T 2 FHERERS -




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global Supplemental
Agreement with Eastern Global Business Co,, Ltd. CRAR 2 ERE 2K H
B R 7]), formerly known as Eastern Tenmax Direct Co,, Ltd. (RF}
KEMTE D BR 2R A]), a company incorporated in Taiwan with
limited liability ("Eastern Global”) to amend the Existing Eastern Global
Procurement Agreement.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with Eastern Global to further amend the
Existing Eastern Global Procurement Agreement. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Existing Eastern Global Procurement Agreement as amended
by the Eastern Global Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) (the “Amended Eastern Global Agreement”)
is one single contract.

The major terms of the Amended Eastern Global Agreement are
summarised as follows:

Directors’ Report
EEEWMESE

REXZREENRERGHNZ

=
6.

5 (&)

R-EBE-ZTEL+A-+-0  488A
THRREIREERMNBRAF (FIER
KRAECEHBEROBRAT  —ERAE
B 2 BRAT  [RHEZER]) -
FINERERE AR EAETREER
EIEREZ -

RZZE_TFTA-+=H /EaA
TERREHRIATLRREKBRIHZ
(ZINERERREIRRB & (F H#E
—HHER] - RRLERME  BRHRENM
FHHBELRFRERFERBE (CERTH
RERREHAR G (RETRFEE
B A —EBRL -

RIEFTR AR IR R 60 = 2Rt an
T~

Nature of transactions Eastern Global may from time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as
health supplements, skin-care products and cosmetic products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such
products to Eastern Global at 60%~70% discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern
Global.

XHEME RAREHATREERBREEAEERWINRER - BEm&Mtim) RaEaA

EEIRIBETEB Z60%E70% 2 THAEZEFHEZXSER -
e o

AHRZREHETT

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()
6. (Continued) 6. (8B
Annual Cap The aggregate amount of purchase to be made by Eastern Global under the Amended Eastern
Global Agreement shall be subject to the following annual caps:
FE LR BELETRRERBZ 2B RASHKERILFEL 2 RELSBEFEE LRN
™
NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
RZE-_TF—A—BEZTTF+-A=1+—HEARHH & %140,000,0007T
(& 7 4936,483,03578 7T)
NT$350,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$91,207,588) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021;
R-B-_—F—-A—-HBE_Z-_—F+ZA=+—HERHNE%350,000,0007T
(FBE R #91,207,588/8 L)
NT$700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$182,415,177) from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022; and
R-E - —_HF—-A—-HE_ZT__F+_-A=+—RERNHS¥700,000,0007T
(FHE R 18241517778 7T) + &
NT$840,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$218,898,212) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.
R-ZB-_=F—-—A—-BZE-T-_=F/\A=+—HERH & %840,000,0007T (18
E R #7218898212/87T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
(3% : RIERARSE  FELRDERARAFRARA-Z_ZTF+A=+H ZARMAEENE
R (BM1.0078 T 537 & #653.837470) E B
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.

SR A= hEAR—BE-T-=F/\A=+—A8-




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, each of
Eastern Global and its ultimate beneficial owners was an Independent
Third Party. However, given that (a) one member of the board of directors
of Eastern Global, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is the sole ultimate
beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of the issued Shares,
and (b) the Eastern Global Supplemental Agreement and Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) were entered into within a short period
of time as the other connected transactions disclosed in items 4, 5 and
7 to 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
voluntarily treat Eastern Global as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended Eastern
Global Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Retail Procurement
Agreement with Eastern New Retail Department Co., Ltd. (REZRFTEE
BERMHBAERAT), a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited
liability (“ET New Retail”).

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Retail
Procurement Supplemental Agreement with ET New Retail to amend
certain terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement.

Major terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement and the ET
New Retail Procurement Supplemental Agreement are summarised
below:

Products Procurement

Directors’ Report
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R-E-_—_F+_A=+—H EBE=
ER—YEBEREBMAM - FIBRM
B RREEEREEKEREAATE
BBME=TT o A ER@QEREIX
2—REZgKE (AEtt=EE) AR
KW —SKRESHEAA  MRERFSE
22.76% 2 B EITIRD © RbO)EREKH
TELRARDFERBZE () WRAK
B4 SRE/ZBEMEEZHME
ERXHGRERHRNEY EERAKRE
HREKEBRAARR B EALBE
& BAREET EMHRAUEI4AE - B
b ST RAR IR ETE T E®T
RHGBRARBZ FEBERS -

—E-TFLA-+-H BEBRE
HERFTTETERDERAR(—HER
BEEMKIZERAR - [FEE]E]
YRRNEERERR -

RZZE-ZEF+A-+=H ' aEERA
FHRERNTEIURARTTERER
RHBAETRARTTERBIHZNE
FA&ERK -

RN TERBHBALRARNTERE
i E R IEFBRI T

Taiwan NB will engage ET New Retail to sell certain products (the “Target Products”) supplied

by Taiwan NB (the “Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise ET New Retail to sell the

Target Products to end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. ET

New Retail shall be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers
through its own distribution channels or third party distribution channels.

R ABAREBERESFTERESE

BASMHENE TER(BEEM]) ((Em

KRB - B EBRXBRERRNTEANRHEFHERRERLAHZENEREHE
B - REFTEARBREARG DHRERE =T D HRBAKIHETF HHRH
EBFEm® °
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7.

(Continued)

Pricing of Products
Procurement

ERRBEEE

Costs of Products
Procurement

EmERBEA

Annual Reward -
Products Procurement

FERB-EmRKRE

Trademark Licence

R

Pricing of Trademark
Licence

BRI EE

BAEXZIREENREASHNZ
@)
7. (8B

At 50%—70% discount to the relevant market retail.
LRI E B ITES0%E70% ©

Taiwan NB shall be responsible for the costs associated with the marketing, transportation and
programme production (“Costs”) incurred by ET New Retail relating to the procurement and
sale of Target Products.
REEBAERAERANTERRKBLHEERERMELNEE - ERNFTEIEE
EAE R AR (TR AL ©

3% of the total purchase by ET New Retail will be to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual
purchase amount reaches NT$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$26,059,311); 5% of
the aggregated annual purchase amount that exceeds NT$100,000,000 to NT$300,000,000 by
ET New Retail will be rebated to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual purchase amount
reaches NT$100,000,000 to NT$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$26,059,311
to HK$78,177,933); and 7% of the aggregated annual purchase amount that exceeds
NT$300,000,000 by ET New Retail will be rebated to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual
purchase amount reaches NT$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$78,177,933) or
above.

BRaFERBSFEN A%100000,0007T (FHE R K926059311E TR - RRFEE
BRI RER3NRE TRAMNZE © BEA FERBSRENS%100,0000007T E#
& #5300,000,0007C (A8 & A 426,059,311 T0 578,177,933 L) B » AR T ERBBH A
#100,000,0007T Z #7 & #300,000,0007T F EFREB AT WATRE TRAHZNTE - RERF
B FERB R ERN 5 %300,000,0007C HHERK78,177,933BTT) A LK - RHFEME
& BB HT 5 %300,000,0007T F ERBATR7NIGRETRANEE -

Taiwan NB agrees to grant ET New Retail a non-exclusive licence to use the Trademarks
(“Trademark Licence”).

BEBAXFABEARRMTER T HEBF A AERBR(AEIRFATD) -

ET New Retail shall pay Taiwan NB a royalty fee (“Royalty”) at 3 % —10% of the selling price (before
tax; and after deduction of any discount) from the sale of mutually agreed products to the end
customers.

R TERERHEE T BEERRNSEEAXZINERE(ERE] HERE
BE3%=E10%FREAT : BEIBREMAFTHR)
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) 12 (4)

7.

(Continued)

Annual Cap

FEER

7. (8

Under the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to the annual caps on
the aggregate amount of purchase (covering the annual reward) and the aggregate Royalty
payable by ET New Retail under the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement and the aggregate
Costs payable by Taiwan NB. Given the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the business
landscape, pursuant to the terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Supplemental Agreement,
the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by approximately 30%. Details of the
annual caps are set out as follow:

BERKFTTERBRZE  FIANETRAEAERRTZERBERRNTERE &
(REFERB) ENRBESENEREREBEAZTRNRANFE LR - ZEF
COVID-19ORBHEBMRENTE - RERZNTERBRATHANGK  FTHNESR
B2 EE FRTHEAIZ0%  FEERAFBEHIIMNT :

NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Royalty
and NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Costs from 16
November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZBZEF+—A+ANHEZZZZF+_A=+—H HEESENFE
R FE &% & #70,000,0007T (FEE PAAI 18,241,518 7T) - EREBHFE FIRE
A FTE%21,000,0007T (FEE R 495,472,4557870) * KA EE LREAFT AL
21,000,0007T (2 TR 49547245578 7T)

NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Royalty
and NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Costs from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021;

RZEZ—F—A—HBEZZ_—F+ A=+ HHEESENTFELRER
1 & ¥ 140,000,0007T (1B E A #136,483,03587T) * EHREBMNFE LREAF A
35,000,0007T (FHE 7 499,120,7598 7T) » A4 [Z LR F& /R %7 & ¥ 35,000,0007T
(FBE PA#I9,120,75977T)
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7. (Continued) 7. (B
NT$210,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,724,553) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Royalty
and NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Costs from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
RZE - —ZF—A—RAEZT__F+ A=+ HARBENFELRES
15 %210,000,0007T (FEE PR 454,724,553 7T) - FREBNFE LREAFAK
56,000,0007T (FH & 7 #914,593 21478 7T) » FNABF E R FE R & #56,000,0007T
(FBE 1 4914,593214%87T) + &
NT$350,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$91,207,588) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Royalty
and NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Costs from 1
January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
R-B_=F-—A—RBE_Z_=F)\A=+T—HBEBEsENFE LREAR
¥ A M5 & #350,000,0007T (AHE R 4991,207,588 8 7T) - FREBMFE LRIE
BFT A 70,000,0007T (FHE R 4718,241,5187870) * AW EE ERE A A K
70,000,0007C (1HE 70 4718,241,518/87T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
(Fff3E : RIEHRIARSE  FELRDERAAFRARA-T-_TF+A=+H ZARAEENE
R (BM1.0078 T 5 37 & #653.837470) E B
Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
HABR B2 _ZF+—A+A"HEZZ-_=ZFNA=+—A8H-
As at 31 December 2022, ET New Retail is a wholly-owned subsidiary of RZEBZZF+ZHA=+—H  ®HH
Eastern Home. As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider that TERRREIBNZEWB AR - 10
it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Fastern Home as a connected person EXEBEAERE  EEREBERRED
of the Company. As such, the Directors consider that it is also appropriate BEBERABARAICEAEALTBEE -
to voluntarily treat ET New Retail as a connected person of the Company It EERA - BEMBREZNTE
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, BRIEARBINBEATWHEET £
the transactions contemplated under the ET New Retail Procurement RAEAE - TEEE - Bt - TR
Agreement as amended by Eastern New Retail Procurement TEREHZ CRRNEZERERTH
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions BB IE THET R GEMART 2
of the Company. BEBEZS -
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Directors’ Report
EEEWMESE

REXZREENRERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ ()
8. On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Focus Media Cooperation 8. R-ZE-_ZTFE+HF-+-"H AEAR
and Procurement Agreement with Focus Media Dayear Taiwan Co., Ltd FHEHOZEERNDERAG(—HERAE

(D REEEMD AR A R]), a company incorporated in Taiwan with
limited liability (“Focus Media”).

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Focus Media
Cooperation and Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Focus
Media to adjust the annual caps under the Focus Media Cooperation and
Procurement Agreement.

The major terms of the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement
Agreement and the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement
Supplemental Agreement are as follows:

MR 2 ABAT - [5REEDTY
5 RIEHAIERREHE -

RZZEZZTF+AZ+=H " AEBERA
XEDRERFT LD REREERRES
MRAHZE - URED RERKEIELEE
W SR EIRIFHFHE -

DREREERFTE G ZE R AR RE
BEERRBREAMEZ X2 ERA
T

Advertising Service Taiwan NB agrees to engage Focus Media to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements
and to organise media events, with a view to enhancing the image of the “Natural Beauty”
brand and to raise public awareness on the brand (“Advertising Service”).
REEAXABZROREREE  B#HMERRS  LHESERETY  UREIB
AREIBENTFREBEFAAZEREORBBE(EERE)) - 88 AXTHE THIE
ROREERARESER - FINETREEENREMBFEESHE Z2EHE - 7K
NERETEBWHRD -

EER%

Pricing of Advertising For each advertising project, Focus Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list price of

Service such project (being prices Focus Media offer to its clients which are Independent Third Parties).
& R EE HEEEEEMNE  PREEERERZEAERECIDREEMEFABIE=H

ZEPRMHZ BRR)ED50%2 HTiE -
Products Procurement Taiwan NB shall supply and sell Taiwan NB’s products (“Target Products”) to Focus Media
(“Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise Focus Media to sell the Target Products to
end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. Focus Media shall
be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers through its own
distribution channels or third party distribution channels.

EmRiE REBAEERASRERHEERHEREEAEZERM(EEER)(EREKED - &
BEREEEEDREEAKHEPHEHEERER - WAL E OFERBRAARHEM
K} o
Pricing of Products 50%-70% discount to the Target Products’ retail price.
Procurement
EmRBEE REZRERTEEITE0NE70% °
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EESWESE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGHNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()
8. (Continued) 8. (&)
Annual Cap Under the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to

annual caps in respect of fees payable by Taiwan NB to Focus Media under Advertising
Service and the annual caps in respect of the amount of product sales by Taiwan NB to Focus
Media under Products Procurement. Given the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the
business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement
Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follows:

FEELR BRIED REESERRERZ  FINETRSEHESERRERBEESREERN DR
BEXNNERNFELREEBAEENAERBERRKBOORERHEERND
BEHFE LR - ZRINCOVD19RIFHERRRNTE - RED REESERIRER
FBBOIET - FTNEFREEZFE LR THALIZ0% - FE FROFENAT

NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Advertising Service
and NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Products
Procurement from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZZEZZEF+—A+A"AEZZT=TF+-A=1+—08  BEERENFEEL
PR JiE & %7 & #521,000,0007T (FHE 1R 495,472,45578 7T) * EMEBHNFEE LREA
16 #21,000,0007T (& 7 495,472,455%8 7T)

NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Advertising Service
and NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;
NZEZ—F—A—HBEZZ=-_—F+-A=+—HEERENFELRES
15 #35,000,0007T (FHE 70 499,120,759%8 7T) - EmRBHEFE FRERFT A
35,000,0007C (#8E 72 499,120,759/& 7T)

NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Advertising Service
and NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
NZEZ—F—A—BE-ZE-_—F+ A=+ HEERENFELRES
¥ 5 #56,000,0007T (FHE P #914,59321487T) » EmRBHNFE FIRERH A
56,000,0007TC (& 7 4914,593 2148 7T) + K&
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EEEWMESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) R %& (48)
8. (Continued) 8 (B

NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Advertising Service
and NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
RZB_=F—A—RE-ZT_=F\A=1+—"HEERBNFE LRERH
A M3 & #70,000,0007T (FBE R #718,241,518%8 L) * ERIRENFE LRER
70,000,0007C (FEE 7 4718,241,518/7T) ©

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(5t - RIERARSE  FELRDERARRAREAZ_ZTF+A=+H ZARAKEENE
= (BN1.0078 7T 5 3T & #53.837470) B

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
HABR BE-E=EF+—A+A~AE=ZE==FNA=1+—RH-

As of 31 December 2022, FESS was a controlling shareholder of the RZEBE-Z_F+-_A=+—H BXA

Company, and EMIC was the 100% shareholder of FESS. As Focus Media
is identified as a related party of EMIC under the laws of Taiwan, the
Directors consider that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Focus Media
as a connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules accordingly.

On 22 July 2020, NB China, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement
with Eastern Global Business Hong Kong Co,, Ltd. CRAR 2B EEF/E
f& 17 B R A 7)), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability (“Eastern Global HK").

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global HK

Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Global HK to amend
certain terms of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement.

The major terms of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement and
the Eastern Global HK Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as
follows:

Nature of transactions

products for on-sale to end customers.

REMEE

RERRZHRBERBHABRA  RRERBFBUVIERNEAXTELERBER
(PIangdn R ttdn) - AAKHREZFEE o

FEMESARRZERER - REKE
RAEBEERERMEI00%KE 2
R o RN RERRIE QB EEBHF
RRRBERZ@HT EERREESK
DREEBR/ARBNEEA LI EUE
BT ETRAUEAEBEE -

R-ZB-TF+A-+=-B BAET
Bl(ARRZzHEZEZENBAREERS
REEREROHARAE) (—ERES
MR ZERAT  [RHRZHREE]
FIVRBREREEEE D -

R-ZT-THE+A-+=A  8EBAR
XERKREHBBITLRRE2HEBR
BHEHE - MMEFTRRERBBRE
B E TR ©

RRERBBRBHELRARERES
RIB T < B IERAT

During the term of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement, Eastern Global HK may from
time to time make wholesale purchase of products from NB China such as food and cosmetic

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ ()
9. (Continued) 9 (&)
Pricing At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retailing price.
EE BAERA T 5 T EEHTES0%ZE70% °
Annual Cap Under the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to annual caps

in respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the
outbreak of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Global
HK Procurement Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps
downwards by approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:

FE LR BEBERREHREERBHZ FINETRAEEREBEENEREENFRE LR - Z&
FCoOVID- 1R IFHLRRIRNTE - RERRZMEBRBERZNER - FTHEHA
ERZEE FRTHL30% - FE EROFBEAT

HKS$5,250,000 from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RIEZEF+—A+ANBEZZT=TF+ A =+—HFEAS5250000TT ;

HK$10,500,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;
R_B-_—F—A—-BE_F-—F+-A=+—HERI05000008TT :

HK$17,500,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
R —F—A—BE_T-__F+-A=+—HBERI175000008TT : &

HK$26,250,000 from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
RIB_=F—-—A—RE_Z-=F \A=+—HER26250000%8 T °

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.

HABR B2 TF+—A+AE-_ =N A=+—H-

As of 31 December 2022, Eastern Global HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary RZZBEZZF+ZA=+—H  ZH2
of Eastern Global. As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider FEBRRREENEZEWNB AR - 1
that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Global as a connected EXEHEAEE  EERBBEKIIK
person of the Company. As such, the Directors consider that it is also BRERARNATIMEATTIEEE -
appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Global HK as a connected person I EERABRREBELERRA
of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. AARBEATTEEE  AFFE& LM
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Global HK RAIZE1AE - At - RAREIREBRE
Procurement Agreement as amended by Eastern Global HK Procurement HE(ERREKEEREBRZB])E
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the TRETXIBUARAZHBEBER
Company. 5 °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) & £ ()
On 22 July 2020, Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics Company 10, R-_Z-_ZF+A-+—-H  EEAA

10.

Limited (28 BAE B E(LAMBR AR, an indirect wholly-owned BB MBERAR(RARZEES
subsidiary of the Company (“NB Shanghai”), entered into the Eastern BWELGF - [BERELBNEEREF
Zhenyu Procurement Agreement with Eastern Zhenyu e-Commerce BB ARA R (—MERP R
Company Limited (RREFEFHKE AR AF]), a company ZBRAF  [RREFNILRRETF
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability ("Eastern Zhenyu”). FREE -

On 23 October 2020, NB Shanghai entered into the Eastern Zhenyu RZZE_ZTF+A-+=0 BAEL
Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Zhenyu to amend BERREFILRAETREMTW
certain terms of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement. o NBEIRARETFHEERENE THR

e

The major terms of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement and the RARAETFRBHZERERETHEERGR
Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as follows: Mk FEERAT ¢

Nature of transactions

REMEE

Pricing

EE

Annual Cap

FELR

During the term of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement, Eastern Zhenyu may from
time to time make wholesale purchase of products from NB Shanghai such as food and
cosmetic products for on-sale to end customers.

REREFRBHZHARA  RREFAAKANEAX EHERBER(BINR M
NAtizam) - AAKLREFEE o

At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retail price.
BB ST EEIES0%E70%

Under the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to the annual caps
in respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the
outbreak of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Zhenyu
Procurement Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps
downward by approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:
BERRETRBWS FIONTAEERAREENRAmAENFE LR - ZEE
COVID-19RBHEBRENTE - RERRETREHARGRNER - sINEHRE
HEZFE LR T HAI30% - F/E LRAFBNAT

RMB15,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,854,547) from 16 November 2020 to
31 December 2020;

R-B_ZBF+—A+ARBEZ_ZF+_A=+—HERAR15400000
TL(HEE R #116854,547%8 7T)

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE 2% ()
10.  (Continued) 0. (&)
RMB79,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$87,337,200) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021;
RoE - —F—A—RE_ZT-_—F+-A=1+—HER/ARY%798000007T (1§
& 1 #787,337,2007 7T)
RMB127,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$139,433,074) from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022; and
R-E - A HE-_Z-__F+-_A=1T—BHERARM127400,0007T
(FBE 7 49139433,074787T) + K&
RMB91,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$99,595,053) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.
RZZE-_=F—-—A-BE-ZT-_=F/\A=+—BERAR¥91,0000007T#HE
FA#199,595,05378 7T)
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = RMB0.9137)
(FF3E - BIEHRBAAR  FELRDERARRAREAZTS-_ZF+ A=+ AZBRAHENE
= (BN1.0078 T H A R#0913770) ER)
Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
HARR BE-E-_EF+—A+AR"HEZE-_=FN\A=+—H-
As of 31 December 2022, Eastern Zhenyu is indirect wholly-owned by RZBZZF+ZRA=+—8 RHKRE
Mr. Chao Shih Heng, who is the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro FHEHMHTELEREZEZERE  #BtEF
which is holding 22.76% of the issued Shares. As such, Eastern Zhenyu EERREIM —RKREREAA M
is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing RIEFEB2276%2 BTG - Bt -
Rules and the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Zhenyu BEETHRE  RREBEFALRRRZEH
Procurement Agreement as amended by Eastern Zhenyu Procurement EALT  BREREFHEBEHZ(ERRE
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions FREMABZBE B TRETRSE
of the Company. KARBZHFERERS -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ fE2% (%)
11. On 22 July 2020, NB China entered into the Strawberry Procurement 11, R-ZE-_ZTF+HA-+-H GAREF
Agreement with Strawberry Cosmetics (Services) Limited, a company B £ Strawberry Cosmetics (Services) Limited

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability (“Strawberry II").

(—HEREBEMRIZERAR -
[Strawberry I1]) &1 3 Strawberry 2R & 77 3% °

On 23 October 2020, NB China entered into the Strawberry Procurement RZEBEZZTF+AZ+=H ' BAEF

Supplemental Agreement with Strawberry Il to amend certain terms of B B2 Strawberry II5] 32 StrawberryBR BB 78

the Strawberry Procurement Agreement. Wik 0 BMERT StrawberryiREE B E T
165K °

The major terms of the Strawberry Procurement Agreement and the StrawberryER & 1558 M StrawberryiR B 78

Strawberry Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as follows: R EZRERET ¢

Nature of transactions

REMEE

Pricing

EE

Annual Cap

FEER

During the term of the Strawberry Procurement Agreement, Strawberry Il may from time to
time make wholesale purchase of products from NB China such as food and cosmetic products
for on-sale to end customers.

A StrawberryBRES 1755 SRR A + Strawberry 18] B A B A E P Bt ERBE S (IR
mRAbAEm) « ARZIREFEE o

At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retailing price.
BT ST E BT E0%E70% °

Under the Strawberry Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed on the annual caps in
respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the outbreak
of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Strawberry Procurement
Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follows:

RARStrawberryB R IE W% - ATNE T REFBRBENEMARENFE LR - ZEZ
COVID- 19 IBH &M IRIBMTE - IBIEStrawbeny RIBH A BB NIET - FTHNEFRE
HZBEE LR T K30% « BRFE LRMFFHFEEOT -

HKS$5,250,000 from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020
RZEZEF+— A+ NBEZZT_TF+=A=+—HFEAS5250000TT :

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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11.

REXZREENRERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continved)  TE2% (48)

(Continued) 1. (&)
HK$10,500,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;
N-BE-—F—A—R[AFE-_ZT=-—F+=-H=+—HJE 10,500,000 TT :
HK$17,500,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
R —F—R—AEZE-_—_F+=-A=+—HEA175000008 7T : &
HK$26,250,000 from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
KRB =F—A—RAE=Z=_=F)\A=+—HE 526250000/ T °

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.

HABR TR TFE+—A+RBEZE-_=FEN\A=1+—8H-

As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors voluntarily treat Eastern
Home as a connected person of the Company. As of 31 December 2022,
since (a) Strawberry Il is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of Eastern
Home owned directly as to 76% of its shareholding by Eastern Home;
and (b) the Strawberry Procurement Agreement and the Strawberry
Procurement Supplemental Agreement entered into within a short
period of time as the other connected transactions disclosed in items
4 to 10, 12 and 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is also
appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry Il as a connected person of the
Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the Strawberry
Procurement Agreement as amended by Strawberry Procurement
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Franchise

Agreement with Eastern Home.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Franchise
Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Home to amend certain terms of
the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement.
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEEXZRESEREAGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) =)
12.  (Continued) 2. (8B
The major terms of the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement and the RAREIENBHZNEREIEMNE
Eastern Home Franchise Supplemental Agreement are as follows: HREMEZTITERTOT

Nature of transactions

REMHE

Pricing

EE

Annual Cap

FELR

Taiwan NB agreed to grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use certain Trademarks
in respect of certain skin care products and provide Eastern Home with consultancy services
in connection with Eastern Home's operation and management of spa business under the
brand name “Natural Beauty”. Eastern Home may from time to time make wholesale purchase
of Taiwan NB products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such products to Eastern Home at certain
discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern Home.
REBAERAERTRAGHBE —EBRTAHE - UstE TEERERHE - I3t
RRGHBELLERERBAEIMEE TKEEBRRRG S BRHDARE - R
SEHBATRSHERBLEAAXERRAEERERRBBTEE L —THHNAR
RSHBLEZSER  MHRRGHBEETHEE -

Same pricing with other franchisees, which varies from time to time ranging from 50% to 70%
discount to the relevant market retailing price.

HEMKAREFNEEBER  TREAMTR > BEETEEEENENE
70% °

Under the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement, the parties agreed to annual caps in respect
of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the outbreak of
COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Home Franchise
Supplemental Agreement, parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:

BRERREGIBNBRE  FINETREAHESBENARAENFE LR - ZEE
COVID- 19O BEHEBMRBENTE - RERREIBINBHAHZNENK  FTHNESR
BEHZFERE FRTHAL30% - FE ERAFENT -

NT$42,000,000 (approximately HK$10,944,911) from 16 November 2020 to 31 December
2020;

RZZEZZF+—ATABEZZ=EF T+ A=+—HERF A %42000000
TL(%910,94491187T)

TECCFFER BRAREYNEERDAF
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EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) R )
12. (Continued) 2. (8B
NT$140,000,000 (approximately HK$36,483,035) from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021;
RE-_—F—A—HE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HERNHS¥140,000,0007T
(#936,483,0357 7T)
NT$245,000,000 (approximately HK$63,845,312) from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022; and
R-E - —F—A—RE_ZT-__F+-A=1+—BERHE%245000,000(4
63,845312/87T) + &
NT$350,000,000 (approximately HK$91,207,588) from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
R-B_=F—-—A—-RZE2E_T_=F)/\A=+—BEARH &%350,000,000(4
91,207,588/ 7T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
(3 - RIERAARR  FELRDERARGBHAS_SFTA=ZTHZARMBEENE
S (BM.0078 T 537 A #53.837470) E B
Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
HABR BE-Z-_ZF+—A+A"AEE=-=FN\A=+—H-
As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate BN EXESTEFTIREE - EERABRE
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company RAREIBEBRARATBEANTILR I
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As B EMRAEUAEBEE - At - R
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Franchise REZENBERECRREIEINER
Agreement as amended by Eastern Home Franchise Supplemental RIS E T HHETT R S B A R T
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the ZRBERERS -
Company.




CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

For further details regarding:

(@)  the agreements discussed in items 1 through 3 above, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 April 2019 and the circular of
the Company dated 17 May 2019; and

(b)  the agreements discussed in items 4 through 12 above, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 22 July 2020 and 23 October
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020.

The above transactions are regarded as “continuing connected transactions”
and “connected transactions” of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm's length
basis and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company,
an entity connected with a Director, a Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any time
during such year; and

(i) there were no related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 as set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements which need to be disclosed as connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction (as the case may be) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share awards schemes as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds. For further details, please refer
to note 34 of the consolidated financial statements.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) were used to reduce the
existing level of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 to reduce future years’ contributions.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable Date of this
Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong Kong
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED
Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to, the
Shares, are suggested to consult an expert.
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EESWESE

MAJOR EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any major events requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

REVIEW OF AUDITED 2022 ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
is of the opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, legal requirements and the Listing Rules, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

On behalf of the Board

LEI Chien
Chairperson
Hong Kong

10 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 110 to 240, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BB E S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories
Impairment assessment on trade receivables
Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Unit (CGU)

L W
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BYZEMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FERFTTER®
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE EETPHRARETBENEES

Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories

REFEREMLE
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements
BB E M SRR M FE25

The Group’s inventories include raw materials and
finished goods. The Group has recognised an allowance
for obsolete inventories of approximately HK$22.7 million
in arriving at a total inventories value of approximately
HK$98.8 million as at 31 December 2022.

ESEFTERERMBREKRD RZTZ=
F+ZA=+T—H  EB5BETEERGFELE
#998,800,0008 Tl * EERMEGFTERBELD
22,700,000/ 7T °

As set out in note 5(f) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group reviews
inventories on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete inventories or slow-moving inventories that
are no longer suitable for use in production or trading.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items with reference to the recent selling prices,
subsequent sales and the market conditions.

WERA R BmRMESOME X BESEEEEERS
BEPHAEEAZRERBRERE @ U TBES
RIELEERRXHZMREXAFHFTERBFTRER -
EREL2ENMER  HRBEERTSWRMEETZ
FIHA 2 A #EFE -

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in determining the net
realisable value and allowance for obsolete inventories.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

2 A BB R R R £
0 22 ERE SRR

Our audit procedures included:

RPN EEFBRE

Obtaining an understanding of the management controls
over the identification of obsolete inventories and the
assessment of their net realisable value;

THREEENANREFELFEEAERFEL
ZHITTE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methods and
estimation used in determining the net realisable value of
inventories;

M MEEFER ERFEMERN A ERGEEZ
B

Testing the inventory aging reports generated by the
application system and checking to the supporting
documents for their accuracy, on a sample basis; and

AR ER RGP EKRNFREERSRE - WL HERE
HELARE T A BB &

Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost or net realisable value at the reporting date
by comparing the carrying amounts of inventories at
reporting date to the sales price of inventories subsequent
to the reporting date.

BALBRHREAPNFEREERRS AHRNET
EEERFERBREANRFELTURARATEE
FEREEALR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EAEETSH
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESNSEE EETPHBARETSENEELSE

104

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 5 W RFR B 5T
Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 E YIS RERM 26

The Group has recognised an allowance for credit losses
of approximately HK$5.1 million in arriving at net trade
receivables of approximately HK$75.8 million as at 31
December 2022.

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H EEEFEERE
5 FE UL BR F R 58 4975,800,000/8 T - DHEREEE
1B 495,100,00078 7T °

As set out in note 4(ab) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group always recognises lifetime
Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL") for trade receivables and
estimates the ECL using historical credit loss experience
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors.

MG E M BHRRMT4@0)AE - BEEE B
BRI ERFENBRNEEER(AREE
EBiED)  YAMBBEEEERLRZEBARE
AEEHAR) REFTEREERSS

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in grouping debtors
with similar loss pattern and in determining whether
a particular debtor is considered to be in default. The
impact of economic factors, both current and future,
historical experience and forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors were also considered in management'’s
assessment of the likelihood of recovery from customers.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

EEEEHAAMAUBREANEBALTOMA
WEERFEBRBARE B RENRBELERH
B M fhat - EEERERG A TP MEKEN AT
BIREE T BRI RARREERER - BELRRER
ABEMBEERZNZE - Bl - ZFTEERS
FAsRERTSIE -

Our audit procedures included:

BRPMEREFERE

Assessing the controls over the monitoring of trade
receivables;

AHE BRI E 5 R W AR 2 HITTA

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL allowance;

At BEBAFEEHEESRBERERMEAN
B BABIR KRR

Understanding and challenging the judgements made by
management in calculating the ECL allowance;

T R R B A T TR BB A0S
B0 2B

Assessing the relevance and reliability of the data used to
determine historical loss rates and the appropriateness
of any adjustments for forward-looking factors or factors
specific to the debtors; and

AEARNETBEBERNEUR 2R R A] ST
VAR 3t B 1 R R B AR E B RAE L AR
ZEEMNE R

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the reporting
period.

BRBRMHERRNERELSE R AR R
EBIE °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) EAEETSH
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESNSEE EETPHBARETSENEELSE

Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Unit
(CGL)
REE4ABARER L

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 R E MR T2

As at 31 December 2022, goodwill with carrying amount
of approximately HK$25.7 million was allocated to the
Sale of Cosmetic Products in the PRC CGU (“CGU A").
The CGU is tested for impairment at least annually or
whenever there is an impairment indicator by comparing
the carrying amounts including goodwill with the
respective recoverable amounts of the CGU.

R-E-—_F+-A=+—H FEELHAL
25,700,000/8 TTHI S B W D B2 NP BIRREIR @ EE
B ((REELBEMNADHEEEAER - 255 &
ELBNELBFRAELRBEDREETRER
o AR BREAAE(REEE) B SEE BN
FEEMAIREISHE

At 31 December 2022, the result of the Group's CGU A
impairment assessment concluded that there was no
impairment loss.

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H X EBEEBEBeESE
BUARBEENEREKE  TEEREESE -

The impairment assessment was based on value in use
models and management was required to exercise
significant judgements and estimations including sales
growth rates, gross profit margin and long-term growth
rates used to estimate future cash flows and discount
rates applied to these forecasted future cash flows of the
underlying CGU. Accordingly, these areas are considered
a key audit matter.

RERHEDEREREEEREL - AEEEAE
HEARHE REE - BREARGEFARESREN
HEERE FMEREAERE - AREANE

%ﬁ%ﬁ EAVAEY:FS TMEBMNRE - H

Our audit procedures included:
HPIMETRF B

Understanding and evaluating management’s key controls
over the impairment assessment process;

TR RS E R E LR E RS BAE R E B

Obtaining and evaluating management’s approved cash
flow forecasts, testing the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying value in use calculations and agreeing them to
the approved cash flow forecasts;

BEAFHEEBRENRSREEAR - AHAEH
EREEFENRBEREARREEARILERN
REemedal

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

EREMHERBERITENTH  HEERINAE
HRRHERE - &

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rates used
with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists.

ERMABEEEROBIT - FiE e AOUE
=2 AEE -

géjégy SEoCoaER AREEMNEERAT

105



106

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’'s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Szeto Tai Shun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

10 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FmeBEmkEMEEIREG R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—_F+-_A=+—HLEFE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FAET

Revenue 1 ON 8 335,880 487,810
Cost of sales 5 & BN (146,750) (181,812)
Gross profit EF 189,130 305,998
Other income and other gains H Wz FFI1E 9 13,939 8,833
Loss on derecognition of intangible assets RIETERE EE B8 (5,147) -
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE (2,133) -
Impairment losses, net of reversal RE 18 (FNRR ) 10 (4,715) 3,980
Distribution and selling expenses S RIEERX (139,262) (181,591)
Administrative expenses THAX (68,562) (83,638)
Other expenses and other losses H AR FiE Kk (2,455) (3,102)
(Loss)/profit from operations R (EE) B R (19,205) 50,480
Finance costs BEK A 12 (4,343) (1,822)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBA R EE 39(a) - (199)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(EE) SRR (23,548) 48459
Income tax expense s Hif = 13 (6,924) (13,195)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(EB),EF 14 (30,472) 35,264
Other comprehensive income: Hitt2ERE :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: AR EF H BB amAk 2 BE -
Gain on Investment property revaluation, WEMES YR - HBRIELER

net of deferred tax 29,157 -
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit EZB4EFRIKSFTEI 2 EFET=

pension plans Wz, (E518) 971 (673)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: Al REREBFT DR R B K 2

EHE -

Exchange differences on translating foreign MEBINEREECEH 58

operations (54,106) 18,103
Other comprehensive income for theyear, AEEHMEEKE @ HNBRHFHE

net of tax (23,978) 17,430
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZTHKRARE (54,450) 52,694




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBnkHMEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=t—HLFE
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BitEE FERT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: UTALEEREE(E),
A
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETEZZ SN (30,472) 35,264
Total comprehensive income for the year NFATEEREFEZEREZ
attributable to: FEEC
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ =N (54,450) 52,694
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE) BA 18
Basic HA (HK cents 1.52)  HKcents 1.76
(1.52)3A 1.76781l
Diluted i N/A N/A
TiE A NEA
“EoCFFR  ARREWRBEERAT 111




Consolldated Statement of Financial Position
AR
m/T\ Zl-ﬁ%;lj( /RI ')FE ilrz
At 31 December 2022
RZE_—_F+-HA=+—H
2022 2021
—EDCF —T_—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHxT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W= - BB NG 19 197,046 335,099
Investment properties "B 20 228,714 9,532
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21 41,086 81,701
Goodwill EES 22 25,678 29613
Intangible assets BmILEE 23 - 5651
Deposits for purchase of property, plant and BEME WMELRRE2ES
equipment 236 255
Retirement benefits plan assets BRIREFETEIEE 34(b)(iv) 700 -
Deferred tax assets EEFR I E B 33 13,949 18,262
507,409 480,113
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 98,831 120,961
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E U ER K 26 97,179 131,969
Contract costs BRI 27 281 319
Pledged bank deposits HEIRIRITIF 5K 28 - 3,745
Bank and cash balances IRITEIRESETT 28 168,609 193,337
364,900 450,331
Current liabilities REBASE
Trade and other payables E 5 & E b FETBR K 29 106,531 109,777
Amount due to a related party FE T — (L BA S 77 ;IR 42(b) 493 544
Contract liabilities aHaE 31 16,810 13,552
Borrowings (EES 30 113,842 87,801
Lease liabilities HEEE 32 5,566 7,015
Current tax liabilities BNEAfRIA & & 7,535 19,277
250,777 237,966
Net current assets RBEETE 114,123 212,365
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 621,532 692,478




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI RE

At 31 December 2022

RZEZZF+=-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF =
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B sE FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings EE 30 6,024 9,482
Lease liabilities HEaRE 32 18,046 24,776
Retirement benefit obligations RINEMEE 34(b)(iv) - 302
24,070 34,560
NET ASSETS BEERE 597,462 657,918
Capital and reserves AR #E
Share capital [N 35 200,210 200,210
Reserves it 397,252 457,708
TOTAL EQUITY RS 597,462 657,918

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2023 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dr. LEI Chien
EfEELT

MROCZE-_=F=ATHEEESHE WHA
TRERE

Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
MKEZE

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR AR
Remeasurement
Property of defined
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation revaluation benefit  Retained
capital surplus ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  pensionplans  earnings Total equity

NEER TEEARMAS
Rkx  EARH  ROEE ARG ERGE fifE HECENGE REBEN BB
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000
T Thr T T Thr T Thr TEr  TEn
(note 35)  (note 37(0)())  (note 37(b)i) ~ (note 37(b)ii)  (note 37(b)(v))  (note 37(b)v)
(HsEss)  (Wieksnon)  (eeEsaom) - (RsEsmion) (aEs7ioli) (sE37(0)6))

At1 January 2021 R-B-—%-F-B 20020 425% 41016 179578 9,171 = 29 50310 611230
Total comprehensive income TEREEYESE
forthe year = = = = 18103 = 67) 3264 5260
Dividend paid (note 17) Bftke (k) - - (6,006) = = = = = (6006)
Transfer to statutory reserve SETEERE = = = 14 = = = (142 =
Changes in equity for the year KEREGE - - (6006) 142 18103 = 673 312 46688
At 31 December 2021 and S
1 January 2022 =t-Ak
“E-%-f-A 200210 42554 35010 179720 113274 = 1718 &4 657918
Total comprehensive income TEREENESS
forthe year = = = = (54106) 0157 g1 04D (54450)
Dividend paid (note 17) Bftke (k) - - (6,006) - - - - = (6006)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETTHE = = = 3% = = - (39) -
Changes in equity for the year RERERE - - (6:006) 3% (54106) 29157 o1 B08I0  (60456)
At31 December 2022 RZBZZEFZA
==k 200,210 4,554 2004 180,118 59,168 29,157 268 54562 597462
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
P s =
MERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T-—&#+-A=t+—RHILEE
2022 2021
—==-= T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & FEHFIE2RERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (E18), & F (23,548) 48459
Adjustments for: HTIIRIERE -
Interest income F B YA (1,654) (2,053)
Finance costs A& R A 12 4,343 1,822
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BiE M RETE 23,514 24,527
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BERZE2EBE
plant and equipment 428 158
Loss on derecognition of intangible asset R EREILEE Y BB 5,147 -
Fair value gain on investment properties KEYE 2 AT ERE (1,346) (533)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 10,362 9,040
Gain on rental concessions ML REWZ (429) -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAREE 2 EE 176 37
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHEARZESE 39a) - 199
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 423 1,384
Obsolete inventories written off R E 17 ey (96) -
Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) for T RS (BERE)
slow-moving inventories 7,330 (1,318)
Inventories written-off FEMH 5,752 13,255
Impairment loss, net of reversal on REEE (R E 2 AR K
trade receivables o) 10 4,715 (3,980)
Impairment loss on goodwill B FEEE 2,133 -
Operating profit before working capital changes %8 & & & B)) i 2 4L &) A 37,250 90,997
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,013) (27,032)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R H A JE AR RO 19,718 6,744
Decrease in contract costs B RIBLAF D 14 396
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REAM AR D (23,257) (16,555)
Increase in amount due to related parties FE A B 5 SRIEE N 2 206
Increase in contract liabilities AHAEEN 4,418 1,325
Decrease in retirement benefit obligation RINENE RS (2) (913)
Cash generated from operations REXBAR/ZEAS 37,130 55,168
Income tax paid EAATEE (24,283) (9,569)
Interest on lease liabilities HEREFE (1,289) (982)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRG 2IRE HE 11,558 44,617
“ToFFHR BAXEVYREERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HULFE

2022 2021
—E-—F T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEFEB2HERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME - WER&E (44,309) (37,862)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plantand ~ HEWIEE - E N&E 2115

equipment KIE 329 3313
Increase in deposits for purchase of property, BEEWME  BELREZIES

plant and equipment 0 - (251)
Increase in time deposits with maturities of over =1 A A £ —F LA T EI 81 2 85

three months but less than one year 1FFRIE 0 - (1,252)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMB AR - 4,846
Decrease in pledge bank deposits BEPRITIFFR D 3,556 =
Interest received B UCFLE 1,654 2,049
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEMA R F5 (38,770) (29,157)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEFBFfME2RERE
Repayment of borrowings BEER (22,062) (26,989)
Borrowings raised BEMER 53,222 54,236
Principal elements of lease payments HENFHESHD (7,057) (6,934)
Bank loan interest paid B IRITERF A (4,886) (3,885)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BENARAEHEE ARE (6,006) (6,006)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEBMS RS FRE 13,211 10,422
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBLEEUWORD),

CASH EQUIVALENTS BnFeE (14,001) 25,882
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R a8 (9,873) 4,062
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—HZRERELEEY

1 JANUARY 184,466 154,522
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt+-—A=+—HzHEEHRES

31 DECEMBER ZEY 160,592 184,466
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND CASH ReRESEEYIM

EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS TR 28 168,609 193,337
Less: Time deposits with maturities of over W ZEAR E—FUATEE

three months but less than one year TEHFR (8,017) (8,871)
160,592 184,466

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
\\\ / v N\ %




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1=1104, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is changed from Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong to 5/F, Manulife
Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong and effective on 15
August 2022. The Company's shares are listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2022,
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A, Insbro Holdings Limited and
Next Focus Holdings Limited are substantial corporate shareholders of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—F#+_A=+—HL=FE
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BAEEVRRBRARTARRE DR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RMHFIIREEITEBHBR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ 2EH|

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

R REEBITEBMBR
&R
BEGEVBHRET - A5EEH
RERN-—_ZE-_—_F—H—B%2>
% AR EEBRRENERNBSE
BEMASRGNEBYHRE
AR a0 MERT

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

BAGTERE 165 HERT ME - BB RRE  (ERTEREANASRIE

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BB T ERIEI7RAERT BIREH - BITARZKA

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BEMBREERFEIRNER BRI

Amendments to HKFRS 16 (March 2021) Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

BREMBREERF 165FIER] —T - —FRXA=1THZENCovid-19EAHEE TR
—E-—F=A)

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

FREUEIRR ERMBHRELN T N\FE_T_TFEFENE

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

BETESI F5RMEET HRAEHAHNAHGTHE

The Group did not change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting the
abovementioned amended standards or annual improvements.

ARES B R R PR A BB TR
S F R T B R SRR RS
TTEYRE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RMHFIIREEITEBHBR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) HER| @)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EEMEERERZHTRE
BRI E BB HEE

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments to REEWEERAZEMERARZ
standards and interpretation that have been issued but are not yet T F A ARBZYREE
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2022. The new ARz ERFTETZER - R Z(SET
standard, amendments to standards and interpretation include the RERE o ZEMETER] - BRI Z (&
following which may be relevant to the Group. FIRERERENTIEAEEE

P

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUT BB 2 RFEKZ
SHHBEX
Amendments to HKAS 1 = Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BREGHEREIRNER - BEESRARBDIIERD —ZE_ME—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 = Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BRGTERERNER] - WS RENIERBAE —T-ME—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023
— Disclosure of Accounting Policies
BEGHERBE1RNETREBVBRELENEBREFSR - —E-_=%—H—H
RESTHR
Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
B G ERESRMER - A NER —T_=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
BREGERE12RNER] - BRE - FELNEERBBEHEN —ZE-_=%—H—H
EFERL IR
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
FEMBHREERE 165RER] - ERBETWHEERR —T-_MFE—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of To be determined by the HKICPA
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BEMBREERF 105 N BAGHEUNEBRAEFT - REEEH THEESTMASETE
BERRRAELRIAZEELERIEE
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of 1 January 2024
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting

policies below (e.g. investment properties that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
foreign currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group'’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to calculate
the goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS") which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is

recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign operation
(none of which has the currency of hyperinflation economy)
that have a functional currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below). Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write-off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Buildings
BF
Leasehold improvements
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The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant
assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

A property is transferred to investment property when, and only
when there has been a change in use. Such change in use occurs
when the property meets the definition of investment property,
and there is evidence of a change in use. If an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference between
its carrying amount and fair value at the date of change in use is
treated as revaluation in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, plant
and equipment and recorded in other comprehensive income.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(9)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4,
(g) Leases (Continued)
(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by relevant subsidiaries, which does not have recent
third-party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property
are carried at fair value in accordance with note 4(f).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount

of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4.,

(g) Leases (Continued)
(i)  The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (‘“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 468 of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concessions occurred.

(ii)  The Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

(h) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and their fair value can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i

1)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Practice Licence of Medical Institution 10 years

The period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less from the date

of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the costs are
expensed when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

U]

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred
only because the Group entered into the contract. Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed
as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognised the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
= recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses (“ECLs"), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial assets (Continued)

(n)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOC|, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant

financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out in notes (g) to (s)
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus directly to the franchisees or other distributors is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the distributors and franchisees’
specific locations (delivery). Following delivery, the franchisee has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the franchisee as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Under the Group's contract terms, franchisees have a right of return
or exchange of goods within an agreed period and amount. At the
point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to
revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned
or exchanged. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover
the product when customers exercise their right of exchange or
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset
and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses
its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of
exchanges and returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given
the consistent level of exchanges or returns over previous years.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus through retail outlet is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the products at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the
products.

Revenue from skin treatment, beauty and spa services through
its self-owned spas and medical cosmetology services through
its self-owned medical beauty clinics is recognised over time as
the customers of the Group simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on an output method,
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
the services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net
of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as expenses in the
period in which it is incurred.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

(ii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Obligation for contributions to the local government of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the liability (asset)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets. When there is
a surplus in a defined benefit plan, the net defined benefit
asset is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined
benefit plan and the asset ceiling. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds denominated in that
currency are used.

4.,

FESTTHR®
EEER @)

(v)

(ii)

RAEEE
AEBEREZAREMBIL
3 BREBEENEER
HRKEFTE

AEBRAMERBERZE
BUFURRGEIHRK - KK
BrEERMARBTEELZ
ERDIREBERBEZEAFT
MBEDLFE - BREHKE
ZRRBHEEIKA T A
SERNTES ZHR -

REBEFEARKME(H
B A RBSEBRANFER G
B it 77 BT RE EE R AR AR
AEIEFHET  RELR
EERSTERR/MAX

KRB WIS R 3L E B
BRERAGBERNBEE
) /3 B E A EH IR ERAT
EEENAFE MEER
MErBlE & - AIEBEBEH
BEFERTBERNTEA
HREEEFRZHANOEEE
AHE - ERBMNEKEFH
BYREEMRBAYREMNE
BEFE - ERBNEKH
REBRBRAEERARES
M ERBBRAETARRBAER
HEBE @ RFEFAET
X RAMHNERFE BE
mEHEARERREEEN

FHHEE - HEBEFLE
REHEBEH TS - BB

ZERHENBF AT

BEE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) —
which include actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) — are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Service costs and net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount
rate used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HItEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and others providing similar services. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured
at the fair value of the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. The fair value is measured at
the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an

expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation on rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing
that remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intend use or sales included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

4.,

FESTTHR®

(z)

IR
Pr{SHid BN AT IR RURIE IR 2 48
e

B SR TR 12 4F P8 R
B o R R BRI T B IE R
7 2 BRI A B
HR - R EEBARBR A
ZIEB - HOE R R I
Fl - ARER B S R
P4 B E BRI D RH
-

BB BRI BARE P RER 2 BE
K & BRRE(E B 5T B & SRR N i
tEHERER R 2 EERBERE
BEME MR EZRER - EEHIEA
BE—RATERRVE R Z5E
R MIELEHRIAEEERAEERSF
JERR ML)t ) T < A HORL D By =80
ABARBAEBERS RS AH AR L
BAERZIBRA TR - MEEE
IRMEER(EHEAHRINZ S
ZEMBENRABERELERER
N ERRVUEN S EEEF - Al
EREERABBRTTER -

AEESRMBARREELZE
HRREREEERAETEHBERE
HEMAREREEN AREREE L
o REREFEAEIENARL
AR E IR ©

AEEEREREHBMEER RS
BREFIREE ZFREET AHAK -
AT B3 AT BB BT B 502 JE AR T g A1)
A E 2 LD EERR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(z)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties is measured based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z)

(aa)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with
the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable
that the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE®)
(ab) £REERME )

(ab) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

0) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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(ab) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
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Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FESTBE®)
(ab) £ RS ERME )

(ab) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written-off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information
as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical trend,
the Group's understanding of the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the excepted credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective

interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab)

(ac)

(ad)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other than those
involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart
from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
another portion that is held for use in the production of goods.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production of goods. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgement.

5.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in note 4(ab), ECL
are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for
leases that include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken
and the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

Determining the lease term (Continued)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease liability
because the Group could replace the assets without significant
cost or business disruption. See note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event
or significant change in circumstance that is within the Group's
control. During the current financial year, no lease term has been
reassessed.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$6,924,000 (2021: HK$13,195,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and discount rate
are subject to greater uncertainties in the current year due to
volatility in financial markets, including potential disruptions in the
Group's operation.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022 were approximately
HK$197,046,000 (2021: HK$335,099,000) and HK$41,086,000 (2021:
HK$81,701,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than the expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate are
subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group's operations.

The carrying amount of goodwiill at the end of the reporting period
was approximately HK$25,678,000 (2021: HK$29,613,000), since the
unsuccessful renew of Practice License of Medical Institution (the
“Licenses”), CGU B are fully derecognition during the year (2021:
Nil) (note 22).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the
fair values, the valuers have utilised methods of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$228,714,000 (2021: HK$9,532,000)
after recognition of the fair value gain of HK$1,346,000 (2021:
HK$533,000) in the profit or loss and gain on revaluation of
HK$38,876,000 (2021: Nil) in other comprehensive income during
the year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on the credit
risk of trade receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$75,799,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HKS$5,147,000) (2021: HK$115,157,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$582,000)).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f)

Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at
the end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer
suitable for use in production or trading. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based primarily
on the latest invoice prices, sales after year end and current market
conditions less all estimated costs and expenses necessary to
sell the products. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of inventories, net of allowance for inventory of HK$22,704,000,
was HKS$98,831,000 (2021: net of allowance for inventory of
HK$17,123,000 was HK$120,961,000).

Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from the
assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method (“PUCM"), according to which the
Group has to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefits
earned in return for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases where defined
benefit plans are funded, the Group has to estimate the fair value
of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM involves a number
of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include demographic
assumptions such as mortality, turnover and retirement age and
financial assumptions such as discount rates, salary and benefit
levels. Such assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and therefore may
result in significant impacts on defined benefit obligations.

The carrying amount of retirement benefit as at 31 December 2022
was HK$700,000 in assets (2021: HK$302,000 in liabilities).

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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—E-_F+-_A=t+—HBILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange translations and other financial
instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to
the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 29% (2021: 52%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the Group's seven largest
customers as at 31 December 2022 and all of the customers are
located in the PRC and Taiwan (2021: the PRC and Taiwan).

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a

provision matrix. Customers with significant outstanding balances
with gross carrying amounts of HK$998,000 as at 31 December
2022 were assessed individually (2021: HK$5,962,000).
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BE-T-__F+-A=1tHLFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFEbrEE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERBRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWERR(B)
The following table provides information about the Group's TRERBEASER ===
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 +ZA=+—HFEHEZEKE
December 2022: HZEERRREHEEBEZE
The Group 2022
AEER=-ZT=Z
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER BREAE EBEEE
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current (not past due) BNEA (R HA) 4.79% 53,883 2,581
1-180 days past due #HER1E180H 5.23% 19,820 1,037
181-360 days past due B H181F360H 13.36% 3,599 481
More than 360 days pastdue 18838360 H 30.18% 2,535 765
Assessed individually &l 51 5 25.52% 1,109 283
80,946 5,147
The Group 2021
AEER_T_—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR A RE4E EERHE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Current (not past due) BNEA (R #1 HR) 0.16% 76,221 122
1-180 days past due #ER1 2180 0.76% 30,900 235

181-360 days past due BHEA1812360H 291% 1,721 50
More than 360 days past due 1 HA#R #8360 H 18.72% 935 175
Assessed individually & B FF A = 5,962 =

115,739 582
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEREE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWERR(B)
The following table provides information about three geographic TRIREEE=-(AES TR _F
segments’ exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as T —F+-A=+—HFEAHES
at 31 December 2022: FEWERER Z EERR KIEEEE
B2 &R :
The PRC 2022
HEARER=T=Z
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER REAE BERE
% HK$'000 HK$’000
FER THER
Current (not past due) BIVEA (AR HA) 1.23% 30,846 380
1-180 days past due BE1ZE180H 5.62% 16,299 916
181-360 days past due #1H31812360H 13.42% 3,413 458
More than 360 days past due %) B8 #8360 H 30.01% 2,529 759
Assessed individually (ERIERE - 826 -
53,913 2,513
The PRC 2021
FERAKER-ZE-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEAE R X FRE A EEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current (not past due) BUER (R HA) 0.34% 36,288 122
1-180 days past due #HA1Z=180H 2.32% 7,153 166
181-360 days past due B EA1812 3608 235% 1,701 40
More than 360 days pastdue 1 #ifB3B360H 18.72% 935 175
Assessed individually & B FF A = 5,962 -
52,039 503
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HE_Z-—_F+-_A=+—HLEFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFEbrEE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERBRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWERR(B)
Taiwan 2022
AER=-T==
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHERE IREAE EBREE
% HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current (not past due) BNEA (R HA) 9.75% 22,584 2,201
1-180 days past due #HA1Z=180H 9.99% 1,211 121
181-360 days past due #HA1812360H 44.44% 9 4
More than 360 days pastdue %18 iE360H 100% 6 6
Assessed individually & B ¥ e 100% 283 283
24,093 2,615
Taiwan 2021
BER_T_—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR IR BRE4ME EERHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) - 39,933 =
1-180 days past due #ER1 2180 0.25% 23,202 57
181-360 days past due #HI1812360H 10.00% 10 1
More than 360 days past due 71 EfiEB #3608 = = =
Assessed individually & BN EE A - - -

63,145 58
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWRR ()
Others 2022
HthR=—=——
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AR ERE#AE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Current (not past due) BNER (R0 HA) - 453 -
1-180 days past due #HEI1E180H - 2,310 -
181-360 days past due #HA1812360H 10.73% 177 19
More than 360 days pastdue %1 HA A #8360 H - - -
Assessed individually & B FE & - - -
2,940 19
Others 2021
HR=—T=—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEAE R & BRMBE E R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current (not past due) BNHA (R H0) - - -
1-180 days past due #HR1E180H 2.20% 545 12
181-360 days past due #HA1815360H 90.00% 10 9
More than 360 days pastdue 81 #ifB3B360H = = =
Assessed individually & B FF A - - -
555 21
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over TEEEEE DERBTERE 2 BB
the past few year. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences BELR ZEERELHBMNU
between economic conditions during the period over which the REFTREBESE S R 2 BB
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the LERRER - BRI RAEE
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the ¥ FE IR SRTE R HA 2 A B AR R 2
receivables. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to Rt - BASANEHHEEES
ensure relevant information about specific customers is updated. B UEREEBERFEREER

o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) SERE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWR(8)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade RFEEE S RUMERT Z BB ER
receivables during the year is as follows: ZEamT
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FE T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 582 9,011

Impairment losses /(reversal of impairment) AEEHERHRBERE,

recognised for the year, net CRE#E) - 5 4,715 (3,980)
Amounts written off during the year FRMESRE - (4,640)
Exchange differences EHZR (150) 191
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” 5,147 582
The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of RZZE-—F U TEFREIER
trade receivables contributed to the decrease in the loss allowance RHABE 2 ERNEHENEERE
during 2022: DA
~  origination of new trade receivables net of those settled - REFRERESZERFRE

resulted in an increase in allowance of HK$4,715,000. HEIENRIE) 2 BB AN

4,715,000/ 7T °
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The directors
of the Company consider the ECL on these financial assets are
insignificant as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s bank borrowings
and other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

e MR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBAMERE@®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REEZRERE
Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment BEME - MR ERERE KK
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole (AT ERIRIT R EMIBITE) AIRTTIE
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the HKME  PMBRBIBEERAIREA
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that NRH &R BMNERAITE
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call H GRS B B B 50 mE
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other FERHReRL - EMSHEaENE
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment A SITIREETEIER A RS -
dates.
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
HH A - RERBER
Between Between
On Within 1and2 2to5 Over
demand 1year years years 5years Total

BREX -fR -ZMF WELF EENL At
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS(000
TAT TAT TR TAR TAT TAT

At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z%

TZA=t-8H
Trade and other payables B RAMERNER - 106,531 - - - 106,531
Amount due to related parties FE BB H 70R - 493 - - - 493
Borrowings R 104,503 9,544 2,664 3,534 - 120,245
Lease liabilities HEBRE - 6,282 6,703 5,614 7,210 25,809
At 31 December 2021 i —a

+-A=t+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERERR = 109,777 = = - 109,777
Amount due to related parties e B AR - 544 = = = 544
Borrowings a5 79,776 8258 2963 6,806 = 97,803
Lease liabilities MEBE = 8,182 6,147 10879 9,808 35016
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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6. HKRAKMEE®
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rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained above. Taking into account the Company's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HMASH - REREENZ RERBRRARH ZRITER

Total
Within Between Between undiscounted
1year 1and2years 2to5years cash outflows
REREE
—FR —EZME MERE e okl
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET THT THT FHET
At 31 December 2022 R=B==fF
+=HA=+-H
Borrowings & 41,387 69,331 - 110,718
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—F
+-A=+—H
Borrowings fBx 29,823 9,261 47,935 87,019
SECCEFH ARRENNEERAT 169
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6.

—E-_F+-_A=t+—HBILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because the
Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities other
than bank balances and bank borrowings. The future variations in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the results of
the Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all short-
term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the Group's
fixed time deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December:

6.

BEERER®
d) FIEER

(e)

AEEAZZFERRER - A
REB I BMIRITAET RIRITETIA
SMETEEREE BE - HRA
SERFBNXRRITEFHBRED
HE - MR REF K IEYH
AEBEEETREATE - Bt -
BEZ IR R BRE DT o

% LRI - AEE2 EH
BRREEFIET S - HAREA
FEFEES -

R+-HA=+—H=zE€¢mIA
=z ]

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FBxT FHET
Financial assets: EWMEE :
Financial assets measured at amortised cost BHIEKAGTEC S RMEE 249,717 317,250
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHK AR, 2B R 226,890 207,604

Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s financial assets and financial

liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

(f)
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-—_F+-_A=+—HLEFE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AV¥EFE®
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ R+=-—BA=+—HAFERER
December: HEBZEEER
Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEHERA it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
B8R B B=H —FE=-=F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTART FTAERT FHER FTAERT
Recurring fair value KEMEDNTEFE
measurements:
Investment properties RAE M (T E20)
(note 20)
- Commercial units — Taiwan -EEEMN-BE - - 9,917 9,917
- Industrial buildingsand land - T¥RER L
~ Mainland China - PR - - 218,797 218,797
- - 228,714 228,714
Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEERA Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
E—H F& F=H —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHT
Recurring fair value KEERATETE
measurements:
Investment properties RAE M (M E20)
(note 20)
- Commercial units — Taiwan -EEEMN-BE - = 9,532 9,532
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REMBHRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-ZT-__F+-A=+—"HLEFE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEEE®
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) BEBEF=RERALEFEZE
on Level 3: EYER
Investment Investment
properties properties
Description - Taiwan - China Total
REYE REYE
it -5 - st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FET
At 1 January 2022 R—_E—_—_F—H—H 9,532 - 9,532
Total gains or losses recognised in B 5 R Y W 25 Bk
profit or loss (#) E5E 4B %A (#) 1,346 - 1,346
Additions for the year FRARE
~ Transfer from property, plantand -~ B#¥1% « E &
equipment BT - 124,915 124,915
~ Transfer from right-of-use assets -BIEAREEER - 27,058 27,058
- Construction costs - AN - 29,018 29,018
~ Revaluation gain recognised in - REMEEIEF
other comprehensive income REE MW - 38,876 38,876
Exchange difference bE H ZRE (961) (1,070) (2,031)
At 31 December 2022 RZZB__F+=A
=+—A 9,917 218,797 228,714
(#) Include gains or losses for assets ~ (#) BIERREHARTH
held at end of reporting period BEMNER 1,346 = 1,346
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=-——F—HF—H 8817 = 8817
Total gains or losses recognised in B R W E sk
profit or loss (#) EstE B EE (1) 533 = 533
Exchange difference b H ZRE 182 = 182
At 31 December 2021 R=—ZT=—%F+=A
=+—H 9,532 - 9,532
(#) Include gains or losses for assets ~ (#) BFERHEH KT A
held at end of reporting period BEMEDR 533 = 533

“TFF®
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BE

7.

—E-F+-A=t—HIEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based
on Level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those
assets and liabilities at end of reporting period are presented in the
other income and other gains of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2022:

The Group's chief financial officer (“CFQO") is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The
CFO reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the Board of Directors at least twice a
year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional

qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

7.

ANEEFTE®

(b)

(c)

BREF=-"RRLFEHFEZE
E¥R: (8B
RiEERRZ B EREREE (R
EZERNREHEEEBCEER
R EFABRa A EE RS
RO EM U FFIE 25 -

ERAKEREAKEREN
KRR=ZBZZF+=ZA=+-—
AZATEFEMERMGES
ERBABBZHEER
AEBzEEVBE(EEMBE
BEDAEMERBMFEEERAR
ZRTEGE  BREREZRATE
B BB EEERNERSIE
HRZEATEFE - AFEMBER
EreFHIMRIRMEERF
HEBER -

IFE=ZRRFEFEMS @ AKH
—REINEARATERERA A
HEELRHERFETHE-




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HEZZT-—_F+-_A=+—HLFE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEEE®
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BEERAXAEEFRHEAGERERN
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value ER-B-_—_F+=-ZA=1+—
measurements at 31 December 2022: (Continued) BT EFERFEAMGES
EZRBWAHBZEEESR
(%)
Level 3 fair value measurements EF=RAFEF=E
Effect on
Valuation Unobservable fair value for
Description technique inputs Range increase of inputs Fair value
BARBIE MY
i fhER & TIEERARE #E ATEZ¥E NV
2022 2021
“E-CF —E-F
HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TAT
Investment properties = Mix of direct comparison ~ Yield 188%  Decrease 9,917 9,532
Commercial units = method and income (2021:1.8%)
Taiwan (note 20) capitalisation method \
RENE-BEEN  ERHEAENARE hEE 188% Y
- 5 & (Ft20) foE&a (ZZ=-%F 189
Monthly market rent HK$40,723-  Increase
HK$41,995/ping
(2021: HK$39,146~
HK$40,.273/ping) \
BATHHE HIBELE
499557/ HF
(ZB=—F:
39 146BTLE
4027357,/ 5%)
Investment properties - Income capitalisation Yield 5-57%  Decrease 218,797 N/A
Industrial buildings and method (2021:NA)
land = Mainland China
(note 20) N
REME-TZRER  WABRLE G 557% Y TEm
i~ EAR (c2=—%: TR
(MzF20)
Monthly market rent HKS43-45 persquare  Increase
meter per month
\ (2021:NA)
BRAmSMAS YRR #m
BBTE
4SBT
(ZF=—%:
AER)
For the investment properties — commercial units = Taiwan, during MIEEMHE - BESM - /&
the two years, there were no change in the valuation technique T AN GERTAMEER
used. B o
SToCEER  AREEWRBERAT 175
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e I RR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—F4+-_A=+—ALFE
8. REVENUE 8. WA
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (@) WABA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RNEERFZEERRBRBEHRES S
major products and service lines for the year is as follows: REABFPEHZWARMAT
2022 2021
- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers A& 8 B # R &5 2 B E 1555 &
within the scope of HKFRS 15 ARBEFEHZWA
Disaggregated by major products or BEIEZEMIRBEESE
service lines
Sales of goods EmiHE 327,291 471,838
Service income PR 75 8,589 15,972
335,880 487,810
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services REER T EZRGHE Kb
over time and at a point in time in the following major service lines i e P T i SR (B s ] B BB R B o
and geographical regions: RRFSE A WA -
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FAT
Primary geographic markets FTEHENS
The PRC GRlCTPNS 222,748 279,805
Taiwan = 102,680 203,065
Others Hith 10,452 4,940
335,880 487,810
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) WABRAE)
2022 2021
—EB-CHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Timing of revenue recognition RRWA Z R
Products transferred at a point in time REEREERE R 327,291 471,838
Products and services transferred overtime ~ BERFEER & 7 & RS 8,589 15,972
335,880 487,810
(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining b)) P7EHEEEZEFENNRTENR
performance obligation for contracts with customers B2RXBE®

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H %
o= 6h N (CRIEERK S 20D R =
) BHEE 2R 5B RERK

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2022 and the expected timing of recognising revenue as follows:

ABITEETEFFRIAT
2022 2021
—EB-F —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Within one year —FR 16,810 13,552

TECCFFR BRAREYNEERAA
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

9. OTHERINCOME AND OTHER GAINS 9. Httzm=MAIEF
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A B WA 1,654 2,053
Compensation income i = 1,902 =
Exchange gain HINE s 2 2,428 =
Fair value gain on investment properties LEME 2 N ERE 1,346 533
Rent concessions THERE 429 =
Rental income from investment properties wEME S K 241 241
Rental income from other properties and Hib¥ R EE 2 e e

equipment 2,390 2977
Government grants (note) SRR EACN =) 1,541 1,768
Others HAfth 2,008 1,261
13,939 8,833

Note: The government grants mainly represent unconditional tax refunds Mt A T EREAEE R B AEL

received from the local government in compensation for taxes incurred
and paid by the PRC operating subsidiaries of the Group, and COVID-19
related subsidies to a Taiwan operating subsidiary provided by the local

B A B TS 2R B 3 77 BT RO 16
HIRBCRE AR ER AR EH
BFAR—RBELENBRAESE

government. R TR A 80 R & i AR R B o
10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 10. REEE (FOBREE)
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) BLTRFIIE B ERRERE
recognised on: CRERE) :
Trade receivables =Y E N 4,715 (3,980)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2021: three) reportable segments as follows:

1. ThePRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group’s other reportable segment includes certain inactive
operations. None of the segments meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segment. The information of the
other operating segments is included in the “others” column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include central administration costs, directors’
salaries and interest income.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") makes decisions
according to operating results of each segment. No analysis of segment
asset and segment liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly
review such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment
results are presented.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—F#+_-_A=+—HL=FE

7 EBE
AEEBEUAT=ZR@{(ZE=—F : =1@)

AREH

1. FEREE
Hib (BB RERMAD)

ZRER 8 2 Al s ) BPE B A N R EE am AN
RISz RIEEBEL - ARNBEEBFTE
TREB A R & RS - MRS TR
T8 o

AR B R AR E S B EE T FE
BET - REHBUARBIREERT
WD ML RICPIE - RERMEESD
BB AR 2 — 18 -

RED Mz GBS B % MR M
4P E AR o DRRBE T BIEPRIT
BER EZHMEFNEWA -

TREZERRA(ZELERRADR
BREOMHNEEEBFELREK - AR E
REBERRALARRERD B KFHER

BMEHEHNZETER  BAE=E
INBMEERDHRENDN - Bt -
250 BUWARDEBEE

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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RE B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-—_F+-_A=+—HLEFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DE&ER @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets AKEsHERE BEEREEE
and liabilities: p
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
Bl K P =) | Hit st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERx FET FET
Year ended 31 December BE-_ZT——
2022 +=—A=+—H
IEFE
Revenue from external customers 3R B4NEERFE 2
WA 222,045 103,053 10,782 335,880
Segment (loss)/profit DE (B, & F (25,342) 9,060 2,326 (13,956)
Finance costs BB 3,805 430 108 4,343
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #13 ~ E K&
and equipment e 17,863 5,484 167 23,514
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets 6,799 3,033 530 10,362
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 2 & EE 1 6 423 - - 423
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment R Z B8
(Wea) 449 (21) - 428
Loss on disposals of right- HEFRAEEEZ
of-use assets &8 176 - - 176
Obsolete inventories write-off ~ PREFE M (96) - - (96)
Allowance/(reversal of T ERE
allowance) for slow-moving (B s
inventories 1,427 6,434 (531) 7,330
Inventories write-off FEME 5,041 266 445 5,752
Allowance for trade receivables & 5 Jf& U BR U & 2,105 2,610 - 4,715
Loss on derecognition of RILTERBEEZ
intangible assets (note 23) &8 (i E23) 5,147 - - 5,147
Impairment loss on goodwiill EIEREEE
(note 22) (PR E22) 2,133 - - 2,133




11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets

and liabilities: (Continued)

11.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=t—HLFE

DEER @
AHEPY 28R  SEREESE
E @)

The PRC Taiwan Others Total
AR B K B = EAh st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&TT FHET FET FHET
Year ended 31 December BE-_Z—-—F
2021 +=—B=+—H
IEFE
Revenue from external customers 2R B 9MNEFE P Z WA 279,046 203,172 5,592 487,810
Segment (loss)/profit o EB(E5HR),m (798) 65,490 (2,360) 62,332
Finance costs BB 1,510 217 95 1,822
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #73% - BB K& &1
and equipment e 18,793 5,560 174 24,527
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEERE
assets 6,843 1,583 614 9,040
Amortisation of intangible assets & 2 & &= ## 5 1,384 = = 1,384
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment R EE 157 1 = 158
Loss/(gain) on disposals of right-  H&EFE FAEEE -
of-use assets &8 (FlF 39 @) - 37
(Reversal of allowance)/ BREFE BiH
allowance for obsolete Bm), e
inventories (4,188) 2,051 819 (1,318)
Inventories write-off FEMH 13,255 = = 13,255
Reversal of allowance for trade B 5 FE Uk BR &5
receivables B (3,980) - - (3,980)
SECCFFR AREEMNEERAF 181
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DE&ER @
Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss and DEWA - BEREEHER
assets:
2022 2021
—Eg-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue 'ON
Total revenue of reportable segments AR E o EP AR A 335,880 487,810
Profit or loss B#
Total (loss)/profit of reportable segments AR 9 B 4e (B518) a T (13,956) 62,332
Unallocated corporate expenses RABARZL (11,246) (15,926)
Unallocated income R ELHEs 1,654 2,053
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax BRERIAR G (B518) VT (23,548) 48459

Geographical information:
The Group's information about its non-current assets by location of assets
are detailed below:

WIEER

AEBREEMEMB DN ERDEE

ZERFRR2IMT

2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$000 HK$'000
FBxT FHET

Non-current assets ERBEE
The PRC FR B K 424,941 382,973
Taiwan =V 66,317 76,972
Others Efb 2,202 1,906
Consolidated total R 493,460 461,851

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Mt SERBEETRIBRLERBEE -



11.

12.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from major customers:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

DEER @
RETEEFZIWA :

11.

2022 2021

—E-CF —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Customer A ZEA - 69,608
Customer B =FB 30,116 59,575
Customer C BEC 13,103 =

Each of the major customers represented a single external customer
whose sale transaction is generated from the Group’s Taiwan segment.

HEERAREEEDH

BEXBEFEEINEER  H#EES

o

/|/

X

FINANCE COSTS 12. BAE KA
2022 2021
—B-F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest on borrowings &AL 4,886 3,885
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 21) BEE GRS W FE21) 1,289 982
Total borrowing costs RIS TR 6,175 4,867
Amount capitalised EARbERE (1,832) (3,045)
4,343 1,822
“ECCFFHR BRZEYREAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

13. FAIEFHBEAX
DRIBRER Y FHERmT :

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax (‘EIT")  BNEAFS1E - h B> ZEFTEH
([ZFR1EH)
Provision for the year FNEE - 1,856
(Oven)/under provision in prior years BEFERECRE) TR (181) 181
(181) 2,037
Current tax — Taiwan Corporate income tax BVEARITE - 8B TS H
Provision for the year FREME 3,736 14,937
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEEEEECEE),/ TR (545) 107
3,191 15,044
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax and others ~ BNERFS 18 - BB FISH M E A
Provision for the year FRRE - -
Withholding tax A 10,805 1,820
Deferred tax (note 33) EIEFRTE (PF17E33) (6,891) (5,706)
6,924 13,195

REMEMERIRW (T - —F
25%) B REHR B - IFPEERMNETE
FEHAERHEEE10B(ZE = —F
10%) °

PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2021: 25%). The statutory
withholding income tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10% (2021:10%).

R BEARE R & ERRAD LR
gheR BKRE & B B I B A R BRERE PR 15

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan,
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% (2021: 10%) and

21% (2021: 21%) on dividends that are declared in respect of profits e A B K 37 R FE AR R 4 % U ER
earned by the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries respectively and that are ZBRE - BREEMHESFIR10%(Z
received by non-local resident entities. Withholding tax on dividends of T —F 0% M21%(ZF=—F :
nil (2021: HK$752,000) and HK$ 10,287,000 (2021: Nil) were recognised for 21%) e HE - E_—_F+_-_A=+—
the PRC and Taiwan respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022. HIEFE & 88D IR ETE

HHERT(ZT - —%F : 752,00087T) &
184 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2022 w
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan has been provided at a rate of 20% (2021:
20%).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HKS2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25% (2021: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be subject to
the tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%). The profits of the group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime will continue to be
taxed at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group's subsidiaries
operate, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
(loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—F#+_-_A=+—HL=FE

13. FRIf8BiB @

SR ERERIZE%(ZB-—4F :
200%) Fi Rt IR B o

RIBERAFEEEE  EEBKILHE
B & EEE B A E 2,000,000 7T K 15
1#825%(=F = —1F : 825%) T KM -
MEBBEZE BN EFEIE165% (==
—4F 1 16.5%) BB o FRARFS B
ETHEERERERRABEEIR
16.5%(—ZF = —4F : 16.5%) B REF: -

6% B B B EL A 2 [ P EE A B R AR 4 A
RIFETHB AR EEMERNEER L
RAMBEN - 2B RIEM - RERTT
BERFFEREH -

PIT 45 151 5 <2 BRRR 5 AT (85 48) i ) 3R A
PREIMRMAEHBER 2 ERERNT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax BREL AT (B518), R (23,548) 48459
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2021: 25%) BB EMSHTE25%
(ZF=—%F : 25%) 5T E 1A (5,887) 12,115
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible DAIF T 2 B s 2 2,481 6,468
Tax effect of income that are not taxable ARG 2 B2 (654) (1,849)
Tax effect on deemed sale of gift item RIELER MO HTE 237 180
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings A B B KER & EH B AR 2
of the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries RO IRBHN 2 ELEFIB A & (3,456) (102)
Tax effect of temporary difference and unused AR E R EH R AB A IEEE
tax losses not recognised BT R 8,162
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously &)l 4t B R HERFIBE B 2
recognised MBTE (2,836)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFERBEERE), /TR (726)
Withholding tax on income earned by non- FEE R EREATRER AR TE T
resident entities 10,805
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M AR TR E 2 M2 (1,191)
Others EAth (11)
Income tax expense FriS®if X 6,924
SECCEER  AREEWNBEERAT 185




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-__F+-A=1tHLFE
14. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. XEE (BR),wF
The Group's (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) REBAFE(EB),mHE NG
the following: AN THIEIE -
2022 2021
—EgE-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 423 1,384
Amortisation of contract costs EXolaws: ! 46 450
Auditor's remuneration for audit services AN A R B RS R B &
- Audit services - ZE AR 2,111 2,344
- Non-audit services - IEZERT 200 200
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) for trade B 5 EWRERFURE, ORER =)
receivables 4,715 (3,980)
Obsolete inventories write-off PREFEMH (96) -
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for slow- T ER S (BERE)
moving inventories (included in cost of sales) Gt ASHEKA) 7,330 (1318)
Inventories write-off (included in cost of sales) T & #isE GT A SHE R A) 5,752 13,255
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense ERERBFAZ 2 FERAR 143,389 153,014
Direct operating expenses of properties and AEAHSWE T MERRHEEE
equipment that generate rental income S 478 353
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #12 « FiE LR EITE 23,514 24,527
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included in ~ {FAEEEFE GFABERAE
cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses 288 & &M RITHRFAS)
and administrative expenses) 10,362 9,040
Fair value gain on investment properties REYHEZ A FEYE (1,346) (533)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BEREEZEE
equipment 428 158
Loss on disposals of right-of-use assets HEFAREE 2 EE 176 37
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREERY 13,285 45,126
Research and development cost TR AR 4,428 6,304
Net exchange (gain)/loss P& 5, (Weax) /B 18)F 58 (2,428) 560
Cost of inventories sold included staff cost, depreciation and operating EETENABIEEIAAR  TERLK
lease charges of approximately HK$28,703,000 (2021: HK$43,028,000) ZIRE B 4928,703,0008 T (T = —
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately. F ¢ 43,02800087T) © WEBFT AL KER

B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. ETENEHR
2022 2021
—Eg-= —EF - —F
HK$’000 HKS'000
Tl FHBT

Employee benefits expense (including directors’ B T&FIZER(BIEESHE) :
emoluments):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - fCALRER 128,924 146,113
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R FIET B3R
- Defined contribution plans - ERRHAEE 10,800 10,902
~ Defined benefit plan - EREENEE 1 19
139,725 157,034
Five highest paid individuals hEESHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year ended reEBBRE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—8
31 December 2022, one (2021: one) was the chief executive whose EFEREGZaRFMATHH—R(CE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a) to the Z—F: —B)REETHAE - ABiS
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the remaining ERERE M HmERWsE16() 5 54T N
four (2021: four) individuals are set out below: RER - HEpOE(ZTEZ—4F - [@F) A
TZBemT
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - B4 MoEBL 6,637 6,855
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIET B LR 220 252
6,857 7,107
The emoluments fell within the following band: EAERInT

Number of individuals

A

2022 2021

—E=-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 =

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 3

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000 7T 1 1
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the MARFE > KEFWES [ EMN X
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out below as an FESEEs TN a8 a5 A LT IR
induce enyto join or upon j@ining the Group or as compensation for I8 {fEARSI S NENINBERNEH

055 ofo Wr2 228 - SERBERR 2 fE -
SECCFFR AREEMNEERAF 187

AN

e



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
Directors’ emoluments and chief executive
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out

(a)

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022

16.

EEENRER
(a) EEMERIEFTBAR
SEFREETHARZHHRL

below: N
Employer’s
contribution
Salariesand  Discretionary to aretirement
Fees allowances bonus benefit scheme Total
EXHEKERN
ok HERER MERAL sTEIMAEER @5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2022 St -3 THT TR TER TET THT
Executive directors BTES
Dr.LEI Chien (Chairperson) BB L (ERE) 1,000 - - - 1,000
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias lvan Pan) &% N5 &
(note (i) (BFEE0) 250 - - - 250
1,250 - - - 1,250
Non-executive directors ~ FHITEE
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BT A 600 - - - 600
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRzL 1,051 - - - 1,051
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WRE L+ 240 - - - 240
1,891 - - - 1,891
Independent non- BYFBTES
executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRmE S 4 370 - - - 370
Mr.LU Chi-Chant (note () ~ EEB%4E
(BFEE)) 370 - - - 370
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien Bts e 370 - - - 370
1,110 - - - 1,110
Total directors’ emoluments & E#i 445t 4,251 - - - 4,251
Chief executive officer THRAR
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling MR L+ - 2,905 443 28 3,376
Total for 2022 —E-CFEs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=t—HLFE

16. EET/AIRER @)

/= =
(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a) §$M$&I_E”E{AE %ﬁ'\)\
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out FEFREBITRA S ZF ML
below: (Continued) LUNENC )
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries and Discretionary  toa retirement
Fees allowances bonus  benefit scheme Total
EXEHRIKEN
ik o RoEhh iR FTEIBHR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2021 —8=-& THET THx TET FTET THT
Executive directors BTES
Dr.LEI Chien (Chairperson) BB L (ERE) 1097 = = = 1,097
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias lvan Pan) &% 564 250 = = = 250
1,347 - - - 1347
Non-executive directors ~ FHTESE
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFIE R A& 1013 = = = 1013
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRzt 1044 = = = 1,044
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T 240 = 277 = 517
2,297 - 277 - 2574
Independent non- BIFHTES
executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long B S 4 240 = = = 240
Mr. LU Chi-Chant ERERE 240 = = = 240
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien Bt sk 240 = = = 240
720 - - - 720
Total directors’ emoluments  EEH& &5t 4364 = 277 = 4641
Chief executive officer THER
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling WREZ L = 2972 458 30 3460
Total for 2021 2972 735 30 8,101
T FFH BREEYREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

16. EET/AIRER @)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a) EEMERFTETHAEE)
Notes: BT -
0] Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias Ivan Pan) and Mr. Lu Chi-Chant resigned on 1 (i) BRNEERERERER -
January 2023. —=F—H—HEE-
(i) Mr. Lin Chia-Wei and Mr. Lin Tsalm-Hsiang appointed on 1 January (i) MRELEERMEELEN-Z
2023. —=F—-R—BEZE-
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any FAN - FETBRABREMRNES
emoluments during the year (2021: Nil). MERRWREMME (T ——
F |
(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (b) EERRE  r ZHIELYZE
arrangements or contracts Rz
Save as otherwise disclosed in the section headed “"Connected BRAFHRIBERIRESFTNEKR
Transactions and Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance” BHIZER]|—EHBITHESEN
of this Annual Report, there are no other significant transactions, RERSF A RFE EFET
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business ABAARRAGIEI I MARRIESERE
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of FEATEEEEREEE N R
the Company and the director’s connected party had a material BEAREEXBEEHR 2 HhEAR
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2 BHEREH »
year or at any time during the year.
17. DIVIDENDS 17. BRE
2022 2021
- - —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2021 Final of HK$0.003 (2021: 2020 Final of FRELER T —FRHKE
HK$0.003) per ordinary share 00038 (ZE=—%F -
— 2 THEREME0003ETT) 6,006 6,006




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2022,
a final dividend of HK$0.003 per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 was declared to be payable to the owners of the
Company. The aggregate amount of the final dividend amounted to
approximately HK$6,006,000 is recognised as dividend payable as of 30
June 2022 (2021: HK$6,006,000).

18.

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended 31

December 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
the reporting period.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$30,472,000 (2021: earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$35,264,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
share of approximately 2,002,100,932 (2021: 2,002,100,932) in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is presented as the Company had no potential
ordinary shares outstanding.

17.

18.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—F#+_-_A=+—HL=FE

BRE @
R-ZE——ERA-+HBBEAZAR
AREREFAE L ARRREE=-Z
4+ -A=Z+—BUEEFEERENM
FARRQ BIHEAE AR RHEAR B E/%0.003%8
TG ° ARERAR B 48 496,006,00078 TTIA =
T —FNA=-tHHEREEMBRE(Z
T — —4F : 6,006,000587T) °

BE-_FT-_—_F+-A=1+—HLFE
N WARIMNHEREARS - BRE
HRE RAR IR Z AR S -

B (E58|), EF

(a) BREXRERE) BF
BREAEETREBEARARES A
FE 4G AN 5 JZ B 18 4930,472,00078 TT
—ZE=—F  BRAEFNTIBEAR
NEIHER A FE1L & F 4935,264,000
B RFRBBEITEBER Z INEE
15 $0492,002,100,9320% (ZFE = —
£ : 2,002,100,93288) 5t H o

BREHEEF
BE_Z_—_— B —F+—
A=+—B1EFE AR AR AL
BEATIEINZ BIE LB - iR
S5 FREERF -

(b)

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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RE B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-_—F4+-_A=+—ALFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y% - MERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold fixturesand  Construction
[and Buildings improvements  Machinery Motorvehicles  equipment inprogress Total
M . ., e ;
R BF  NERE e hE Rk  ERIR h
HkS000 HS 000 HKS000 S 000 HKS000 kS 000 HKS000 HkS 000
Thn Thn TEn Fhn Thn Fhn TEn T
Cost IS
A1 January 201 R-E--%-f-A 18288 190179 62007 4035 3610 102584 151,862 568908
Additions 55 = 5 1995 53 = 9005 29053 4084
Constuction expenditure capitalsed ~— EAERRFR - - - - - - 3045 304
Disposals & - () (1211 (35) (359 (8464 (649 (21059
Transfer &y = 13 1531 %5l = 5648 7553 -
Bxchange diffrence ELZR 364 5735 163 1255 7 3019 5348 17403
At31 December 2021 and 1 Janvary 2022 =B -—F+-A=1+-BR
—Z--E-f-A 18652 196067 55077 2018 338 111,792 181,307 609,141
Additions iR = - 225 n 255 10841 30785 44309
Construction expenditurecapialied — BAVERER - - - = = = 1832 183
Disposals i3 - - (930) o (169) 269 = {400)
Transfer & = 54345 = - = 69 (54414 -
Transfe tolnvestment propettes ERERAnE
(note 20) (H&0) - - - - - - (124919 (124915)
Bichange difference EiZER (1,799) (17237) (2174 (3139 B1) (12010) 21319 (57989)
At31 December 2022 KRB _F+-A=1-A 16857 33175 5518 3905 3103 107798 13276 46836
Accumulated depreciation Zithe
At1 January 2021 R-E--F-5-A = 94066 55039 304 2585 75636 = 259368
Charge forthe year L = 5031 4010 230 “ 1272 = 15y
Disposdls il - (2 (11,20) (33%) B41) (5678 = (17589)
Exchange difference EizE - 29% 1480 1006 57 2066 = 773
At31 December 2021 and 1 January 2002 =B =—F+-A=+-BR
“3-—F-f-H = 102197 2930 35033 21544 84946 = 7401
Chage fortheyear FRZ - 5% 281 159 245 13563 - 13514
Disposals i3 - = (604) o (169) (2463 - 3283)
Exchange diference EiZR - 8623) (134 (269 (40) (8.267) = (12977
At31 December 2022 R-E__F+-A=t-H = 98870 48465 348 2380 87759 = M3
Carrying amount REE
At31 December 2022 W_B-—#+-A=1-H 16857 134305 6663 5183 1] 20039 13276 197046
31 December 2001 R-E--F+-A=1-H 1865 93870 6655 6985 784 26846 181,307 33509
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
At 31 December 2022, freehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$16,857,000 (2021: HK$18,652,000) and HK$69,498,000
(2021: HK$77,025,000) respectively were pledged as security for the
Group's bank loan (note 30).

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Group leases out the investment properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period

of one to five years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_Z-_—F#+_-_A=+—HL=FE

19. Y% - BMERRE®
RZE-__F+-_A=+—H ' kA%
W KRB F D BI#916,857,00078 70 (=
T~ —4F : 18,652,000 7T) 269,498,000
BIT(ZZT = —4%F : 77,025,000/ 7T) 2 &
HEANEERITE R 2R (M
30) °

BEYx
AEEREGENERERANE &
RgNEe - MENMBEBARA—
ERF -

20.

EHELHT  ARMAHEESNAEKE
ERZHARDEERE HAKEY
BARIINERR - HESNLTEEE
BERE/REEAAREETHEREER
W IRIFHE -

2022 2021
—E-F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 9,532 8817
Additions during the year REARE
— Construction costs 5 7N 29,018 =
~ Transferred from property, plant and - BYE - BERFRHEEA
equipment (note 19) (GEI) 124,915 =
— Transferred from right-of-use assets (note 21)  — B B EE A (Ff:E21) 27,058 =
~ Revaluation gain recognised in other -REMEAREERNERS
comprehensive income Wz 38,876 =
Fair value gains recognised in profit or loss RIERPERZNAFEKS 1,346 533
Exchange difference fEH =% (2,031) 182
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 228,714 9,532

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at the end of
reporting periods were valued on a mix of direct comparison method
and income capitalisation method. The valuations were performed by
independent firms of chartered surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

ARE A E AR BRGATET
BB BRI A B AR A A
o B E BTN B AT
7 o

HEZ_T-_—FR-_FT-_—F+=A=
+—HIFEZEEF AT EES - K
EEEENEZ LNFEEAFEBLSE
ZREER -

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF

193
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21. ERAEEE

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HEL HEYE wmEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RnZE=——F—H—H 49,371 7,666 57,037
Additions IR = 31,375 31,375
Disposals & = (474) (474)
Depreciation e (1,253) (7,787) (9,040)
Exchange differences EHZ=% 1,583 1,220 2,803
At 31 December 2021 and R-E-—4F
1 January 2022 +TZA=+—HK
—T-_F—H—H 49,701 32,000 81,701
Additions R - 7,197 7,197
Disposals HE = (5410) (5/410)
Depreciation e (1,210) (9,152) (10,362)
Transferred to investment properties 8 =15 & ¥ 2 (K1 7£20)

(note 20) (27,058) = (27,058)
Exchange differences PEH =% (3,777) (1,205) (4,982)
At 31 December 2022 A=

+—A=+— 17,656 23,430 41,086

Lease liabilities of HK$23,612,000 (2021: HK$31,791,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$41,086,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$81,701,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

R—_ZE-_—_Ff+=-_F=+—8"H
BEEE23,612,0008 T (ZE=-—%F
31,791,000 L) B E @ AEEE
41,086,000/ 7L (ZZ = —% : 81,701,000
Br) —RER - REBEARENHEESR
EEZW%T%E x50 - FE W TR IE
Y - HEEETSRIEEERER -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 21. EFHAEEE®

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 10,362 9,040
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in A& & & B X B GT ARVE K AN)
finance costs) (note 12) (B5E12) 1,289 982
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets ~ BEIKEEEERENF X
(included in administrative expenses and GFATTHRRSZ D HEMEERY)
distribution and selling expenses) 1,395 2,224
Expenses relating to short-term lease (included ~ BERHMEENMAS GTATEHAX
in administrative expenses and distribution ROHRHEERR)
and selling expenses) 2,770 3,856
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions received BFERIEEBESESR 429 =

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

For both years, the Group leases offices, factory plant and land for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of two
to ten years (2021: two to ten years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the PRC. The
Group is the registered owner of this property interest, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the land interest. The leasehold land components of this owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use
assets related to leasehold lands of HK$6,060,000 (2021: HK$6,859,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (note 30).

HEBRSRHRBEFBHANGEE M HER
RHEE39() ©

PREFE  ASEHEHRAE - BE
REHIAEITEE - el 2 HEA
VWEH_=2+F(ZT=—F : &+
F) o MERFIREREEREITRER - W
BEZBBIIEMERRGES - RETH
HRTETTHE PR EER - A&
EREASOTER META KRBT
W%%°

AN REBBER BN EARED
RFE AEERUYMEER (BHEEH
ME L) ZEMBEB A - BIEH—RMKE
BNRARSLIES - LEAMEL
HE T AEKEDIEERER D RAE
HZ NREEBFL7 -

RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' &x&
EEREETHNERAEEEREE
6,060,000/ 7L (ZF = —4F : 6,859,000/
T EEREARNEBEIRITER ZIKF R
(P &E30) °

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

22. GOODWILL 22, BHE
Sale of Medical
cosmetic aesthetics
products services
in the PRC in the PRC
(“CGUA") (“CGU B”) Total

RPBEARRE RPEXE
HEXRER HEBERXS
(ReEE BBE(RS

B{Al) ELBMNB] #st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T FHT FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2021 RN_ZE—_—%F—H—H 30,795 5718 36,513
Exchange difference fE X =58 859 186 1,045
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H
2022 2 —_F—H—H 31,654 5,904 37,558
Exchange difference E =% (2,212) (453) (2,665)
31 December 2022 R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H 29,442 5451 34,893
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHREEE
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=—_—F—A—H 3,948 3,747 7,695
Exchange difference MEH =5 128 122 250
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January RZE=Z—F+=HA=+—H
2022 rE=—F-——F—H—H 4,076 3,869 7,945
Impairment loss for the year FRREBRE - 2,133 2,133
Exchange difference MEH =% (312) (551) (863)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE—=—F+=-fF=+—H 3,764 5451 9,215
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2022 RZE-=—F+=-F=+—H 25,678 - 25,678
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—H 27,578 2,035 29613

1% Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited  Annual Report 2022 w
\\, / v N\ M



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and other intangible assets that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for the
purpose of impairment assessment.

CGUA

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses a discounted cash flow
method. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management covering a five-year period and cash flows over
five years using a growth rate of 2.02% (2021: 2%) and a discount rate
of 15.2% (2021: 16.9%). Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit's past performance and the management’s expectations
for the market development. The management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

The management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
on CGU A.

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded its
carrying value by HK$21,944,000. A decrease in gross margin of from 55%
to 549% or a rise in discount rate from 15.2% to 16.2%, all changes taken in

isolation, would remove the remaining headroom.

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T_—F+_A=+t—HILHFE

22. BHE®)

BRENGEENME - REEN B
X BELSRE CRAEEERELR
ERENEMETLEE  ERARBE
Mt A BREELEN -

HEELXEMNA

WEMN A NESRERFREETEE
o ZitERAMBEREREE - R
RETERTYRE EIE B E 2 T FE RS
BEEWYAERFHRESMENFEH2.02%
BWREER(ZEZ—F : 2%) & 15.2%85 3R
R(ZEZ—F 1 16.9%)BHE - FHE
B ER Az EMEEZBRREGTERES
RA/ RLEB(BEEERAREF
X)) BREMFIZASEEEN 2 BER
REERBEHMSERZENETE - &
BEMRE  ERZSEREZERNEER
REFHHNITSERMBREELEBU K
HAER IR S E A B2 ATk E 4
SEE o

AEEERERRRSELEMALER
8-

LAMEREEREMA LS EBAER
HI{H21,944,000/ 7T ° EFIRAE55%E
54%3K BEIR R W15 2% E16.2% © FiA
B BEZEF B IR FIRRRREE o

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HItEE

22. GOODWILL (Continued) 22.
cGUB
As at 31 December 2022
During year ended 31 December 2022, Beijing Jiayun Medical Beauty
Clinic Company Limited (“Jiayun”), one of the subsidiaries of the Group
which included in CGU B, was informed by Beijing Chaoyang District
Health Commission by written notice that the Practice Licence of Medical
Institution (the “License”) had been cancelled due to unsuccessful
renewal. As a result, losses on derecognition of relevant intangible assets
and deferred tax liabilities of HK$5,147,000 and HK$ 1,287,000 respectively
are recognised during year ended 31 December 2022.

Due to the cancellation of the License, the Group’s management
determined to fully impair CGU B and related goodwill of HK$2,133,000 is
impaired during year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2021

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and discount rate of 16.4%. CGU B's cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Cash
flow projections during the budget period for Unit B is also based on the
budgeted sales and expected gross margins during the budget period.
Expected cash inflows/outflows, which include budgeted revenue, gross
margin have been determined on management's expectations for the
market development and its business plan as well as consideration of
past performance of comparable clinics.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have been
reassessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into consideration higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year due to how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s medical aesthetics
services in the PRC.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
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HEELENB
A—E_—_HF+-HA=+—H
REE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEF
EAR - AEERBARItREmERE
AZHBERAR (=B GTABRSE
SEBEMR)EEILETHGRGERRES
BEMEEBEN  EEEMBHNES
F(HFAEDRAREEBER ML °
It RBE-_TE-_—#+-_A=+—H
WEFEAN - DREREBEEREERE
EMIBBE 2 K IEFEREE AR5,147,000
7B 7T 51,287,00078 7T °

HRFF A ERTH  AEBEEERE
YIRS EABMBTURERE IR
BE-_Z-_—_#+-_FA=+—HIEE
A B BB 2,133,0008 7T °
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e M ERR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. BLEE
Licenses
Al fE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost R
At 1 January 2021 R=ZE=—_—F—H—H 19,002
Disposals (note 39(a)) & (i 5E39(a)) (10,827)
Exchange difference EHZR 409
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HK
—2-_—_F—H—H 8,584
Derecognition due to unsuccessful renewal (note 22) RAIN B R B R (M9 5E22) (8,460)
Exchange difference MEH =R (124)
At 31 December 2022 R-TE-——F+-_A=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss it BERBEEE
At 1 January 2021 R—ZE—_—F—H—H 4948
Disposals (note 39(a)) & (B93E39() (3,518)
Charge for the year FAZH 1,384
Exchange difference HEH Z58 119
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZE-—F+=-A=+—HK
—E-_F—H—H 2,933
Charge for the year FAZH 423
Derecognition due to unsuccessful renewal (note 22) AR I B R B R (M9 5 22) (3,313)
Exchange difference MEH =5 (43)
At 31 December 2022 R_TE-——F+-_A=+—H -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2022 R-TE-——F+-_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2021 R-E_—$+-_H=+—H 5651
Licenses represented Practice License of Medical Institution and are AR R BRI+ F

amortised on a straight-line basis over ten years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARG BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-__F+-A=1tHLFE
24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 24. RIB B ZIRE
Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are as follows: R - —F+-_A=+—HB2Z2TEMH
BAFHEMT :
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREAR/
i/ R
WELARER B3/ tEEREN CRIER/ERES BEEER LA TERH
Direct Indirect
B 4
FREAEENREERAT The PRC United States Dollars = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty ("USS") 29,980,000 beauty products
Bio-Technology Company Limited)*
HEERFENHBERA R E AR 29980000 T ([% 7)) EERHERRREAER
FRERE =B EmBRAT) The PRC RMBB,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products
Company Limited)*
HEaAR=BtERERAR) hEARE AF%80000007C HERERXREMIERER
FREREERIMmERARe The PRC US$14,800000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics beauty products, aroma-
Company Limited)* therapeutic products, provision
of skin treatment, beauty and Spa
service
LEERFERILERERARE AR 148000005 7T EERBERRREREMR
BRERRREEE  FRR
KERB
HEABHRERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics Company Limited)* and aroma-therapeutic products
LERBltRmERAR" EIARE AR%100000007C HEEBRXREMIRHER
ERAZENHERABRAF Taiwan NT$201,000,000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Natural Beauty Bio-Technology beauty products
Company Limited)*
AAREYHERNERAF) RE #216201,0000007C LERHERBLIAER

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 %
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Hr—-—E—-—

Ft-A=+—BILFE

24. RB AR Z2RE @)

Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/

establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R
WEAEERE Bx/iREREN CRAER/AREX BEEER LA TEXH
Direct Indirect
B [
BREERNERLA Taiwan NT$126,086450 = 100%  Investment holding
(Huei Yao Investment Company Limited)*
BRRERNBRAR =) #18%1260864507C REER
WA BEEARBEERN AR AT Taiwan NT$50,000000 = 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
(Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Company Limited)* training
hABEEANBAERAERAT =) 31 2 8500000007C REERER RS R
BERERROBRAT Taiwan NT$100,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Ke Mei Yan Bio-Technology Company Limited)*
HERERRDERAR = #721100000,0007C HERERXRER
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609,858 100% = Investment holding
Class B shares MYR10,000
(lass A shares
BRAE 68,609,858 55 BB {7 REER
1000055 & AR
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
products
BRAE plit HEERREDER
Great Glamour Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
('BVI')
ERABRES 5000057 RERR
(RBERREE])
Next Success International Limited BVI US$100 100% = Investment holding
REABRES 100% 7T REER
TE-FFR  BRELEUNBERLA
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ARG BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-T-__F+-A=1tHLFE
24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RBARZIRE®
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R
WELARER Bx/iREREN CRAER/AREX BEEER LA TEXH
Direct Indirect
=3 [
Fortune Investment Global Limited BvI US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
REAARES 500007 REER
Natural Beauty Bio- Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited provision of beauty treatments
BARENRR(ER)ERAR B 1000078 7T HEVHERRRHERER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% = Investment holding
BAXTEERARAT &R 20000070 RERR
LERRAZENREARAT The PRC 552,600,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med supplement
Company Limited)*
HEEREENEERRA R YN 2600000% T EERHERER
HEERARBERARBRAR) The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products
Company Limited)*
EEEAXERIHMERLRR EARE AR%100000007C HERERIREMNERER
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REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RMIB AT ZERE @)

ZEWB R R R B AERIINE R
BEINEDRE -

*

These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises with limited liability *
established in the PRC.

. These subsidiaries are domestic limited liability enterprises in the PRC. " ZEMB AR ANPBERERHANE
BREMERE -
e The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the PRC. e ZWB AR A—BRFR B RER & H

BB

¢ Being English translated names.

B2 EXEE -

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Raw material R A4 # 67,936 70,830
Finished goods LUK 53,599 67,254
121,535 138,084
Less: Allowance o B (22,704) (17,123)
98,831 120,961

Reconciliation of allowance for inventories: GFEREYIR

2022 2021

—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT TET

At 1 January n—H—H 17,123 18,364
Write-off Hi51 85 (96) (299)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for the year FARE (B ERE) 7,330 (1,397)
Exchange differences b H Z&E (1,653) 455
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8 22,704 17,123
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e IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE T+ -A=+—HIEE
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. E5 R HEMBWIRR
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Trade receivables B 5 R 80,946 115,739
Less: Allowance for credit loss W EEEERE (5,147) (582)
75,799 115157
Prepayments TER IR 16,307 12,056
Deposits i ena 1,712 3,338
Other receivables HAth FE UL BR 5K 3,361 1273
Right-of-return assets RE#EEE - 145
97,179 131,969
The Group allows general credit period range from 30 to 120 days to AEEGRTHEREAEEHEERCED
its trade customers who are qualified for credit sales. The credit period BE—RNT3021208 258 - 2
provided to customers can vary based on a number of factors including EFRZ2EERAREBEZERZ(BEREP
the customer’s credit profile and sales promotion policy. ZAZ MR RARSHBUER) BT R o
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, based on the invoice BEEEHH  AEEE S RBERR(EE
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: HBRE ) 2 RIS T -
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within 180 days 180H A 68,304 104,751
Over 180 days Bi@180H 7,495 10,406

75,799 115,157
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=t—HLFE

26. EF REMEWERR @)
AEBMBSEWESFEETEUT
B SR EHE -

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT F#ET
HKS BT 1,970 465
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARETARE]) 51,480 51,59
New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$”) Far(lmarl) 21,503 63,066
Ringgit Malaysia (‘MYR") BARAEE(HED 846 30
75,799 115,157

27. CONTRACT COSTS 27. SRR
2022 2021
—=g-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHETT
Incremental costs to obtain contracts BEE 41 S A 281 319

Contract costs capitalised as at the end of the reporting period relate
to the incremental sales commissions paid to franchisees whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
agreements for the Group's services which are still not transferred at the
reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue
from the related services sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised
costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was approximately
HK$46,000 (2021: HKS450,000). There was no impairment in relation to
the costs capitalised during the year.

MR E RN E ML A LR AN E B AN
EEREESHEReER  ZENEE
REEEBERNEFP ATER RS H
HEAERNREIVEE RS - 648
X AN 1A #E 28 AR 75 8 & IR A FE SR ER R A Y
REBERRTERABHEERAN—I
M FRARERFPERNERLKAS
BE# 546,00078 7T (ZZ = — £ : 450,000
BIT) o FREE A A ALK AR HY R
B -

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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e I RR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HItEE
28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 28. ##FIRITEREBITRRELE
CASH BALANCES 2
In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank RZZTE—RF AKERERIER AR
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for BERERT(BHRITDEBRE R
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's EARITERERERAEBEIRITM
construction project. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon ZEBERBNALRE - ERRITHERS
the expirations of the guarantee letters. TE 1R Bk B 12 AR BRI 1R o
As at 10 March 2022, the pledged bank deposits were released and the RZZTEZZF=A+8  BRETEX
account was closed (2021: RMB3,054,000) (equivalent to approximately G ZERPER(ZE_—F
HK$3,745,000). AR #3,054,0007T) (18 & 1 493,745,00078
JT)e
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank and cash balances RITRIREEF 168,609 193,337
Less: Time deposits with maturities of B =AM E—FT
over three months but less than one year EIH9 2~ E AT 3K
(note (a) & (b)) (73 (a) B (b)) (8,017) (8871)
Cash and cash equivalent RekReEEY 160,592 184,466
Notes: s -
@  The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-rating @ AEEBEBRTFRFRERREETR
assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Taiwan, with fixed BETASEENR2AERT A
maturities and fixed interest rate which expose the Group to fair value B F A RIZEEFEGT L - @8
interest rate risk; while time deposits with fixed maturities and floating EEZ A ENERR A EE 2 H
interest rate are exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. A RIZFEF R B2 EHEFER - A%
REBATREREFRRAR
The balance was denominated in NT$. IR B EETHE -
(b)  Short term time deposits were made for a maximum period of one year b)) EHTHERNSERERA—F(Z
(2021: one year) with fixed interest rate ranging from 0.995% to 1.275% per TZ—F:—F) BAEFMNENT
annum (2021: 0.58% to 0.76% per annum). 0.995%%1.275% (=T = —4F : FFK

N F0.58%Z0.76%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 28. IS TEARETRESLE

CASH BALANCES (Continued) 7@
The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are AEFBELREFEMCHEEABENUT
denominated in the following currencies: EHETE -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE&xT FHEIT

HKS BT 1,734 2,127
RMVB AR 97,908 130,340
uss ETT 2,749 5333
NTS e 55,897 45513
MYR Bk 2,304 1,153
160,592 184,466

N-_ZE-_—F+-F=+—H K&EH
FERARMENBARTFEUARKSEZ
RIT MBS 17 497,641,008 L (==
——1F 1 125,491,000 7T) ° AR
BB IINE 78 38 18 o B K BE SNE & Il 15451
MEEE - EERMESERTE -

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank and cash balances held by the
PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB was amounted to approximately
HKS$97,641,000 (2021: HK$125,491,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. B REME[SERM

2022 2021

—=g-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Trade payables B S E IR 9,764 15,151

Deposits from franchisees InEERe 24,746 28,582

Other tax payables HAth RS 6,133 8913

Accruals e & 29,141 46,040
Construction costs payable for investment EANESE= R/ :0)i MM FIN

properties 29,018 -

Other payables E b R ERIR 7,729 10,710

Refund liabilities BRREE - 381

106,531 109,777

“ToFFHR BAXEVYREERAT
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows:

29. EFREMEMSIRRG®)
RENSHZAREESE  A£2EE5

FEN BRI Z BREE AT AN T

2022 2021

—E-= —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 90 days 90H A 9,254 15,143
91 days to 365 days 91HZE365H 510 8
9,764 15,151

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEEE 5 EMNRRZREEIAT

MEEHE -

=

2022 2021
—E-CF T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FET

RMB AR 5,896 4881
NTS ek 3,733 10,270
MYR Bk 135 —
9,764 15,151

P
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FREMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE
30. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 30. ERRIRITRE
The analysis of the Group's bank loans is as follows: REBRITERSFTOT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Secured bank loans BHIRIRITE K 114,205 97,283
Note payable A3 5,661 =
119,866 97,283
2022 2021
' —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —F LR 30,463 34,484
More than two years, but not more than five years FIF A _ERFLAT 6,024 9,482
36,487 43,966
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment  —F & F|HIEBZEBERSIRENK
after one year but contain a repayment on BRIERRIRITERE D
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) (RREEEYIR) 83,379 53,317
119,866 97,283
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 B AR BRFE A 5B
12 months (shown under current liabilities) (RREEEYIR) (113,842) (87,801)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 12{E A 1 2 Bf FE - 5/ I8 6,024 9,482

—ToEER  AREEWREERAR 209
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e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

30. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 30.

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are denominated in the
following currencies:

BERKRBITEE @)

AEBRITERZEEENL TG
8 :

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHET

RMB AR 111,297 84,085
NTS b=k 8,569 12,298
119,866 97,283

The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest rates:

R B2 SRITEFIR TR XS

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E—F

Bank loan at floating rate of HK$ 114,205,000 % BERTTE 5X114,205,00078 7T
——f:

(2021: HK$97,283,000) (=%

Borrowings of HK$114,205,000 (2021: HK$97,283,000) is arranged at
floating interest rate which was exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

Note payable HK$5,661,000 (2021: Nil) is at fixed interest rate 0.05% per
annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s banking facilities and bank loans
totalling HK$119,866,000 (2021: HK$97,283,000) are secured by charge
over the Group's right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands and
buildings located in the PRC, freehold land and building located in
Taiwan (note 19 and 21), and also personal guarantee from a director of
certain subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has approximately HK$239,192,000
(2021: HK$214,652,000) of available undrawn banking facilities.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
/ v N\ M

97,283,000/87C)  0.96%-5.70% 0.96% — 5.70%

B 114,205,000 L (2T - —F =
97,283,000/ D) 1L F BV A KET B - S A E
BAZRERSFNRER -

B =45 5,661 OOO/%E(_§:—¢ D 4E)
IR [E E FFZE0.05%5THE

R—_ZE-_—F+-F=+—H A&H
RITHMERBITEREE AN 9866000
BIT(ZZT = —% : 97,283,000/ 7T)
AR EE RGP BRAENEE if@&
EFEHENEAREE RAEK
R%*Eiim&ffi:?(mfﬁzw)}zm)u&
T OB A R E B E AFERFTIER

RZBE-_—_F+_A=+—H " £5E
WA 4239,192,000 B (Z T = —F
214,652,0007 7T) &9 AT 8) A R HE EUER 1T &b




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_—_F+-A=t—HLFE

31. BHEE

2022 2021

—E-CHF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Prepaid beauty treatment fees BNERERER 3,749 4,477
Sales of products EmiEE 13,061 9,075
16,810 13,552

The contract liability is the consideration received from the customers
which represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods and services to
customers that has not been completed. All the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year has been realised to revenue in the current year.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

Prepaid beauty treatment fees
The Group typically receives a 100% deposit before the services
commence.

Sales of products

The amounts of consideration received in advance as prepayments by
customers who are not qualified for credit sales are short term as the
respective revenue is expected to be recognised within a few days when
the goods are delivered to customers.

BMAERBEEPKEIZNRE  BXE
B ARTERETRE S EEE M RRE
ZEB - FNZMERNAREERASF
AEAMA e

HRABNABSEBRTELZ KX
FHEFRIAT -

ANEREBEER
A5 B — AR AR 7% 5 46 AT W ER100% 3%

Em#EE
AEERATNFEEEHEERZETPRE
AR ERENRRKESBIERE
5 RARSBARBRERRNEP
ZIREVBRAER -

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

32. fHEE®E

Minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BEEENK REAERNRRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--F T —F B —T——F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FH&T FHET
Within one year —FR 6,282 8,182 5,566 7,015
More than one year, but not —F A LB BIBRE
exceeding two years 6,703 6,147 5,714 5,348
More than two years, but not M LA BB E R F
more than five years 5,614 10,879 5,280 9,890
More than five years FEMNE 7,210 9,808 7,052 9,538
25,809 35,016 23,612 31,791
Less: Future finance charges B BB ER N/A N/A
(2,197) (3.225) TE A @A
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAE & TIR{E 23,612 31,791
Less: Amount due for settlement — Jg& : 1218 A R E| B fE{
within 12 months (shown FERRBAE
under current liabilities) 5l7R) (5,566) (7,015)
Amount due for settlement 12 A & 2 BRFE R RUIR
after 12 months 18,046 24,776
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities are denominated in AEEESEREZREENTIIEEE
the following currencies: B :
2022 2021
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
RMB AR 5,212 10,379
NT$ ek 17,424 20477
MYR B 976 935
23,612 31,791
The average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities HEBBEMHEAR E’J$i’71 EEZAEN
ranged from 1.29% to 10.6% (2021: from 1.2% to 10.6%). T1 2% 10 6%(=ZE =
10.6%%%

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2022 w
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e MR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. IEEHIA
Undistributed
Allowance Other earnings
forbadand Revaluation Defined ~ Unrealised  short-term of PRCand
doubtful  Inventory of benefit  profitson  temporary  Intangible Taiwan
debts  provision  properties liabilities inventories differences assets entities  Tax osses Total
HERER
B8 AER AHER RERHRY
REERE GERE  EMMR  BAAR  AREN  ERER  BMEE  AORER  WEER it
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS 000
Thr  TEr TR TR TEr TR TEn Tk Tér  Thn
At January 2021 R
—-A-H 2289 4002 478 108 314 16 (3514) (528 8992 10243
Cedtichage)oprofitor — ERRNBEREFA/
los forthe year (note 13 (i) (Bt33) (21%9) 709 (108) = ) %0 37 102 8020 5106
Charge toother ERRER2ENR
comprehensive income bile3
forthe year - - - 13 - - - - - 13
Disposal o a subsiciary HE-FBAT
(note 39) liR=I) - - - - - - 187 - - 187
Eichange difference EXEE i 153 9 (1) 188 3 (114 (1) 350 3
31 December 2021 and e
1 January 202 tZA=+-HR
- St
-A-H 162 3452 379 60 2605 959 (1414) (5303) 17362 18262
Creditlcharge) o proftorloss — ERRERRFTA/
fortheyear (note 13 (B (hgz3) 59 1578 (269) = (5) %2 1200 3456 613) 6801
Charge toother comprehensive MR EH2ENE
income forthe year n - - 9719 - - - - - - 9719
Exchange difference EiZE %) (34) 235 ) 0E) {10y WM 0 03 (1489)
At31 December 2022 e Sk gl
=1-H 726 4687 (9374 % 2440 1840 - (1849) 15425 13,949
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e HRERM R

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE

33.

—E-_F+-_A=t+—HBILEE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for consolidated
statement of financial position purpose:

33. IEEBIE®)

AT BB E MR RER MmAETTHER
FEFLIRAEBR AT -

2022 2021

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAET

Deferred tax assets RIEF IR B B 25,172 24,979
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIAEE (11,223) 6,717)
13,949 18,262

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$110,514,000 (2021: HK$84,117,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$61,699,000 (2021: HK$69,403,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$48,815,000 (2021: HKS$14,714,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$38,122,000 (2021: HK$2,771,000) that will expire after
5 years from the year of assessment they related to. Other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated
to be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been
provided for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such
profits amounting to approximately HK$8,804,000 (2021: HK$79,934,000).

REHREER  AEBERSEH
TEET1849110,514,0008 T(ZF = —4 ¢
84,117,000/ 7T) 7] A YE SH R 2K S A1) ©
Bt A EE1E461,699,0008 T(ZZF =
—4F 1 69,403,000 70) ERELETR B E
E o AR BERAREAETE - Eit
WEEFLER T 248,815,0008 (=T = —
F 1 14,714,0007870) 2 TIAE B ERIE T
REEE - ABRBHEBEREERHE
AR EERAIFRIHNEERY
38,122,000/ 7L (Z T = —4F : 2,771,000/%
JL) o EAh A IR E A R HiAEEE o

AEBEFRIE T A B ARE KGN B A
RIB-EEN\F—A—HRBMELAZRX
DIRBEF - fEHEEBURERERE - R
AAEEREEBARMGFN LER
AEDIR - AEBEERFREBBREFZ
BT [ 7 A 3R E A TH 48 8 498,804,000
BT (ZT = —4F : 79,934,000/ 7T) °
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(a)

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the PRC.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the "HK MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for
all employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Labour Standards
Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF Scheme”). The HK
MPF Scheme and the TW MPF Scheme are defined contribution
retirement plans administered by independent trustees. Under
the HK MPF Scheme and TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% and 6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there is no
cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions
to the plans vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the PRC
government. As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, these
relevant subsidiaries participate in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its PRC employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits associated with
these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$10,800,000 (2021:
HK$10,902,000) represents contributions paid or payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

BE

(a)

“TFF®

ARE B H R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022
TR F+A=t+—RIFE

34. RIKEFEE

EREH RS
AEEFERRES - & NTE
RER G BIREB M EBRHEFTRK
FHEIBER -

NEBE R A S RE ST EE
Bl (BEBENF485F) BHERT
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BE-_ZE-__F+-_A=1+—RHIEE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The
Group has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned by the employees. The
Group currently contributes at 2% of the total salaries monthly as
determined and approved by the relevant government authorities.
Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits equal to two months’ salary for each year of service for
the first 15 years and one month’s salary for each year of service
following the 15 years, but not more than 45 months’ salary in
aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the PUCM. An
actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was carried
out by an independent actuarial firm which is a member of The
Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China.

34. RREFNET®

(b)

ERREA T &
AEBRENBLRRARERES
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. ERBEIRET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGEE)
The plan in Taiwan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BENHESASEEAZREER
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. e Pl AR - FIERR - K

Investment risk:

RERR

Interest rate risk:

M=ER

Longevity risk:

REERE

Salaries risk:

FaEE

SRR MFERR -

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined
by reference to the weighted average rate of long-term government bond and long-term bank
deposit rate. Overall market condition is also taken into consideration. The change of discount rate
was noted mainly because of the stable level of bank interest rate. The management of the Group
considers that the general environment of Taiwan will not be changed materially over the coming
years over which the relevant present value will be discounted. Currently the plan has a relatively
balanced investment in various financial instruments and assets.

EREEMN B8 ENREDRABL2ERABNES RRBARITERNENETFIGH =
BRETHHREGE - BEMSEATHAZE - BRXFHFEXIET - RADR
RITHNENRBEKT - AEEERER R AEBRBRENAREEH TG LR SIEH
REMBRNERES - BA - ZAtEEEMEHEESREeRIAREENHERE -

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

BEHFM R DAGE N EIRE - A - bR BIR BRI E BRI IE A0 1780 8N o

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
ERENSaENRENKLEF2EENERIEREER 2 LT RN KEMTE
FTH - FHEI2RENTIFHEMGIEINTEIEE -

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

THRBNAZAENRENL2EFE2EENRRFRIE - Bt - SAE2EEY
FEMBE MBI RLE -

TECCFER  BRAREYNEERAF
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BHE T+ -A=+—HIEE
34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. RARBERNEE @
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGEE)
() The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the () HTETHREGERARAZ
actuarial valuations were as follows: FERRKAT :
2022 2021
—E- —EF-—
Discount rate ALER & 1.2% 0.50%
Expected return on plan assets ST EIE &= 2 TE B ) 1.2% 0.50%
Expected rate of salary increases TERR ST 2 1L hntE = 2.5% 2.50%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value BEAEEERTEEEZT
of plan assets was approximately HK$6,354,000 (2021: {B#76,354,0008 (= F = —
HK$6,678,000). F : 6,678,000/ 7T) °
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the (il EBRERETERZITEERE
defined benefit plans are as follows: FErElS T -
2022 2021
—E-CHF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Current service cost IR ARFS A AR - 17
Interest on obligations (£ TN 32 24
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 TR B 3R (31) (22)
1 19
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income/
(expense) in respect of the defined benefit plans are as

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HEZZT-—_F+-_A=+—HLFE

34. RREFNET®
(b)

EEENGFEE)
iy ERAEMEEmIKRZE(FAX)
MR BN ESFEN

follows: S
2022 2021
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Remeasurement on the net defined BHFTEEREENAaE
benefit liability: R
Actuarial gain/(loss) arising from BTt EELEZRE
remeasurement Wezs,/ (E518) 473 (797)
Expected return on plan assets BB E 2 TEEIE 498 124
971 673)

(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in

vy BEFABRAFBIRIIEERZ
ERBMNASEE 2 AEE

respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BEBEREWOT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Present value of funded defined benefit B REREEAERRE
obligations 5,654 6,980
Fair value of plan assets rEEEZ AT E (6,354) (6,678)
Net (asset)/liability arising from defined EREMNEBEEZ
benefit obligations FEE)/BE
(700) 302

Level of funding at the end of the reporting period are as

RS HPEEE R 2 H R

follows: BT
2022 2021
—E-= T
Level of funding R 51 112.39% 95.68%
SEoCFER  HREEVNEERAT
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HE_Z-__F+_-_A=+—HIFE
34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. RARBERNEE @
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGEE)
(v} Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v) AFEEFBEIANEEREZ
obligations in the current year were as follows: BEINT :
2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 6,980 8,029
Current service cost I R AR 75 B AR - 17
Interest on obligations (EGE TN 32 24
Benefits paid =ENEERl (219) (1,1171)
Company payment UNCIENE=N - 913)
Actuarial (gain)/loss BE (), EiE (473) 797
Exchange difference EHER (666) 137
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” 5,654 6,980
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current V) AEEHEEEAFEZE
year were as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 6,678 7,487
Contributions from the employer EEMH® 3 19
Expected return on plan assets BB E 2 TEHIE 3 31 22
Actuarial gain TBE e 498 124
Benefits paid B E A (219) (1,111)
Exchange difference EH =% (637) 137
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,354 6,678
Actual return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 BIREIH 529 146
The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based EEFTETEEIE AT O 1R
on historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the BREIEREZRSTEY

market for the assets in the next twelve months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. RRENEFT®
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGEE)
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current V) AFEHEEEATFEZE
year were as follows: (Continued) BT - ()
The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of FEIEEZEZHANARR
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each WEBMEE AR ENGEE
category are as follows: BEATEZBDLLIT :
2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—
% %
Deposits with financial institutions £ & BB mNTR 15.81 18.87
Short-term bills RHREE 4.76 4.99
Stocks e S 13.01 9.02
Bonds &% 6.00 6.24
Others Hith 60.42 60.88
100.00 100.00
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination EETHEBMAXERE
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected 2% B IR R R TA HA & & 1E
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been e LATNSRRE DT DR
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the EBRERMEHALEFERA S
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting B0 g B B R BT A H MR
period, while holding all other assumptions constant. BRI MERE o
- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower), - WRAEBE LM, OR
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by D)100MEES - BIEEE
HK$378,000/(increase by HK$424,000) (2021: decrease & M B 7% R 2378,000
by HK$500,000/(increase by HK$564,000)). P IT, (35 I0424,0007%8
T ZEZ—F R/
4>500,0007% 7T/ (3& A

564,000/ 7T)) °

- Ifthe expected salary growth increases/(decreases) by - HREHFSERIE
1% (2021: 1%), the defined benefit obligation would m/ R 1w(=2 =
increase by HK$355,000/(decrease by HK$325,000) —F :1%) - AIERER
(2021: increase by HK$474,000/(decrease by FIE 75 1% 38 51355,000
HK$431,000)). BT,/ Ol 4>325,0007%

TTI(ZEZ—F :

hn474,0005% 7T,/ CR
431,00087T)) °
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HE—_T——

=

Ft+-A=+—BLLFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(b)

(Vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the PUCM at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31
December 2022 is 7 years (2021: 8 years). The Group expects
to make a contribution of HK$3,000 (2021: HK$19,000) to the
defined benefit plan during the next financial year.

34. ERBEIRET @
EEERIE ()

(b)

(Vi)

AEEFFEEEAFEZE
BT (8
EFGRRE DA REI A
REBBINEHB ERE
B EARETHERXRAELER
BE - BERR AR M
VREAMERRTLIRES -

HESN R FY E SR 4T
B EEEREE 2 RER
iR R G B R TR
EUEEAHE - HERE
AMBRRBE P ERL E
BEFI B B E IR U
HER -

i BB T BT TR R
BRI FE L -

RZEBEZZF+=ZA=*+—
B BAEEOFHFERA7
F(ZEZ—F : 8F) - &~ %
EFESARTEYEFESTE
AR FIFT 811 H3,0008 7T (=
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BE_T_—F+_A=+t—HILHFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. R
The Company
PN/
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
BROEE B4 EE
HK$'000
FHAT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEIB L EBR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZTF_—F—H—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —T-—%+-RA=+—H"
—E_F-A-HRK
T+ HA=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
ROEE IR EE
HK$'000
FHET
Issued and fully paid: EERTRHBE :
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZFZ—F—H—R1 "
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E_—F+-A=t+—8H"
—E__F-H-HBEK
B _F+-A=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard the AEEEREER, HERBRAEE K
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the MBS WHEETEEH IR
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and REERR - R FMHE AL ©
equity balance.
The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the AEBBBERESKARSEHEARA L
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The HERRIATE RS ERNGEHE AEEH
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of 1B mIRA AR B - BITE ARG KB E A%
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of MEBITHEB 2 AN - FTEHHEEREE

new debts. KEERE -

T FER  HREEYRNBEERAT 223
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BE

35.

—E-_F+-_A=t+—HBILEE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, capital surplus, retained earnings and other reserves).

35. lRA& @)

AEEENEHHEHBEAR L RER
BN o UL EUEBHFERACARE
A8 - EHFRAEBERRRE R
ReSEYAE  KRABREABEER
M2 ERAERER D (B - B iifE - &
B REBEN M EAM ) o

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHBxT FHET
Debt (a) B (@) 143,478 129,074
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RENRREEEY (160,592) (184,466)
Net debt BT 55 N/A N/A
TEH TEA
Equity M 597,462 657,918
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FREECHBRENRL X N/A N/A
TiEH TEA
(@  Debt is defined as borrowings and lease liabilities as detailed in @ BEATETAEBINEEERE 1B
note 30 and note 32 to the consolidated financial statements D BIE A AR S B 75 R 2R T 5330 &2 B

respectively.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the non-
public float through the Stock Exchange’s website and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. At 31
December 2022, 25% (2021: 25%) of shares were in public hands.

5F32

ME—IMNBERANERNBERKEAKE R
R X P BT i 4B A £ 25% 0
HAREA °

AEBB BB IABUMERNBLRIEAR
BREZEERGER  HBERRAF
E—EHEERTARLUERHEIRTE - N
T —F+-_A=+—H8 ' 25%(=ZF=
—F  5%)RIDEAARIEE ©
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BE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—RIEE
36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. &AQ 8 2 B I AR R R R E
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 25
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ARAFRZHMBARRER
As at 31 December
n+=-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
e TERx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIZIEE 169,398 169,398
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments & RIBFRIE 809 879
Amounts due from subsidiaries i D= NGIE QL] 76,146 83,038
Bank and cash balances BT NIBER 1,058 1,199
78,013 85,116
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FE B AR R E A FE ST BR SK 2,887 3,381
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHB B A B) OB 20,610 40313
23,497 43,694
Net current assets REBEEFE 54,516 41,422
NET ASSETS EEFE 223,914 210,820
Capital and reserves B A R 4
Share capital f& s 35 200,210 200,210
Reserves i 36(b) 23,704 10,610
TOTAL EQUITY R 223,914 210,820
Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2023 and are N_ZE-—=—F=-At+HEEE<H )
signed on its behalf by: o WHATREZER
Dr. LEI Chien Mr. LIN Chia-Wei
MERELE

T FER  HREEYRNBEERAT 225
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BHE T+ -A=+—HIEE
36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. AR B 2B AR A BERK fEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 285 w@
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATRZFEEEE
Share premium Accumulated losses Total
i 435 8 REtEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHAT
(note 37(b)(i))
(B =E37(0) (i)
At 1 January 2021 MR- —4F
—H—H 41,016 (24,418) 16,598
Total comprehensive RNEZE2EK =B
income for the year - 18 18
Dividend paid (note 17) BATARE (FzE17) (6,006) = (6,006)
At 31 December 2021 and RZZFE=Z—F+=H
1 January 2022 =+—HK
==
—H—H 35010 (24,400) 10610
Total comprehensive NEZEEK BT
income for the year - 19,100 19,100
Dividend paid (note 17) BT B (FFEE17) (6,006) = (6,006)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_F
+=—HA=+—H 29,004 (5,300) 23,704
37. RESERVES 37. f#&
(@) The Group (a) #AKE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are REBHESEREEHINAEEH 2
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss HAEEmkEMEEKGER A RS R
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of wmEERED o

changes in equity.
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BE-_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. #E®
BEMEREWY

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b)

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the relevant share of the carrying
value of the subsidiaries’ net assets acquired upon the
reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC companies with foreign investment are required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations (the
net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP"), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves
shall be made in accordance with the Article of Association
and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of
their net profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan
companies shall set aside 10% of their statutory net income
each year for the legal reserve, until the reserve balance has
reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which they were created
and are not distributable as cash dividends.

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

“TFF®
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HE-_ZEZ-—_F+-_A=+—RIEE

37. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv)  Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

(v)  Property revaluation reserve
The property revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
transfer of land and buildings to investment property in note
4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share-based payments scheme
Share Award Schemes 2022
Refer to announcement dated on 25 May 2022, the Company has
adopted two share award schemes, namely Scheme | and Scheme
Il. Scheme | is for Eligible Participants who are connected persons of
the Company, while Scheme Il is for Eligible Participants who are non-
connected persons of the Company.

37.

38.

RE@
(b) HEMERENGE
(v) BE GG
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)

Purpose of the Share Award Scheme 2022

The purpose and objective of Scheme | are: (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain Eligible Participants and to closely align
executive interests with the growth and financial achievements of the
Group; and (i) to provide a performance-driven long-term incentive
award to motivate and retain key senior management. The purpose and
objective of Scheme Il are: (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
Eligible Participants and to provide them with incentives in order to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group; and (ii)
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Scheme | is for Eligible Participants who are connected persons of the
Company. Eligible Participants of Scheme | include: (i) any directors and
employees of the Group (including without limitation any Directors, chief
executives and the directors of the Subsidiaries); (i) any directors and
employees of the holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated
companies of the Company; (iii) any person who provide services to the
Group on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual course
of business which are material to the long-term growth of the Group
as determined by the Remuneration Committee; and/or (iv) such other
persons permitted by the Listing Rules to be participants of the Scheme.
Scheme Il is for Eligible Participants who are non-connected persons of
the Company. Eligible Participants of Scheme Il include: (i) any employees
of the Group; (i) any directors and employees of the holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company; (iii) any
person who provide services to the Group on a continuing or recurring

basis in its ordinary and usual course of business which are material to
the long-term growth of the Group as determined by the Remuneration
Committee; and/or (iv) such other persons permitted by the Listing Rules
to be participants of the Scheme, excluding chief executive officers,
directors or employees of any member of the Group who are connected
persons of the Company.
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38.

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the Share Award Schemes Rules, each of the Share Award
Schemes shall be valid and effective for a term of ten (10) years
commencing on the Adoption Date.

Total number of shares available for Share Award Scheme 2022

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares by
allotment and issuance of new Shares which will result in (i) the
aggregate number of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Schemes and the Share Option Scheme exceeding ten per cent
(10%) of the relevant class of shares of the Company from time to time;
and (ii) the aggregate number of new Shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding three per cent (3%) of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date. If required by the
Listing Rules, the Board shall also set such scheme mandate sublimit for
such category of Eligible Participants which shall be approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless otherwise permitted by the applicable Listing Rules and approved
in accordance with its applicable requirements under the Listing Rules,
the maximum number of new Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Participant under the respective Share Award Schemes shall not,
in aggregate with any Awarded Shares issued and to be issued to such
relevant Selected Participant(s) and any other new Shares issued or to be
issued to such relevant Selected Participant(s), exceed one per cent (1%)
of the relevant class of shares of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period (or such other percentage as may be permitted under the Listing
Rules).

Vesting Period of awards granted under the Share Award Scheme
2022

The Awarded Shares held by the Trustee(s) on behalf of the Selected
Participant shall vest in accordance with the Vesting Schedule, which
shall comprise a minimum period of twelve (12) months or such shorter
vesting period as may be determined by the Remuneration Committee
or as may be permitted under the Listing Rules.
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)

Termination

The Share Award Schemes shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the
10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the Board by a resolution of the Board.

No share award have been granted since the adoption of the Share
Award Scheme 2022 and there are no outstanding share awards at the
end of the year.

Share Option Scheme 2011

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 13
May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme 2011") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company
may grant options to full-time employees (including executive and non-
executive Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe
for the shares at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted. Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant. The Share Option Scheme 2011 was approved at the Annual
General Meeting ("“AGM") on 13 May 2011. The Share Option Scheme
2011 expired on 12 May 2021.

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2011 may be exercised
during such period as would be determined by the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of
the option, but in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the option. The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme
may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event will not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average of
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (c) the nominal value of the

shares.
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38.

Equity-settled share-based payments scheme (Continued)

Share Option Scheme 2011 (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme 2011 is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue or with an aggregate value
in excess of HKS5 million based on the closing price of the shares at the
date of each grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or
the refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to
shareholders” approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme 2011 and any other schemes of the Company (or the
subsidiary) must not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company (or the subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may
be granted under any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this
will result in the limit being exceeded.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New
Scheme was nil.
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. R RERMT

CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary (a) HE—RBKHEBEAT
On 30 June 2021, the Group and an independent third party —ZE-—FXA=1+H AEEHEH
entered into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to which, —BBUE=FEMNEEHE
the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party Bt AEERELEMBEYE=
agreed to purchase 100% of the issued shares of a subsidiary of FREBEEAQNR—HAWEAR L
the Company, Shanghai Lixin Medical Beauty Clinic Company BHEBREERZHAERAT(N
Limited (“Lixin"). The total cash consideration for the disposal was E1HI100%E 1T MK - £IEH
RMB4,500,000. EMRRESRERAR4500,000

=

Lixin has been engaging in provision of medical beauty service NE—EREFREEREZETRBE R
and sale of skin care and beauty products. The completion of the HEEBREAED - BEEEW
disposal took place on 30 June 2021 in accordance with the terms FAVERFEMS  REHEERZ
and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement. T —FRA=THREMK
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. A8 ERE XK T @)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(a)

Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

(a) HE—EMHELT @

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: REEBBNEEFBENT
HK$'000
FAT
Intangible assets (note 23) fm A E (fEE23) 7,309
Inventories FE 131
Bank and cash balances RITRRSET 16
Trade and other payables B 5 R EA R R (16)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 33) EIEFRTE B & (MT5E33) (1,827)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHfB AR EE (199)
Total consideration BRE 5414
Consideration satisfied by FRIN T FIEENRE
Cash ik 4,862
Deferred sales proceeds RIESHE Fr1S5IE 552
5414
Cash consideration received BEYERESR(E 4,862
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of EHEREMKBSEEY (16)

4,846
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. A8 ERE XK T @)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEETBELCEBYER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRETASERETDEEZE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEEHFBE(REReRIFReE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for B BMBETDELCBERES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MEERIARKREREFRAE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from BEHReReneaRANEARES
financing activities. BFfScRenE2A8E -
Derecognition Interest Rent
1January  Additions of lease expenses  Concession Exchange  31December
2022 of new leases liabilities  Cash flows (note 12) (note9) difference 2022
It bt 3 RIEER RExt  AeER It bt 3
-B-B FENEE HEAR ReRE  (MEn) (Wi9)  EXEE t=A=t-B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TiEn TR TERn TiEn TR TR

Borowings (notes30) R (P 30) 97,283 - - 28,106 3,054 - (8,577) 119,866
Lease liabities (ote 32) & B E(HEE3) 31,791 7197 (5,234) (8,346) 1,289 (429) (2,656) 23,612
129,074 7197 (5,234) 19,760 4,343 (429) (11,233) 143,478
Derecognition Interest Rent
1January  Additions of of lease expenses  Concession Exchange 31 December
001 newleases liabilities Cash flows (note 12) (note 9) difference 001
“Eo-F # LR Mext  HeRE kS
-A-B RENEE HEAE  RewE (W) (W)  EXZE t-A=t-A
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000

ThEL TR T TEL T T TEL TEL

Borowings (notes30) (P E30) 67527 = = 26407 840 = 2509 97283
Leaselighiltes (note32) ~ AEB B3 749 31375 (467) 7916) %) - 30 31791
75021 31375 (467) 18491 1822 = 2832 129074
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. SR8 R &REXRMFT @)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 HEZHRESRHEATE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise REETFARERER L SHEE
the following: AR &I8
2022 2021
—EBE-F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within operating cash flows FFAKERERE 4,165 6,080
Within financing cash flows FAREBERERE 7,057 6,934
11,222 13,014
These amounts relate to the following: ZECHRHENTSIEER
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FAET
Lease rental paid BENEERS 11,222 13,014
(d) Non-cash transaction (d) FEREXRZF
No additions to property, plant and equipment during 2022 (2021: RZTZZFHIE - WEWE -
HK$2,982,000) were transferred from deposits for purchase of WEREENRE(ZE=Z—F :
property, plant and equipment. 2,982,000/ D) LB BEWE - BE K&
B ReEE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BHE-T -+ -"A=t+—RHILEE
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EXEYE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period RBREHEEEHCTTNEBEHRRELE Y
but not yet incurred are as follows: BAAERAT :
2022 2021
—EBE-F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Property, plant and equipment W BE&EE 85,672 53,708
41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41, KREHEERH
The Group as lessee AEBEREHEA
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at 31 AEETHHABAEIIEHEE - B
December 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio T F+-A=+—H BHHEE
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in HEEMEFMEE 2 GBHEEIH 2
note 21. HHHEHEAMESE -
As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease commitments relating RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H B@E
to leasing of office under short-term leases is approximately HK$292,000 HHEEBETZRAEHEZ REEHE
(2021: HK$995,000). HHE#I292,00078 70 (ZF ——4F 1 995,000
HIT) ©
The Group as lessor AEBERAEBEA
Operating leases relate to investment properties and an office building AEBABEEEEMERESTIERH
owned by the Group with lease terms of one to five years, with an option ZIEEHEMPR—ZRG - HrJ#EE
to renew the lease after the date at which time all terms are negotiated. REFER —YMEREBER - FTAEL
All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the vent EHESNHEBERMBATERERT
that the lessee exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have BEGIEFCETER NG - HEER
an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period. B AAALEEEMERNEERE o
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) 41. KEHERH®
The Group as lessor (Continued) AEBERHBEA(E)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HEZ &EERKESERZRNT -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Within the first year —F R 1,721 1,827
In the second year FF 288 347
In the third year F= 275 328
In the fourth year FEIF 261 324
In the fifth year FRF 45 50
After five years hFi& - -
Total #ET 2,590 2,876
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREVNNEZZM & -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Lease income on operating leases LERE CHERA 2,630 3,218
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42, EBALTRS
(a) In addition to those related party transactions and balances (a) BREREMBEmEREMELFTEE
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the MZEBEHA LRI RESRIN - F
Group had entered into the following transactions and balances NAREE R A TETIR S
with its related parties during the year. MAESRIAT o
Nature of
Name of related parties Relationship transactions 2022 2021
S 28 B RZHE —EBI-fF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Eastern Media International Shareholder Sales of goods 1,692 884
Corporation (“EMIC")
RARBIRAR D AR A A AR BEmiiE
([RARBIERD)
ET New Media Holding Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of EMIC Advertising expenses 1,589 1,507

("ET New Media")
HARIEBRIERRNERAR RABBEOHRBAR EHEERX

([REARFTERED
(b) Amount due to a related party (b) B —{uBAEER KA

Name of connected parties Relationship 2022 2021

) oyaey B& et —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC (493) (544)

RARITIE RS RARBIRR 2 fi A A

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest free and FE — A 5 SRIE A EER - &

with normal credit term of 120 days upon receipt of invoice. BERREEERE  —REEHA

120H -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

The compensation to the Group's key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors and certain
of the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

42, AT Z @)
() ZAEEIBEEABZHM(BIE
SNFAATEERETRSEM
B8 2 2B A B S WA N iF
164755 -

EENEMEREEABNFAZ

management during the year was as follows: e -

2022 2021
—E=-= —F=—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Short-term benefits ySEEEER ] 7,599 8,071
Post-employment benefits & BBt R 1E A 28 30
7,627 8,101

Save as otherwise disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there are no
other related party transactions constitute “connected transaction”

or “continuing connected transaction” of the Group under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

BREEEREERTHREEIN R
B EMRBNE A - HEEA
BABA TR ZEAAEEZ[FE
RpRFHEEERS] -
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